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OVERVIEW

The Group’s major income for the year ended 31st December,
2008 was derived from the non-refundable payments received
for the sale of the Group’s interests in the shares of Grand
China Air Company Limited (the “Grand China Shares”), gain on
disposal of J. Bridge warrants, arrangement fee income for sale of
shares in Rotol Singapore Limited, dividend from listed securities
investments and bank deposit interest income.

The Group recorded a net operating loss of approximately
HK$376.4 million for the year ended 31st December, 2008 as
compared with a net profit attributable to equity holder of
approximately HK$145.2 million in 2007. The Group has recorded
realized net losses of approximately HK$87.9 million on disposal
of listed securities and an impairment loss of approximately
HK$6.3 million for certain available-for-sale investments acquired
before 2007. A total net loss of approximately HK$366.6 million
(2007: profit of approximately HK$14.5 million) was recognized
as changes in fair value in listed and unlisted securities for the
year ended 31st December, 2008.

The Group's net assets fell by approximately 40% to
HK$598.2 million during 2008. This result is indeed disappointing,
but for comparison, it should be noted that Hang Seng Index fell
48%, and Hang Seng China Enterprises Index lost 51% during
2008.
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INVESTMENT REVIEW
As at 31st December, 2008, the Group’s major investments
other than its cash holding were as follows:

Description

B

a portfolio of 39 listed shares
391 Fifktn 2 A

13 equity forward contracts, the underlying stocks of which include PetroChina Company
Limited, Bank of China Limited, Ping An Insurance (Group) of China, Ltd., Bank of
Communications Co., Ltd., Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited, HSBC Holdings
Plc, China Life Insurance Company Limited and New World Development Company Limited

1I3RREBERELD - HERERFTELARARBRMDAER LT - FRBITROERLE
PETRERR (RE) RHERAE - ZBRITRMHERRE - PEIEHEITROBER AR
ELERERAT  PREASRERHARIFRAEAZRERA A

3 equity or market linked notes
3P RE T IS HBRE

2 investment funds investing in Asian markets
EREEMTHREED

bonds issued by 4 companies listed in Hong Kong and overseas

HAR BB MBI LT AR ETZES

15,000 warrants in J. Bridge Corp., a company listed on the 2nd Section of Tokyo Stock
Exchange
15,00017J. Bridge Corp. (—RINERBFRHAE R T2 AR 2 RIREE

The Group's portfolio of investment comprises securities in
Hong Kong, United States, Malaysia, Australia, Japan, Taiwan and
China. The value of our portfolio diminished significantly during
2008 following the meltdown in the global stock markets.
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On 15th April, 2008, a third party independent of the Group
entered into an agreement with us for our interests in the Grand
China Shares at a consideration of HK$110 million (the “Grand
China Air Agreement 2008"). The Group received a total of
HK$60 million non-refundable payments in cash from that third
party during 2008, with the balance of HK$50 million payable in
April 2009.

Our investment in Oriental Cashmere Limited (“OCL") remains
fully impaired as the receivable of OCL remained at an alarmingly
high level.
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DIVIDENDS

The directors of the Company (“Directors”) propose to
preserve cash for investment activities and do not recommend
any dividend for the year ended 31st December, 2008 (2007: Nil).
Nevertheless, bonus warrants on the basis of one warrant for
every five shares held had been issued during the year following
the approval by the Shareholders on 23rd May, 2008.

PROSPECTS

We anticipated in our 2007 annual report volatility being the
theme of 2008 in the stock market. However, our foresight did
not immunize us from the global financial plague. Value of the
Group's portfolio of equity securities and equity related forward
contracts and derivatives fell significantly in 2008. Fortunately,
the Group sold all its interests in properties and AsiaWorld-Expo,
paying off HK$1 billion of debts in 2007, leaving the Group with
no borrowings and in a strong financial position to weather the
global financial crisis.

Completion of the Grand China Air Agreement 2008 in
respect of our interests in the Grand China Shares was re-
scheduled to 16th April, 2009. Upon completion, the Group
would realise an additional income of approximately HK$50
million in 2009, before expenses.

The Group started to invest in corporate bonds issued by
Hong Kong listed companies in December 2008, which in our
view were mispriced or oversold due to the meltdown of the
global credit market in 2008. Value of our bond investments
have appreciated significantly in value. To-date, we have invested
HK$88.0 million in Hong Kong bonds, with a redemption value of
approximately HK$142.5 million, and a weighted average yield-
to-maturity of 16.45% per annum. After a rise in the local bond
market in January 2009, it currently offers very limited bargain
opportunities for us. The Group will closely monitor this asset
class and expect volatility ahead to create buying opportunities
for us.

In the stock market, we continue to see extreme volatility
ahead of us. Policy makers globally generally display a mood
of anxiety, and other than those with their own agenda or
propaganda, very few made firm statements about the timing of
a recovery. There will be highly tempting bear market rallies that
take a strong mind to resist. We will try to stay sober.
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Notwithstanding the above cautiousness, the Company is
an investment company listed under Chapter 21 of the Listing
Rules and its purpose is to invest its funds in assets that offer
good returns. In order to replenish the capital of the Company
in anticipation of investment opportunities offering attractive
valuations, the Board proposed a 1 for 1 rights issue to raise
approximately not less than HK$187 million, before expenses.
The board of Directors (the “Board”) is of the opinion that with
the liquidity generated from the rights issue, the Group is in a
position to negotiate new investments, including opportunities
that may arise in the local bond and equity market, that offer
attractive terms in the present difficult market.

FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31st December, 2008, the Group had cash and cash
equivalents and other restricted deposit paid totalling HK$155.2
million and other financial assets (net of financial liabilities) of
approximately HK$444.0 million. The Group had no borrowings
and is well positioned to explore new opportunities that are
expected to generate better return for our Shareholders.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

As at 31st December, 2008, the majority of the Group's
investments was either denominated in Hong Kong dollar or
United States dollar. Exposures to currency exchange rates still
arise as the Group has certain overseas investments, which
are primarily denominated in Japanese yen, Malaysian ringgit,
Australian dollars, Renminbi and New Taiwan dollars. The Group
at present does not have any contracts to hedge against its
foreign exchange risks. Should the Group consider its exposure
and fluctuation in foreign currency justify hedging, the Group
may use forward or hedging contracts to reduce the risks.

GUARANTEE

The Company has given guarantees to financial institutions
to secure borrowing facilities available to its wholly-owned
subsidiaries in the amount not exceeding US$20 million (as at
31st December, 2007: US$20 million). There was no outstanding
indebtedness as at 31st December, 2008 and 2007.

STAFF COSTS

The Group's total staff costs (including Directors’ emoluments)
for the year ended 31st December, 2008 amounted to
approximately HK$3.1 million (2007: approximately HK$4.3
million).

Lee Wa Lun, Warren
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27th March, 2009
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The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) submit
their report together with the audited financial statements for the
year ended 31st December, 2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY
The principal activities of the Group include the investments
in listed and unlisted financial instruments.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st December,
2008 are set out in the consolidated income statement on pages
31 to 32 of the financial statements.

The Board has resolved not to declare a dividend for the year
ended 31st December, 2008 (2007: Nil).

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and note 28 to the financial statements
respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31st December,
2008, calculated under Section 79B of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, are shown in note 28 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are
shown in note 27 to the financial statements.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 148.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Lee Wa Lun, Warren
Lo King Yau, Edwin
Wong Tai Chun, Mark (appointed on 5th December,
2008)
Arthur George Dew
Lee Yip Wah, Peter
So Shu Fai, Ambrose
Albert Ho
Lam Tak Yee (appointed on 23rd May, 2008)
Lee Seng Hui (resigned on 5th December, 2008)
Fung Wing Cheung, Tony (retired on 23rd May, 2008)
Fung Yiu Fai, Peter (resigned on 23rd May, 2008)
Chow Yu Chun, Alexander (resigned on 23rd May, 2008)
Kin Chan (resigned on 18th January, 2008)
Wong Tai Chun, Mark (ceased to act on 5th December,
(alternate director to 2008)
Arthur George Dew)

Annual Report 2008
R FNEE R

07



08

YU MING INVESTMENTS LIMITED

BERB A R A

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

E=E (&)

FEE HUERMEMAELEEBERERA
ZAREBERMAUEI0MGEREENBET ZRE
BFERE(RRBEFRE]) LWERE - SUAKE
FERERNRRBFRG LEEEE-

TAALERMBBLETHERANRAEESER
AMAFREREERRBF ARG LRE - ERBERE
o

ARFERE2MBTFNTEE 2 BIRRE -
I B 1 % TYB L -

EBERBEL

BEEREERRBEFRG LET2ESTHEEAR
RAFIAARB AR —FRRMNHE CEHIEERIN)
M Z RIEAH

EEEABE
BEZEZBEHINMAT

HWITES

ZER IS R _ZTTZNF-ABETAES
GZERUTBEARQRAESALE -FR_FT
NMEHEAESEEZES RSB BLEETEBERAA (S
BREEE ) ZEE - B F+— AR =%
4 I8 ARotol Singapore LimitedZ 3E#177 = & ° Rotol
Singapore Limited/E¥T MK & F 2 S AR A G ER
M -BZEENFT_AR BENAE—XARAR
ERAFRN(BZEBREBFEAN) ([E—XARR]) 28
TEF - FE-—RARDABBHMERZHAER AR ([H
RN ERETAR - RZZEEXF+_AE=-ZTZT
+tF A AHHE - ®EHINam Tai Electronics, Inc. (E
RRBNEFZ G EM 2 EFRERBHEER) 2
THER N ETNF=ZFE -_TTF - ALK
% & H fENam Tai Electronic and Electrical Products
Limited ("NTEEP" ) Z B IFRITES  WR_ZTZ N
FoAZEZZTTLHFNAHMETIENITES - KN
TE+LF-—AESTSLFWARHE BAEHT
J.I.C. Technology Company Limited ([JIC]) Z JEH 1T
B F o NTEEPRJICH B A2 P =R £ 22 7] &2Nam Tai
Electronics, Inc.Z B ARl e FEER —NNANFE
A% BEThe University of East Angliall BU/S 3 &2 &2
T2 AR — NN FAERKERS R The
City University Business SchoolZ I E2 75 + £ (7 -

Annual Report 2008
=2 F )N\ FEE R

o R

DIRECTORS (continued)

In accordance with Article 101 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Messrs. Lee Yip Wah, Peter, So Shu Fai, Ambrose,
and Albert Ho will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting ("AGM"). All retiring Directors, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

In accordance with Article 92 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Wong Tai Chun, Mark and Ms. Lam Tak Yee will
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
AGM.

The Company has received confirmations of independence
from all Independent Non-Executive Directors, and considers them
to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
The biographical details of the Directors are set out below:

Executive Directors

Lee Wa Lun, Warren, aged 45, was appointed the Chairman
of the Board and ceased to act as the Managing Director of the
Company in March 2009. He became a Director of the Group
in 2004 and is director of Yu Ming Investment Management
Limited (“YMIM"). Mr. Lee is also a non-executive chairman of
Rotol Singapore Limited since November 2007. Rotol Singapore
Limited is listed on the main board of the Singapore Exchange
Limited. Mr. Lee is an executive director of First Natural Foods
Holdings Limited (Provisional Liquidators Appointed) (“FNF")
since December 2008. FNF is listed on the main board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong”). From December 2006 to May 2007, Mr. Lee
was the chief executive officer of Nam Tai Electronics, Inc., an
electronics manufacturing services provider listed on the New
York Stock Exchange. From March 2004 to February 2006, he
was an independent non-executive director of Nam Tai Electronic
and Electrical Products Limited (“NTEEP”), and from February
2006 to April 2007, he was re-designated as a non-executive
director. From January 2007 to April 2007, he was also a non-
executive director of J.I.C. Technology Company Limited (“JIC").
Both of NTEEP and JIC are listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong and subsidiaries of Nam Tai Electronics,
Inc.. Mr. Lee graduated with a Bachelor of Science Degree from
The University of East Anglia in England in 1986 and obtained a
distinction in Master of Science degree from The City University
Business School in London in 1988.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Executive Directors (continued)

Lo King Yau, Edwin, aged 48, a chartered company
secretary and holder of a Master's Degree in Applied Finance
from Macquarie University, Australia, was appointed an Executive
Director of the Company in November 2007. He had served
various executive roles in several companies in Hong Kong
including as company secretary for public listed companies. He
is also an executive director of Allied Group Limited (“AGL"),
a substantial Shareholder of the Company, and Tian An China
Investments Company Limited. Mr. Lo was previously an executive
director of The Hong Kong Building and Loan Agency Limited.

Wong Tai Chun, Mark, aged 44, was appointed as an
Executive Director of the Company and ceased as an Alternate
Director to Mr. Arthur George Dew in December 2008. He has
a Master’s Degree in Business Administration and is a fellow of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries. He was the financial controller
of other listed companies in Hong Kong. He is also an executive
director of Quality HealthCare Asia Limited (“QHA") and the
director of investment of AGL, a substantial Shareholder of the
Company.

Non-Executive Directors

Arthur George Dew, aged 67, was appointed a Non-
Executive Director of the Company in November 2007. He
graduated from the Law School of the University of Sydney,
Australia, and was admitted as a solicitor and later as a barrister
of the Supreme Court of New South Wales, Australia. He is
currently a non-practising barrister. He has a broad range of
corporate and business experience and has served as a director,
and in some instances chairman of the board of directors, of
a number of public companies listed in Australia, Hong Kong
and elsewhere. He is the chairman and a non-executive director
of each of AGL, a substantial Shareholder of the Company,
Allied Properties (H.K.) Limited and QHA. He was previously the
chairman and a non-executive director of Sun Hung Kai & Co.
Limited.

Lee Yip Wah, Peter, aged 66, joined the Group in 1998.
Mr. Lee is a practising solicitor in Hong Kong. He is also an
independent non-executive director of a number of listed
companies including China Merchants Holdings (International)
Company Limited and Sinotrans Shipping Limited. He is also the
Secretary of the Company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent Non-Executive Directors

So Shu Fai, Ambrose, aged 57, joined the Group since its
inception in 1990, is the executive director of Shun Tak Holdings
Limited and SJM Holdings Limited, both are listed companies
in Hong Kong. Dr. So is a director of the University of Hong
Kong Foundation for Education Development and Research. He
is a committee member of the 11th National Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference.

Albert Ho, aged 51, joined the Group as an Alternate
Director in 1999 and became an Independent Non-Executive
Director in 2004. Mr. Ho graduated from the Macquarie
University, Sydney, Australia with a Bachelor of Economics
and MBA from the University of Hong Kong. He is a Certified
Public Accountant of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. Mr. Ho is also an independent non-
executive director of Jiuzhou Development Company Limited, a
listed company in Hong Kong.

Lam Tak Yee, aged 33, joined the Group as an Independent
Non-Executive Director in May 2008. Ms. Lam is the strategic and
corporate development director of I.T Limited, responsible for
strategic and financial planning, corporate development, including
mergers and acquisitions, joint ventures and partnerships
and investor relations. Prior to joining LT Limited, she was in
investment banking for almost 10 years, handling mergers and
acquisitions, new listing and corporate finance activities. Ms.
Lam graduated from The Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology with first class honours in Bachelor's degree of
Business Administration (Finance) in May 1997. She is also a
Chartered Financial Analyst since September 2000. Ms. Lam is an
independent non-executive director of GreaterChina Technology
Group Limited, a company listed in the GEM Board of Hong
Kong.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

During the year, YMIM, of which Lee Wa Lun, Warren
is director (Fung Wing Cheung, Tony resigned as a director
during the year), received from the Group management fee of
HK$11,640,000 in connection with a management agreement
signed between the Group and YMIM.

Save as disclosed above, no other contracts of significance
in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company or its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Significant related party transactions entered by the Group
during the year ended 31st December, 2008, which constitute
connected transactions under the Listing Rules, is disclosed in
note 32 to the financial statements.

During the year, the above mentioned connected transactions
are in compliance with the relevant requirement under 14A of the
Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF
THE COMPANY AND ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31st December, 2008, the interests and short positions
of the Directors of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO")) which were notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which the Directors and the Chief Executives of the Company
were deemed or taken to have under such provisions of the SFO)
or which were required to be and were recorded in the register
required to be kept pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) in
the Listing Rules were as follows:

Interests in shares and underlying shares of the Company

% of the total

Numbers of relevant

shares held issued shares

(Personal Numbers of Total as at 31st

Name of Directors Capacity interests) warrants held interests December, 2008

R-ZBENEF

+=A=+-~H

HEE

BERGHAE BERR 2RITRG

EEnE g4 (B ARE#R) EEHE BrER BEgEI L

Lee Yip Wah, Peter Beneficial owner 1,550,000 310,000 1,860,000 0.10%
T BB A (Note 1)
(Hst1)

Albert Ho Beneficial owner 1,000,000 200,000 1,200,000 0.06%
G E=BEAA (Note 2)
(Hist2)
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF
THE COMPANY AND ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS
(continued)

Interests in shares and underlying shares of the Company

(continued)

Note 1:  The total interest includes the holding of (i) 1,550,000 shares
and (i) 310,000 units of warrant of the Company giving rise
to an interest of 310,000 underlying shares of the Company.
The warrants of the Company entitle the holders thereof to
subscribe at any time during the period from 29th May, 2008 to
28th May, 2009 (both days inclusive) for fully paid shares of the
Company at an initial subscription price of HK$0.33 per share
(subject to adjustment).

Note 2: The total interest includes the holding of (i) 1,000,000 shares
and (i) 200,000 units of warrant of the Company giving rise
to an interest of 200,000 underlying shares of the Company.
The warrants of the Company entitle the holders thereof to
subscribe at any time during the period from 29th May, 2008 to
28th May, 2009 (both days inclusive) for fully paid shares of the
Company at an initial subscription price of HK$0.33 per share
(subject to adjustment).

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year ended
31st December, 2008 was the Company, its subsidiaries or its
associated companies a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors or Chief Executives of the Company to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or its associated corporations.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or the Chief
Executives of the Company had or was deemed to have any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any associated corporation (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
pursuant to the Model Code contained in the Listing Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31st December, 2008, the following persons or
corporations, other than the interest disclosed above in respect of
the Directors, interest in 5% or more in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company have been notified to the Company and
recorded in the register of substantial Shareholders’ interests in
shares and short positions required to be kept under Section 336
of Part XV of the SFO:

% of total

relevant

issued shares

No. of No. of Total as at 31st

Name of Shareholders Notes Capacity shares held  warrants held interests  December, 2008

RZZENE

+ZB=1-H

BERG BEAR EERRTRE

RRE® it &t %8 ERYA Y LR

Allied Group Limited ("AGL") 1 Interest of controlled corporation 504,371,800 100,874,360 605,246,160 32.38%
SREEERAA ([BAKE]) REFHARNES

Lee and Lee Trust 2 Interest of controlled corporation 504,371,800 100,874,360 605,246,160 32.38%
REFHARNES

Poly (Hong Kong) Investments Limited ("Poly"”) 3 Interest of controlled corporation 109,150,000 - 109,150,000 5.84%
w’H (&%) REBRART ([RH]) REFHARNES

Fung Wing Cheung, Tony 4 Interest of children under 18/ 168,254,258 - 168,254,258 9.00%
Other interest

7 8B TR 2R/ R

HSBC International Trustee Limited 4 Trustee 165,712,258 2,420,000 168,132,258 9.00%
EEN

Sparkling Summer Limited (“Sparkling Summer”) 5 Beneficial owner 127,030,000 22,916,400 149,946,400 8.02%
ERHAA

Classic Fortune Limited ("Classic Fortune") 5 Interest of controlled corporation 127,030,000 22,916,400 149,946,400 8.02%
REFHARNES

COL Capital Limited ("COL") 5 Interest of controlled corporation 127,030,000 22,916,400 149,946,400 8.02%
MEBRERERAR ( [TEBZ] ) RIEHIA RN ER

China Spirit Limited (“China Spirit”) 5 Interest of controlled corporation 127,030,000 22,916,400 149,946,400 8.02%
REFHARNES

Vigor Online Offshore Limited (“Vigor Online”) 5 Interest of controlled corporation 127,030,000 22,916,400 149,946,400 8.02%
REFHARNES

Chong Sok Un 5 Interest of controlled corporation 127,512,000 23,012,800 150,524,800 8.05%
UM REFHARNES

- % %
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Notes:

1.

AGL holds (i) 504,371,800 shares and (ii) 100,874,360 units of
warrant of the Company giving rise to an interest of 100,874,360
underlying shares of the Company through its wholly-owned
subsidiaries.

Mr. Lee Seng Hui, Ms. Lee Su Hwei and Mr. Lee Seng Huang are
trustees of Lee and Lee Trust, being a discretionary trust. They
together own 44.52% interest in AGL and are therefore deemed
to have an interest in the said shares and warrants in which AGL
is interested.

The interest of Poly was attributable on account through a number
of wholly-owned subsidiaries. The Company was formerly known
as Continental Mariner Investment Company Limited.

Out of these 165,712,258 shares, 164,926,258 shares are held
by Megaland Development Limited (“Megaland”). Megaland
is also wholly-owned by Oyster Services Limited, the trustee of
the Oyster Unit Trust, which in turn Oyster Services Limited is
deemed to be interested in 164,926,258 shares. The entire issued
share capital of Megaland is the trust property of the Oyster Unit
Trust. The trust property of the Oyster Unit Trust comprises the
entire issued capital of Megaland. The beneficiary of Oyster Unit
Trust is HSBC International Trustee Limited which holds the trust
property (including the beneficial interest under the Oyster Unit
Trust) on trust for the beneficiaries of The Alyssa Js 1 Trust. The
beneficiaries of The Alyssa Js 1 Trust are, inter alia, Fung Wing
Cheung, Tony’s children under 18.

As such, Fung Wing Cheung, Tony is deemed to be interested in
164,926,258 shares in which his children under 18 have ultimate
beneficial interest under the above arrangement. In addition, Fung
Wing Cheung, Tony has family interest in 3,328,000 shares in
which his children under 18 have interest.

Sparkling Summer is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Classic
Fortune. Classic Fortune is wholly owned by COL which in turn is
owned 46.31% by Vigor Online. Vigor Online is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of China Spirit which in turn is wholly-owned by Chong
Sok Un. Accordingly, Chong Sok Un, China Spirit, Vigor Online
and Classic Fortune are deemed to have an interest in the shares
and warrants in which Sparkling Summer is interested.

The total interests of 150,524,800 shares and warrants represent
the aggregate of (i) the 149,946,400 shares and warrants held by
Sparkling Summer and (ii) the 578,400 shares and warrants held
by Bilistyle Investments Limited, which is wholly-owned by Chong
Sok Un.

The warrants of the Company entitle the holders thereof to
subscribe at any time during the period from 29th May, 2008 to
28th May, 2009 (both days inclusive) for fully paid shares of the
Company at an initial subscription price of HK$0.33 per share
(subject to adjustment).

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st December, 2008, the
Directors are not aware of any other persons who have interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares of equity
derivatives or debentures of the Company or any associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
would be required to be disclosed to the Company pursuant to
Part XV of the SFO.
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MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT

On 22nd June, 2007, an investment management agreement
(the "New Investment Management Agreement”) was entered
into by the Company and YMIM, which was approved by
Shareholders of the Company on 3rd August, 2007. Under the
New Investment Management Agreement, YMIM agreed to assist
the Board with the day-to-day management of the Group from
(i) the earlier of 1st October, 2007; or (i) the date immediately
following the day on which the New Investment Management
Agreement was approved by Shareholders to 31st December,
2009. YMIM will be entitled to a management fee equal to 1.5%
per annum of the consolidated net asset value of the Group
attributable to the equity holders of the Company, calculated
and payable in arrears on a quarterly basis by reference to the
arithmetical average of the consolidated net asset value of the
Group attributable to the equity holders of the Company on
the last day of each calendar month during each quarter; and
a performance fee equal to 20% of the amount by which the
audited consolidated net asset value of the Group attributable
to the equity holders of the Company of each year ended 31st
December, exceeds (i) if a performance fee has been paid during
the management period, the audited consolidated net asset value
of the Group attributable to the equity holders of the Company
as at the end of the latest financial year in which YMIM was
entitled to a performance fee; or (ii) if no performance fee has
been paid during the management period, the consolidated net
asset value of the Group attributable to the equity holders of the
Company on effective date of the New Investment Management
Agreement.

For the year ended 31st December, 2008, management fee of
HK$11,640,000 was received and receivable by YMIM from the
Group.

This transaction constitutes a continuing connected
transaction and is required to be disclosed in accordance with
Chapter 14A of Listing Rules.

The Company’s Independent Non-Executive Directors
considered that the New Investment Management Agreement is
in the best interests of the Company and was entered into on
normal commercial terms, in the ordinary course of business of
the Company and that the rate of the management fee is fair
and reasonable so far as the Shareholders of the Company are
concerned.

A letter pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules has been
issued to the Board by the auditors of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, no other contracts concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year.

Annual Report 2008
R FNEE R

15



16

YU MING INVESTMENTS LIMITED
BERB A R A

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

RKEF G E

AEERBAVERESF GO RL -BER
Rz B RRBENGE ([5H8]) - E5tE
H_ZZEEF+ A HRER -#HERDEEEZE
AHEEUXBEBEDLFE  XRBEAE ZRANE
BSEPHBRANZRE - ErfdlcBERAKEZE
ENHRE KXHBYEEESRE -

BEREES
ARREERETRAUNEI2UEKLBEREZE S

BHMBFIIFRATESMRATERMEELLTR

—HIFRTEEKGE AL LMK -

ERZEeCHERERIAREMER ZE®E
BEREA WA ABEERMERRET - LT
REESERKEMEBEE_TETENFEFt+_A=+—8H
IEZ FEEE LN REBESNE—FERAQ FGrant
Thornton Specialist Services Limited ([GTSS]) &A%
EHE T N\F+_A=T—HLFEZEFEE
NEEIEE D ETT — R BY 2EE - GTSSZHMEE T
KRIEEREZEEEREZTGHMN -

FMEES

ARAERLFMEE S UEELAEEEER
SREBRANEZHMN - HFMEZ B h - R IBILIFNTT
EFARMEERMNBELLTUAR —RFERITERK
TORLEEMX ©

NBERE
BRERRBARABRESTNEAMAHREH ZEHNR

REFGERAE ARFARBE_ZTENF+A

=t RALEFE-HEETETRANZARFRERE

Annual Report 2008
=2 F )N\ FEE R

o R

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The Scheme
has operated since 1st December, 2000. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and
are charged to the income statement as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the Scheme. The assets of the
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee in
accordance with rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, and now
comprising two Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr.
Albert Ho and Ms. Lam Tak Yee and one Non-Executive Director,
namely Mr. Arthur George Dew.

The audit committee has reviewed with management the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
discussed internal controls and financial reporting matters. The
audit committee has reviewed the annual results for the year
ended 31st December, 2008. In addition, the Group engaged an
external consultant, Grant Thornton Specialist Services Limited
("GTSS"), to perform an independent review of the internal
controls for particular key areas of the Group's operations for the
year ended 31st December, 2008. GTSS's report was completed
and distributed to the Audit Committee and the Board for their
review.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

A Remuneration Committee has been established by the
Company to consider the remuneration of the Directors and
senior management of the Group. The Remuneration Committee
comprises two Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely, Mr.
Albert Ho and Ms. Lam Tak Yee and one Non-Executive Director,
Mr. Arthur George Dew.

PUBLIC FLOAT

On the basis of information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the
date of this report, the Company has complied with the public
float requirements of the Listing Rules for the year ended 31st
December, 2008.
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EVENT AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

On 14th February, 2009, the Company announced its
proposal to raise approximately HK$181.5 million, after expenses,
by way of a rights issue of 1,869,172,517 new ordinary shares
at a subscription price of HK$0.10 per share on the basis of one
new ordinary shares for every one existing ordinary shares held
on 24th March 2009. Successful applicants of the new shares will
receive one 2011 warrant (“2011 Warrants”) for every five new
shares taken up. The new shares other than those subject to a
subscription undertaking with a substantial Shareholder were fully
underwritten. The proposal was authorized by the Shareholders at
an extraordinary general meeting on 24th March, 2009.

The expected net proceeds from the rights issue of
approximately HK$181.5 million, after expenses (and assuming
no 2011 Warrants is exercised) is intended to be applied for
investment purpose. The Company intends to use the proceeds to
purchase bonds as well as equities, and such other investments
that offer attractive return.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s shares during
the year.

AUDITORS
Messrs Grant Thornton are the auditors of the Company.
There have been no changes of auditors in the past three years.

The accompanying financial statements for the year ended
31st December, 2008 was audited by Grant Thornton who retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for their re-appointment as auditors of the Company
will be proposed at the AGM of the Company.

By order of the Board
Lee Yip Wah, Peter
Secretary

Hong Kong, 27th March, 2009
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company recognises that good corporate governance
standards maintained throughout the Group serve an effective
risk management tool for the Company. The board of Directors
of the Company (the “Board”) is committed to lead the Group
growing in an efficient manner followed by corporate missions in
terms of business strategies and improved operational planning
and procedures which are enforced under high corporate
governance standard.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board believes that corporate governance is essential to
the success of the Company and has adopted various measures
to ensure that a high standard of corporate governance is
maintained. With effect from 1st January, 2005, the Company has
applied the principles and adopted code provisions set out in the
Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code on CGP") in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong as its own
code on corporate governance practices. The current practices will
be reviewed and updated regularly to follow the latest practices
in corporate governance.

In the opinion of the Board, the Company has complied with
the code provisions of the Code on CGP during the accounting
year except the following:

a. Code provision A.2.1 states that the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual.

After Mr. Lee Seng Hui resigned as Executive Director
and the Chairman of the Board on 5th December, 2008,
there was no Chairman of the Board and Mr. Lee Wa Lun,
Warren the Managing Director of the Company, had to
play the role of chairman at times of Board meetings and
general meetings. On 16th March, 2009, Mr. Lee Wa Lun,
Warren was appointed as the Chairman of the Board and
ceased to act as the Managing Director of the Company.
Afterwards, the Company has not appointed an individual
managing director. The Company is being managed by its
investment manager, Yu Ming Investment Management
Limited, pursuant to the terms of the written investment
management agreement.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES (continued)
b. Code provision E.1.2 states that the Chairman of the
Board should attend the annual general meeting of the
Company.

Due to other business commitment, Mr. Tony Fung Wing
Cheung, the Ex-Chairman of the Board, was unable to
attend the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 23rd May, 2008. However, arrangements including the
attendance of members of different Board committees
had been in place to ensure the general meeting was in
order.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by the Directors (the “Model Code”).
Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, the Company
confirmed that all Directors have complied with the required
standards as set out in the Model Code during the year.

CORPORATE MANAGEMENT
i. Board of Directors

The Board reviews and approves corporate matters such
as business strategies and investments as well as the general
administrative and management of the Group.

The Board currently consists of 3 Executive Directors, 2 Non-
Executive Directors and 3 Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lee Wa Lun, Warren (Chairman)

Mr. Lo King Yau, Edwin

Mr. Wong Tai Chun, Mark (appointed on 5th December, 2008
and ceased to be the Alternate
Director to Mr. Arthur George Dew)

Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Arthur George Dew
Mr. Lee Yip Wah, Peter

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. So Shu Fai, Ambrose
Ms. Lam Tak Yee

Mr. Albert Ho

(appointed on 23rd May, 2008)
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CORPORATE MANAGEMENT (continued)
i. Board of Directors (continued)

The number of Independent Non-Executive Directors equals to
over one third of the Board membership. One of the Independent
Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. Albert Ho, has the
appropriate professional accounting experiences and expertises.
The Board membership is covered by professionally qualified
and widely experienced personnel so as to bring in valuable
contribution and different professional advices and consultancy
for the development of the Company. More than two-third of
the Board members have recognised professional legal, securities
and accounting qualifications. There is no relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material relevant relationship)
among members of the Board.

All Directors have access to the services of the Company
Secretary who regularly updates the Board on governance and
regulatory matters. Any Director and member of Audit Committee
of the Company may take independent professional advice if
they so wish at the expense of the Company, as arranged by the
Company Secretary.

The Board has had regular Board meetings in accordance with
the Code on CGP.
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Number of meetings

EE V8

Executive Directors

HBTES
Lee Wa Lun, Warren (Chairman)
TEM(EE)
Lo King Yau, Edwin

Wong Tai Chun, Mark (appointed on 5th December, 2008)

FRH(R_EBEZNFT_ARBEEE)

Lee Seng Hui (resigned on 5th December, 2008)

FRIE(R_ZEZENF+T AR AFE)
Non-Executive Directors
FHITES

Arthur George Dew

G/ GEDZ

Lee Yip Wah, Peter

TR

Fung Wing Cheung, Tony (retired on 23rd May, 2008)

B (RZEZENFRAZT=ZHRE)

Fung Yiu Fai, Peter (resigned on 23rd May, 2008)

HEE(R_ZEZNFRAZT=HEIT)
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BYFBTES

So Shu Fai, Ambrose

B2

Albert Ho

AT R AR

Lam Tak Yee (appointed on 23rd May, 2008)

MERR-_FENFAAZFT=HAEZT)

Chow Yu Chun, Alexander (resigned on 23rd May, 2008)

BAFE(RZZEZNFRA=-T=8&T)

Average attendance rate

T

sxeflgfARNMBESFREE 148 285
;%% THERSHESE MAMBEEHERSENS

FEEAMAEE BEETTNHEARSTHZIEPIRE

REE  URRESHARARBENANHERASE
ER Fe 1D 24 -

CORPORATE MANAGEMENT (continued)
i. Board of Directors (continued)

Attendance of Individual Directors at regular Board meetings
in 2008:

4
4/4 100%
4/4 100%
171 100%
3/3 100%
4/4 100%
3/4 75%
0/1 0%
171 100%
0/4 0%
4/4 100%
3/3 100%
1/1 100%

82%

At least 14 days' notice of a regular Board meeting is given
to all Directors to provide them with an opportunity to attend
and all Directors are given an opportunity to include matters in
the agenda for a regular meeting. Board papers are despatched
to the Directors at least 3 days before the meeting to ensure that
they have sufficient time to review the papers and be adequately
prepared for the meeting.
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CORPORATE MANAGEMENT (continued)

Board of Directors (continued)
(a) Chairman and Managing Director

Up to 5th December 2008, the roles of the Chairman and
the Managing Director are segregated and assumed by two
separate individuals who have no relationship with each other
to strike a balance of power and authority so that the job
responsibilities are not concentrated on any one individual.

The Chairman of the Board is responsible for the
leadership and effective running of the Board.

The Managing Director is delegated with the authorities
to manage the Group’s business in all aspects effectively,
implement major strategies, make day-to-day decision and
coordinate overall business operation.

The Company had not met the code provision A.2.1
after the resignation of the Chairman of the Board on 5th
December, 2008, details of the deviation are set out on pages
18 and 19 of this report.

(b) Appointment and re-election of Directors

Non-Executive Directors (including Independent Non-
Executive Directors) of the Company have a specific term
of appointment for one year, subject to re-election. At each
annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the
time being or, if their number is not three or a multiple of
three, then the number nearest one-third, shall retire from
office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject
to retirement at least once every three years.

The Board has not established a nomination committee.
According to the articles of association of the Company, the
Board has the power from time to time and at any time to
appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy
or as an addition to the Board. In assessing nomination of
new Directors, the Board has taken into consideration of the
nominee’s qualification, ability and potential contributions to
the Company.
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CORPORATE MANAGEMENT (continued)

i. Board of Directors (continued)
(b) Appointment and re-election of Directors (continued)

During the year, Mr. Kin Chan resigned as Non-Executive

Director of the Company on 18th January, 2008. Mr. Fung
Wing Cheung, Tony retired as Chairman and Non-Executive
Director of the Company at the annual general meeting held
on 23rd May, 2008. On 23rd May, 2008, Mr. Fung Yiu Fai,
Peter resigned as Non-Executive Director of the Company,
Mr. Chow Yu Chun, Alexander resigned as Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company and Ms. Lam Tak Yee
was appointed as Independent Non-Executive Director of
the Company. On 5th December, 2008, Mr. Lee Seng Hui
resigned as Executive Director of the Company and Mr. Wong
Tai Chun, Mark was appointed as Executive Director of the
Company and ceased to be Alternate Director to Mr. Arthur
George Dew.

ii. Executive Committee

The Executive Committee is established by the Board,
comprising Messrs. Lee Wa Lun, Warren, Lo King Yau, Edwin,
and Wong Tai Chun, Mark, being the Executive Directors of
the Company which has been authorised to make investment
decisions on behalf of the Group and operate normal course
business of the Group.

iii. Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has been established and currently
consists of three Non-Executive Directors, two of whom are
Independent Non-Executive Directors. To retain independence and
objectivity, the Audit Committee is chaired by an Independent
Non-Executive Directors with appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise. The current members of the Audit Committee are Mr.
Albert Ho (Chairman of the Committee), Mr. Arthur George Dew
and Ms. Lam Tak Yee. The Audit Committee is provided with
sufficient resources to discharge its duties and has access to
independent professional advice if considered necessary according
to the Company’s policy.

The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are:

(@) to recommend to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of the external auditors, to
approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of
the external auditors, and any questions of resignation or
dismissal of those auditors;

to consider and discuss with external auditors the nature
and scope of each year's audit;

—
O
=
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CORPORATE MANAGEMENT (continued)
Audit Committee (continued)

(0

to review and monitor the external auditors’

independence and objectivity;

(d) to review the interim and annual consolidated financial

(e)

statements before submission to the Board;

to discuss any problems and reservation arising from
the interim review and final audit, and any matters the
external auditors may wish to discuss;

to review the external auditors’ management letters and
management'’s response; and

to review the Group’s financial controls, internal control
and risk management systems.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available

on the website of the Company.

The works of the Audit Committee during the year under

review included:

reviewing the 2007 annual results and 2008 interim
results of the Group;

discussing with the management of the Company over
the completeness, fairness and adequate accounting
standards and policies of the Group in the preparation of
the 2007 annual financial statements and 2008 interim

financial statements;

reviewing and discussing with the external auditors over
the financial reporting of the Company;

reviewing and recommending for approval by the Board
the 2008 audit scope and fees;

recommending to the Board, for the approval by
Shareholders, of the re-appointment of the auditors;

reviewing the connected transactions entered into by the
Group during the year (if any); and

reviewing the effectiveness of internal control system and
risk management;
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Albert Ho (Chairman)
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Arthur George Dew
EEE
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CORPORATE MANAGEMENT (continued)
iii. Audit Committee (continued)

The Audit Committee met 2 times in 2008. Each committee
meeting was supplied with the necessary financial information of
the Group for the members to consider, review and assess matters
of significance arising from the work conducted.

Attendance of individual members of Audit Committee at
audit committee meetings in 2008:

2
2/2 100%
2/2 100%
1 100%
1/1 100%

100%

*  Mr. Chow Yu Chun, Alexander resigned and Ms. Lam Tak Yee was
appointed as member of audit committee on 23rd May, 2008

iv. Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee has been established and
currently consists of three members, including Mr. Arthur George
Dew (Chairman of the Committee), being Non-Executive Director
and Mr. Albert Ho and Ms. Lam Tak Yee, being the Independent
Non-Executive Directors. The Remuneration Committee is
provided with sufficient resources to discharge its duties and has
access to independent professional advice if considered necessary
in accordance with the Company’s policy.

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration
Committee are:

(a) to recommend to the Board on the Company's policy
and structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior
management.

(b) to determine the specific remuneration packages of all
Executive Directors and senior management;

(c) to review and approve performance-based remuneration
by reference to corporate goals and objectives approved
by the Board from time to time;
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CORPORATE MANAGEMENT (continued)
iv. Remuneration Committee (continued)
(d) to review and approve the compensation payable to
Executive Directors relating to any loss or termination of
their office or appointment;

(e) to review and approve compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of Directors for
misconduct; and

(f) to ensure that no Director is involved in deciding his/her
own remuneration.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
available on the website of the Company.

One remuneration committee meeting was held during
the financial year of 2008. The remuneration committee of
the Company had held its meeting to discuss and review
remuneration of Executive Director(s) and Director's fee of all
members of the Board.

v. Remuneration policy

The remuneration policy of the Company is to ensure that
all employees, including Directors, are sufficiently compensated
for their efforts and time dedicated to the Company and
remuneration offered is appropriate for their duties and in line
with market practice. No Director, or any of his associates, and
executive is involved in deciding his own remuneration.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year under review, the remunerations paid/payable
to the Company’s auditors, Messrs Grant Thornton, auditors of
subsidiaries of the Company, are set out as follows:

Fees paid/payable
B EMER

HK$'000
TEIT

350
63

413
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CORPORATE COMMUNICATION

The Company channels corporate information of the Group to
the Shareholders in a timely and accurate manner. Printed copies
of the Annual Report 2007 and Interim Report 2008 were sent to
all Shareholders and published on the website of the Company as
well as the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong.

The Company held an annual general meeting in 2008. At the
annual general meeting convened on 23rd May, 2008, separate
resolutions were proposed for each issue. Due to other business
commitment, the Chairman of the Board, was unable to attend
the annual general meeting. A member of Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee was available to answer questions at
the annual general meeting. A Director had explained at the
commencement of the annual general meeting the procedures for
demanding a poll by Shareholders of the Company. The Company
had counted all proxy votes and indicated to the annual general
meeting the level of proxies lodged on each resolution, and the
balance for and against the resolution. All the votes cast at the
annual general meeting were properly counted and recorded.

The Company held an extraordinary general meeting in
2008 for approval of major transactions, the chairman of the
meeting had explained the procedure for demand a poll at this
extraordinary general meeting.

CORPORATE CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility in monitoring the process
of corporate reporting and control system throughout the
Group. The corporate reporting standards are delegated to the
accounting department of Yu Ming Investment Management
Limited (“YMIM") in terms of proper and regular reviews on the
deployment of resources and financial reporting systems. The
corporate governance practices and compliance with the Listing
Rules, Securities and Futures Ordinance and other applicable
regulations are delegated to the corporate finance department of
YMIM. The management of the Company reviews and briefs the
reporting systems with the Audit Committee annually.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for overseeing the Group’s system of
internal controls. However, such a system is designed to manage
the Group’s risks within an acceptable risk profile, rather than to
eliminate the risk of failure, to achieve the business objectives of
the Group. Accordingly, it can only provide reasonable assurance
but not absolute assurance against material misstatement of
management and financial information and records or against
financial losses or fraud. For the year ending 31st December,
2009, the Board, through the Audit Committee and the
management of the Company, will review the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function, and their training
programmes and budget.

Annual Report 2008
R FNEE R

27



28

YU MING INVESTMENTS LIMITED
BERB A R A
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INTERNAL CONTROLS (continued)

The Board has established an on-going process for identifying,
evaluating and managing the significant risks faced by the Group
and this process includes updating the system of internal controls
when there are changes to business environment or regulatory
guidelines.

YMIM assists the Board in the implementation of the Board’s
policies and procedures on risk and control by identifying and
assessing the risks faced, and involving in the design, operation
and monitoring of suitable internal controls to mitigate and
control these risks.

The key processes that have been established in reviewing the
adequacy and integrity of the system of internal controls and risk
management include the following:

e The Executive Committee is established by the Board
to ensure the effectiveness of the daily operations and
that the operations are in accordance with the corporate
objectives and strategies.

e The Audit Committee of the Company reviews internal
control issues identified by external auditors, regulatory
authorities and management, and evaluates the adequacy
and effectiveness of the Group's risk management and
internal control systems.

The Group engaged an external consultant, Grant Thornton
Specialist Services Limited (“GTSS”) to perform an independent
review of the internal controls for particular key areas of the
Group's operations for the year ended 31st December, 2008.
GTSS's report was completed and distributed to the Audit
Committee and the Board for their review. The independent
review is part of the Board’s plan to further strengthen our
internal control systems and improve overall corporate governance
culture. The Audit Committee together with the management
of the Company will carry out follow up review on findings and
recommendations of GTSS.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN PREPARING THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges that it is their responsibilities in
preparing the financial statements. The statement of the auditors
about their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements
is set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 29 to 30.
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—t—BNGERAREERBEREHEZBILFE
MEEERK BARIEERNGABSRER
URFESTBRBE R E MW RE -

ESHUMBHRREARENSE
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Member of Grant Thornton International Ltd

To the members of
Yu Ming Investments Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Yu
Ming Investments Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 31 to 147,
which comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets as
at 31st December, 2008, and the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This
responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining
internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting
estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely
to you, as a body in accordance with section 141 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents for this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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Auditors’ responsibility (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and
fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of
the Group as at 31st December, 2008 and of the Group’s loss and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Grant Thornton
Certified Public Accountants

13th Floor, Gloucester Tower
The Landmark

15 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

27th March, 2009



For the year ended 31st December, 2008
BHE_TT/\F+=-A=t+—H

Continuing operations:
Revenue

WA

Other net (loss)/income

Hit (F518) WA FHE

Administrative and other operating expenses

THREMESEER

Operating (loss)/profit
e (1R B8R

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary and a jointly controlled entity
HE—FRB AR —FHERE#ES E QR 2 WS

Finance costs

BATE RS

Share of results of a jointly controlled entity
DiE—MEREESERAREE

(Loss)/profit before income tax

FrisBial (B18) R8T

Income tax expense

PSR 3

(Loss)/profit for the year from continuing operations

FESEEB 2 REFE (BB 87

Discontinued operations:
BRI ER
Net result for the year from discontinued operations

BERIEERB L AFRFRA

(Loss)/profit for the year
REE (F8), R

2008

—EENE

Notes HK$000
it FET
5 16,546
6 (370,412)
(22,504)
(376,370)

BEW) -
8 —_
9 (376,370)
10 -
(376,370)

11 -
(376,370)

2007

—TTEF

HK$°000

FHET

44,466

87,138

(36,709)

94,895

16,206

(8,754)

1,750

104,097

(1,210)

102,887

61,129

164,016
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
A 1H A iRk

For the year ended 31st December, 2008
BE-_TT)/\F+=-A=+—H

2008 2007
—EEN\FE ZETAF
Notes HK$000 HK$°000
Biat FHET FET
Attributable to:
B8
— Equity holders of the Company
- ARAIRERA A 12 (376,370) 145,204
— Minority interests
- DBk R - 18,812
(Loss)/profit for the year
REE (FE) B (376,370) 164,016
(Loss)/earnings per share for (loss)/profit attributable to
the equity holders of the Company (HK cents)
BEARARARESEABR) B ZER (BR), BF (GB4l) 14
- Basic
-EX
For (loss)/profit for the year
AEE (BB 57 (20.14) 7.96
For (loss)/profit from continuing operations
SESEER (B1R) 5T (20.14) 5.13
- Diluted N/A N/A
- 88 i A 3 A
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YU MING INVESTMENTS LIMITED
BEBEARAH

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
iR E R E AR

As at 31st December, 2008
RZZEN\F+-A=+—H

2008 2007
—EENF ZTTLF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
Het FET FEIT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
BEREE
Non-current assets
*RBEE
Interests in associates
B E A Rl 18 - =
Available-for-sale financial assets
At ST EE 19 75,756 54,703
Held-to-maturity investments
FHEZIEIRE 20 7,648 =
83,404 54,703
Current assets
REEE
Trade and other receivables and prepayment
A N Ho At PR R TR RR IR 21 77,930 1,037
Available-for-sale financial assets
At E RSB E 19 - 1
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
RN EIRRERSREE MG EE 22 305,276 286,635
Other restricted deposit paid
Hi ARG 2 2 TH&e 23 20,049 24,014
Cash and cash equivalents
ReRREEBD 24 135,159 652,174
538,414 963,861
Current liabilities
REAE
Other payables and accrued expenses
H g & ezt & A 25 4,347 21,683
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
RAFEFRREBEREE M8 E 26 18,089 3,900
Taxation payable
FESARIR 1,210 1,210
23,646 26,793
Net current assets
REBEEFE 514,768 937,068
Total assets less current liabilities
BEERERRBEE 598,172 991,771
Net assets
EERE 598,172 991,771
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

As at 31st December, 2008
RZZET/\F+=-A=+—H

2008 2007
—EEN\FE ZETAF
Notes HK$000 HK$°000
Biat FHET FET
EQUITY
RARERS
Equity attributable to the equity holders of the Company
AR B RERFE ARG REERE
Share capital
A& A 27 186,917 186,917
Reserves
& 28 411,255 804,854
Total equity
RA LB E 598,172 991,771
Net asset value per share attributable to the equity holders
of the Company (HK$)
EARREFEARLEREEFE (Bx) 29 0.32 0.53

Lee Wa Lun, Warren
TEMG

Chairman

EFc
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Lo King Yau, Edwin
B
Director
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YU MING INVESTMENTS LIMITED
ARG R AT

BALANCE SHEET

T AR

As at 31st December, 2008
W-ZZT/\&E+=-_A=+—8H

2008 2007
—EENF —ETEF
Notes HK$000 HK$°000
=3 FET FEIT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
EERER
Non-current assets
ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries
U AR E 17 1,400 1,400
1,400 1,400
Current assets
REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries
JE LK BfT /3B A R kIR 17 574,610 781,038
Other receivables and prepayment
H At FEUGR R FEA 5RIE 251 =
Cash and cash equivalents
ReRBReEED 24 76,628 445,914
651,489 1,226,952
Current liabilities
REBAE
Other payables and accrued expenses
Hih SR e E R 25 4,347 21,683
Amounts due to subsidiaries
R MR RIFIA 17 7,424 247,656
11,771 269,339
Net current assets
REEEFE 639,718 957,613
Total assets less current liabilities
EEHAERRBAER 641,118 959,013
EQUITY
RAER
Share capital
[N 27 186,917 186,917
Reserves
G 28 454,201 772,096
Total equity
RAEREE 641,118 959,013
Lee Wa Lun, Warren Lo King Yau, Edwin
TEMp B
Chairman Director
FE =3
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YU MING INVESTMENTS LIMITED
BB R A

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
B o 2 % )

For the year ended 31st December, 2008
BE-_TT)/\F+=-A=+—H

Minority
interests Total
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company b
RARIRERE NEGERAER RRER ki
Retained
Capital Capital  Investment earnings/
Share Share  redemption  contribution  revaluation  (accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses) Total

X AR RE REREM/
BA REE  EEEE  BARE  ZEEE (RHER) it
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000
T T TET T T AT AT T T

At 1st January, 2007
“TT 5 -A—-HEE 169,117 311,582 4,032 367 36,304 210,929 732,331 192,386 924,717

Fair value gain on available-
for-sale financial assets
AN ENHEEY
AT EME - - - - 4,905
Realisation of revaluation surplus
of available-for-sale financial
assets on disposal
MHERERAHLE
AR ERES = = - - (28,756) - (28,756) - (28,756)

4,905 = 4,905

Net income recognised directly
in equity
REAERERRR
WNFE = = = = (23,851) = (23,851) - (23,851)

Profit for the year
KEERF - - - - - 145,204 145,204 18,812 164,016

Total recognised income and

expense for the year
FEFERABWARAS B - - - - (23,851) 145,204 121,353 18,812 140,165
Disposal of subsidiaries
HERBAR - - - - - - - @119 (211,198
Proceeds from shares issued
BRIRN 2 FEHIE 33,800 189,280 - - - - 223,080 - 223,080
Shares issuance expenses
BRABITRX - (8,116) - - - - (8,116) = (8,116)
Repurchase of shares
BinmpE (16,000) - 16,000 - - (76,877) (76,877) - (76,877)

At 31st December, 2007
“E5LF
+-A=t-BKE 186,917  492,746* 20,032% 367* 12,453*  279,256* 991,771 - 991,771
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008
BHE—ZTN\F+=-A=+—H

Minority
interests Total
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company DY
ARRREREAEERAER RFES aE
Retained
Capital Capital Investment  earnings/
Share Share redemption contribution revaluation (accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses) Total

&% X RE RERA/
Bax  ROEE EEEE AARE  EMEE (RHER) k]
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEx FEx TEn TEx FEx TEn TEx FEx

At 1st January, 2008
“TT\F-A—-HEE 186,917 492,746 20,032 367 12,453 279,256 991,771 - 991,771

Fair value loss on available-for-sale

financial assets
AL EREEE AT EEE - - - - (24332) - (24,332) - (24,332
Realisation of revaluation loss of

available-for-sale financial assets on

disposal
REERERAHRNE

HREECERER - - - - 809 - 809 - 809
Impairment loss written-off to the

income statement
HIBRIRH 2 FEE - - - - 6,294 - 6,294 - 6,294

Net income recognised directly in equity

RS E R R B IRFE - - - - (17,229) = (17,229) = (17,229)
Loss for the year
REERE - - - - - (376370)  (376,370) - (376,370)

Total recognised income and expense
for the year
FEFERANARR %28 - - - - (17,229) (376,370) (393,599) - (393,599)
Proceeds from shares issued”
BRI FTE R - - - - - - = = =

At 31st December, 2008

“EF)\E+-A=t—R&E 186,917 492,746* 20,032* 367* (4,776)*  (97,114)* 598,172 - 598,172

O EFEREEA11,2550008B T (ZEE L F *  The aggregate amount of these balances of HK$411,255,000 (2007:

804,854,000/ 70) ENABEEBEBER ZHE - HK$804,854,000) represents the reserves in the consolidated balance
sheet.

# MARFER - ATEADRE) Z BB A 2 A B £ + During the year, HK$53 and HK$121 were received for share

HEDRIRSIEIT K121 TT capital and share premium respectively as a result of exercise of the

Company’s warrants.
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Notes
Hfat

Cash flows from operating activities,

including discontinued operations
REXEBAESHRE(BRERLEREXER)
(Loss)/profit before income tax
Fris®ian (&18) & F
Adjustments for:
BTFIE B L A
Interest income from available-for-sale financial assets
A E R A E 2 FIBUA 5
Interest income from held-to-maturity investments
FHEZIHRE ZFSHA 5
Interest income from bank deposits
RITF R FBWA 5
Interest income on accrued dividend income
JEEHAR B2 A B A 5
Dividend income
A B A 5
Loss/(gain) on disposal/redemption of available-for-sale financial assets
HE BRI ENEEEEHER (Kas) 6
Fair value loss on investment properties
KEMEZ A TFEEE 11
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of available-for-sale financial assets
At E B R A E 2 FE ek, (FE AR B #) 6
Fair value loss/(gain) on financial assets and liabilities

at fair value through profit or loss
BATEINEREEZEREZUBEERBEZ A TERER, (W) 6

Interest on bank and other borrowings

RITREMEE 2 TR 8
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary and a jointly controlled entity

HE—fRMBA R R —fAERZEESE QAR 2 K 332
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

HE— B AR 2 W 33.1

Share of results of a jointly controlled entity

DIEHAZEEEERRIZEE
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008
HE—ZTN\F+=-A=+—H

2008
—EENE
HK$°000
FETT

(376,370)

(300)

(18)

(6,525)

(9,703)

793

6,294

427,325

2007
—ETLF
HK$'000
FET

170,153

(287)

(12,106)

(1,215)

(30,915)

(30,947)

86

(5,000)

(50,292)

43,552

(16,206)

(36,490)

(1,750)



YU MING INVESTMENTS LIMITED
ARG R AT

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

22 I\ v Bl i%
T o T
For the year ended 31st December, 2008
BE_TT)/\F+=-A=+—H

2008 2007
—EEN\FE ZETAF
Notes HK$'000 HK$°000
Bt FHET FET
Operating profit before working capital changes
Rt EEECEDALLHET 41,496 28,583
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables and prepayment
A R Ho At PR MR IE R TS SR 2 () R A (72,928) 39,729
(Decrease)/increase in other payables and accrued expenses
H i G R B E Rz Ofd) (17,336) 7,150
Change in financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
RATFEINEREB=REEVEEERA G (428,510) (215,361)
Cash used in operations
REREBFEAZES (477,278) (139,899)
Interest received from available-for-sale financial assets
AHEERBEEZD KAE - 287
Bank interest received
BERERITHE 6,525 12,106
Interest income received on accrued dividends
FEFT AR B2 B R B U A - 943
Dividend received
BUARE 9,703 945
Interest on bank and other borrowings paid
ERITREMEE ZFE - (43,552)
Income taxes refund
RIEFTST - 2,697
Net cash used in operating activities,
including discontinued operations
REEBFRALHLFE  BREERIEREER (461,050) (166,473)
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Cash flows from investing activities,
including discontinued operations

REXEBZRERE(BRERLEREER)

Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets

BARTHEEMBEE

Purchase of held-to-maturity investments

BAREZIHRKRE

Purchase of convertible bonds

BARHRRES

Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale financial assets

HE Rt HEM B EE 2 FF5HIA

Realisation of available-for-sale flnancial assets

EHRAHEENBEE

Purchase of investment properties

BAREYE

Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries and a jointly controlled entity

HEMBAR R —HERZEEESERTZAEHRIEA

Proceeds from disposal of a sub5|d|ary

HE —EWB AR TS HRIE

Decrease in pledged bank flxed deposits

B IRIRTTE BT R L

Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activities,
including discontinued operations

RETH(FER) EEZRSTE (AEERIEEEER)

Cash flows from financing activities,
including discontinued operations

RETHZRSRE(BECRLKREER)

Repayment of loan from bank and other borrowings

BRIRTERREMER

Proceeds from issuance of shares

BITIRD 2 FTISRIE

Shares issuance expenses

BT 2 B X2

Repurchase of shares

5 B AR 15

Shares repurchase expenses

BRIRG 2 A%

Repayment of loans from minority interests

EEVHRRMIEMEZER

Net cash generated from financing activities,
including discontinued operations

BERDELZRSFR(BHEERLELEER)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents
ReRBLEEYCRD) EMFE
Cash and cash equivalents at 1st January

R—A-BZRERASEEY

Cash and cash equivalents at 31st December

RT-ZA=1+-—HZRERBREEEY
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008

HE=

2008

—EZENEF

Notes HK$°000
k23 FET

(8,132)
(7,630)
(40,236)

33

33.2 -

33.1 -

(55,965)

(517,015)

652,174

135,159

TT/\F+=A=+—A

2007
—ETLF
HK$°000
FHEIT

(16,381)

80,714
5,000
(7,331)
158,908
368,190

10,538

599,638

76,130

509,295

142,879

652,174



For the year ended 31st December, 2008
BHE—ZTN\F+=-A=+—H

BRI EFR AR ([ARAR]) TR EBEMAK L
RAURZBERAR - RAREMMER I A
BB ELTITEI138HRE A RS AE19#£19018
EOMEETBEEWTAES  ARRARORE
BHARZIBRAR ([BRAT]) Lo

ARBLEMBAR (RBAIAEER]) 22X
BERRERLEMRIFLTZEMTA -

ENEFUTAZHBRRIDBEFTEGFA
S((EESAMAG]) BHzBERMBEREER
(TEEMBREER]) (ERBREMAERZE
PEEHBREED FEGFLEIRREZS
) RBEBRAGIZHAERE MBERRTEHE
BEMEXZMBERARES LR (TERR
AN 2 BRBERE -

HE_ZTZN\F+-_A=+—BLEFEZHBER
RERBARRZEFG([EEC)R_ZETh
FZA-TER#E-

Yu Ming Investments Limited (the “Company”) is a limited
liability company incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong.
The address of the Company’s registered office is Room
1901B, 19th Floor, Allied Kajima Building, 138 Gloucester
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong and, its principal place of
business is Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”) include the
investments in listed and unlisted financial instruments.

The financial statements on pages 31 to 147 have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The
financial statements also include the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”).

The financial statements for the year ended 31st December,
2008 were approved for issue by the Board of Directors of
the Company (the “Board”) on 27th March, 2009.
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2.1

2.2

RZZEZENF—A—HEE A5BEHMAFT
BER_EENF—HA—HEXERRERE
BB REIETEAU RS AEL -
RNZEF] RSB BB M B mE &R
BEBHARRRAEE 2 GFBRHBEKXR
AEBIWKRIREEATIIE BMEEKREK
RIS HER] 2 RIS R RE -
BEGIERE % (KB HERRHZ3)
BAGIERF3% (KB F*”M‘
BEAGIERF27% (KT BARBUMERR
BESHENF% L E39% MEEHKEIARER
REEYBREENETR BELZEM
(EIBET)
BB GIERF39% (KE3]) é%%ﬁimﬁﬁz
EAMEREENZE IR BERBAR - £FE
BAGIERETH (BITA) ﬁﬂﬁ%ﬂémsﬁﬁw
BAGIERNF 15 (BEFT) BARMNEANERSE
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008
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From 1st January, 2008, the Group has adopted all the
new and amended HKFRSs which are first effective on
1st January, 2008 and relevant to the Group.

The adoption of these new and amended HKFRSs did
not result in significant changes in the Company’s and
the Group’s accounting policies.

The Group has not early adopted the following HKFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet effective.

Presentation of Financial Statements'

Borrowing Costs'

Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements?

HKAS 32, HKAS 39 &  Puttable Financial Instruments and
HKFRS 7 (Amendments)  Obligations Arising on Liquidation'

HKAS 1 (Revised)
HKAS 23 (Revised)
HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 39 (Amendment)  Eligible Hedged Items?

HKFRS 1 & HKAS 27 Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary,
(Amendments) Jointly Controlled Entity or an Associate’

HKFRS 1 (Revised) First-time Adoption of HKFRSs?

HKFRS 2 (Amendment) ~ Share-based payment - Vesting Conditions
and Cancellations'

Business Combinations?

Operating Segments'

Customer Loyalty Programmes?

HKFRS 3 (Revised)
HKFRS 8
HK(IFRIC) - Int 13

HK(IFRIC) - Int 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real

Estate’
HK(IFRIC) - Int 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign
Operation*
HK(IFRIC) = Int 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to
Owners?

HK(IFRIC) - Int 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers®

Note:

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st
January, 2009

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st
July, 2009

9 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st
July, 2008

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st
October, 2008

B Effective for transfers received on or after 1st July, 2009
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Saved as disclosed above, the HKICPA has made minor
amendments to a number of HKFRSs in October 2008 as a
result of the annual improvements project of the HKICPA.
Unless otherwise specified, these minor amendments to
HKFRSs in an annual improvements project are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2009.

Among these new standards and interpretations, HKAS 1
(Revised) is expected to materially change the presentation
of the Group’s financial statements. The amendments affect
the presentation of owner changes in equity and introduce
a statement of comprehensive income. The Group will have
the option of presenting items of income and expenses and
components of other comprehensive income either in a
single statement of comprehensive income with subtotals,
or in two separate statements (a separate income statement
followed by a statement of comprehensive income). The
amendment does not affect the financial position or results
of the Group but will give rise to additional disclosures.

In addition, HKFRS 8 may result in new or amended
disclosures. Management is in the process of identifying
reportable operating segments as defined in HKFRS 8.

The Directors of the Company (the “Directors”) anticipate
that the adoption of such HKFRSs will not result in material
financial impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008
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The significant accounting policies that have been
used in the preparation of these financial statements
are summarised below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented unless
otherwise stated.

The financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for financial instruments
classified as available-for-sale and at fair value through
profit or loss which are stated at fair value. The
measurement bases are described in the accounting
policies below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and
assumptions are used in preparation of the financial
statements. Although these estimates are based
on management’s best knowledge and judgement
of current events and actions, actual results may
ultimately differ from those estimates. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the financial statements, are described in
Note 4.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 31st December, each year.

Subsidiaries are entities (including special purpose
entities) over which the Group has the power to
control the financial and operating policies so as to
obtain benefits from their activities. The existence
and effect of potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible are considered when
assessing whether the Group controls another entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
excluded from consolidation from the date that control
ceases.
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Business combinations (other than for combining entities
under common control) are accounted for by applying the
purchase method. This involves the revaluation at fair value
of all identifiable assets and liabilities, including contingent
liabilities of the subsidiary, at the acquisition date, regardless
of whether or not they were recorded in the financial
statements of the subsidiary prior to acquisition. On initial
recognition, the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
of the subsidiary are included in the consolidated balance
sheet at their fair values, which are also used as the bases
for subsequent measurement in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policies.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated in
preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.

In the Company’s balance sheet, subsidiaries are carried at
cost less any impairment loss. The results of the subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable at the balance sheet date.

Minority interest represents the portion of the profit or loss
and net assets of a subsidiary attributable to equity interests
that are not owned by the Group and are not the Group’s
financial liabilities.

Minority interests are presented in the consolidated
balance sheet within equity, separately from the equity
attributable to the equity holders of the Company. Profit
or loss attributable to the minority interests are presented
separately in the consolidated income statement as an
allocation of the Group’s results. Where losses applicable
to the minority exceeds the minority interests in the
subsidiary’s equity, the excess and further losses applicable
to the minority are allocated against the minority interest
to the extent that the minority has a binding obligation
and is able to make an additional investment to cover the
losses. Otherwise, the losses are charged against the Group’s
interests. If the subsidiary subsequently reports profits, such
profits are allocated to the minority interest only after the
minority’s share of losses previously absorbed by the Group
has been recovered.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008
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Associates are those entities over which the Group
is able to exert significant influence, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of voting rights but which are neither subsidiaries
nor investments in a joint venture.

In consolidated financial statements, investments
in associates are initially recognised at cost and
subsequently accounted for using the equity method.
Under the equity method, the Group's interests in
the associate are carried at cost and adjusted for the
post-acquisition changes in the Group's share of the
associate’s net assets less any identified impairment
loss, unless it is classified as held for sale (or included
in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale).
The consolidated income statement includes the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results
of the associate for the year, including any impairment
loss on goodwill relating to the investment in associate
recognised for the year.

When the Group's share of losses in an associate equals
or exceeds its interest in the associate, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate. For this purpose, the Group’s
interest in the associate is the carrying amount of the
investment under the equity method together with the
Group's long-term interests that in substance form part
of the Group's net investment in the associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group'’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the associate
recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised as
goodwill. The cost of acquisition is measured at the
aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange,
of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed and
equity instruments issued by the Group, plus any costs
directly attributable to the investment.
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The goodwill is included within the carrying amount
of the investment and is assessed for impairment as
part of the investment. After the application of equity
method, the Group determines whether it is necessary
to recognise an additional impairment loss on the
Group’s investment in its associates. At each balance
sheet date, the Group determines whether there is any
objective evidence that the investment in associate is
impaired. If such indications are identified, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as being the
difference between the recoverable amount (see Note
3.9) of the associate and its carrying amount.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or
loss in the determination of the Group’s share of the
associate’s profit or loss in which the investment is
acquired.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group's interest in the associates. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Where the associate uses accounting policies other
than those of the Group for like transactions and
events in similar circumstances, adjustments are made,
where necessary, to conform the associate’s accounting
policies to those of the Group when the associate’s
financial statements are used by the Group in applying
the equity method.

In the Company's balance sheet, investments in
associates are stated at cost less any impairment
losses. The results of associates are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008
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The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
Dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional currency
of the Company.

In the individual financial statements of the
consolidated entities, foreign currency transactions
are translated into the functional currency of the
individual entity using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. At balance sheet date,
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the balance sheet date. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the balance sheet date
retranslation of monetary assets and liabilities are
recognised in the income statement.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined and are reported as part of
the fair value gain or loss. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual
financial statements of foreign operations, originally
presented in a currency different from the Group’s
presentation currency, have been converted into
Hong Kong dollars. Assets and liabilities have been
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing
rate at the balance sheet date. Income and expenses
have been converted into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates, or at
average rates over the reporting period provided that
the exchange rates do not fluctuate significantly. Any
differences arising from this procedure have been dealt
with separately in the currency translation reserve in
equity.



YU MING INVESTMENTS LIMITED
AER B A R A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 25 e A% B RE

For the year ended 31st December, 2008
BE_TT\F+-_A=1+—H

3. EAREHHEME (&)

3.6

3.7

LN+

FE RSB M 5 8 R A AN 5 B R WA BE S AT SE 5
BZBERT  WMATIHERIT :

B AR P B R ) FROK 12 By P L 1) 2 Y B

=7
e ©

R B A FE R IR B, 2 1 6 B TE S BE R o

B 15 AR 75 2 MR A TO A 4R 1L AR 75 s RERR

RiggEHERR B RARNBRREZ
HEAERERBEER  EEES &R
ERREEEEMEZN AR ZEER
Sh o PR ER R ERERER /S YOFE
SRE D  AAESHERARN G
HMBERBRUA o

BB A

BERERARELERFIMESH -

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.6

3.7

Revenue recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the revenue can be measured
reliably, revenue is recognised as follows:

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method.

Dividend is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.

Income from provision of arrangement services is
recognised when services are rendered.

Rental income receivable from operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern
of benefits to be derived from the use of the leased
asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised
as income in the accounting period in which they are
earned.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are expensed as incurred.
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Investment properties are land and/or buildings which
are owned or held under a leasehold interest to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These
include land held for a currently undetermined future
use.

When the Group holds a property interest under an
operating lease to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, the interest is classified and accounted
for as an investment property on a property-by-
property basis. Any such property interest which has
been classified as an investment property is accounted
for as if it were held under a finance lease.

On initial recognition, investment property is measured
at cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property
is stated at fair value. Fair value is determined by
external professional valuers, with sufficient experience
with respect to both the location and the nature of the
investment property. The carrying amounts recognised
in the balance sheet reflect the prevailing market
conditions at the balance sheet date.

Property that is being constructed or developed for
future use as investment property is classified as
property, plant and equipment and stated at cost until
construction or development is complete, at which
time it is reclassified as investment property. Any
changes between the fair value of the property at that
date and its previous carrying amount is recognised in
profit or loss.

Gains or losses arising from either changes in the fair
value or the sale of an investment property is included
in the profit or loss for the period in which they arise.
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Interests in subsidiaries and associates are subject to
impairment testing.

All non-financial assets are tested for impairment
whenever there are indications that the asset’s carrying
amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount unless
the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount
under the Group’s accounting policy, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease
according to that policy. The recoverable amount is the
higher of fair value, reflecting market conditions less
costs to sell, and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessment of time value of money and
the risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent from those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generate cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit). As a result,
some assets are tested individually for impairment and
some are tested at cash-generating unit level.
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Impairment losses recognised for cash-generating
units, are charged pro rata to the assets in the cash
generating unit, except that the carrying value of an
asset will not be reduced below its individual fair value
less cost to sell, or value in use, if determinable.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the asset’s recoverable amount and only to the extent
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined if
no impairment loss had been recognised.

The Group’s accounting policies for financial assets
other than investments in subsidiaries and associates
are set out below.

Financial assets other than hedging instruments are
classified into the following categories:

held-to-maturity investments;

- financial assets at fair value through profit or loss;

- loan and receivables; and

available-for-sale financial assets.

Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition depending on the
purpose for which the financial assets were acquired
and where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this
designation at every reporting date.

All financial assets are recognised when, and only
when, the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Regular way purchases
of financial assets are recognised on trade date.
When financial assets are recognised initially, they are
measured at fair value, plus, in the case of investments
not at fair value through profit or loss, directly
attributable transaction costs.
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Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the
rights to receive cash flows from the investments expire
or are transferred and substantially all of the risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred. At
each balance sheet date, financial assets are reviewed
to assess whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. If any such evidence exists, impairment
loss is determined and recognised based on the
classification of the financial assets.

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity that the Group's
management has the positive intention and ability
to hold to maturity. Held-to-maturity investments
are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any
impairment losses. Amortised cost is calculated
taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate and transaction
cost.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss include financial assets held for trading
and financial assets designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets are classified as held for trading if
they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the
near term, or it is part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that are managed together
and for which there is evidence of a recent
pattern of short-term profit-making. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives are
also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments or
financial guarantee contracts.
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Where a contract contains one or more
embedded derivatives, the entire hybrid contract
may be designated as a financial asset at fair
value through profit or loss, except where the
embedded derivative does not significantly
modify the cash flows or it is clear that separation
of the embedded derivative is prohibited.

Financial assets may be designated at initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss
if the following criteria are met:

- the designation eliminates or significantly
reduces the inconsistent treatment that
would otherwise arise from measuring the
assets or recognising gains or losses on
them on a different basis; or

- the assets are part of a group of financial
assets which are managed and their
performance is evaluated on a fair value
basis, in accordance with a documented
risk management strategy and information
about the group of financial assets is
provided internally on that basis to the key
management personnel; or

- the financial asset contains an embedded
derivative that would need to be separately
recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the financial
assets included in this category are measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in income statement. Fair value is determined by
reference to active market transactions or using
a valuation technique where no active market
exists. Fair value gain or loss does not include
any dividend or interest earned on these financial
assets. Dividend and interest income is recognised
in accordance with the Group’s policies in Note
3.6 to these financial statements.
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Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. Loans
and receivables are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment losses. Amortised
cost is calculated taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes
fees that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate and transaction cost.

Available-for-sale financial assets include non-
derivative financial assets that are either
designated to this category or do not qualify
for inclusion in any of the other categories of
financial assets. The Group has designated its
debt elements of listed convertible bonds as
available-for-sale financial assets. All financial
assets within this category are subsequently
measured at fair value. Gain or loss arising from
a change in the fair value excluding any dividend
and interest income is recognised directly in
equity, except for impairment losses (see the
policy below) and foreign exchange gains and
losses on monetary assets, until the financial asset
is derecognised, at which time the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in equity would
be recycled in profit or loss. Interest calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised
in profit or loss.

The fair value of available-for-sale monetary
assets denominated in a foreign currency
is determined in that foreign currency and
translated at the spot rate at the reporting
date. The change in fair value attributable to
translation differences that result from a change
in amortised cost of the asset is recognised in
profit or loss, and other changes are recognised
in equity.

Annual Report 2008
R FNEE R

55



RNERT S L EREREAFEEE
AISERTE  URFAHBZITAET ARE

BRNZEERERATRZTAEE
ZAHEERBEENS - RVITHER
BeBEER  HERAHBRERNDE
EU%%EE%%i\a+§E(

REEER  FeimaFES AR
Z%WﬁFL TEN UWRERGEEME
BFREMBELR -

ERMBEERECEBRERETHEE
ZHE ZBBEEsIRAEEE BRI TS
HEZREREM

- EBABRLEBSAMBRE

- BH MEXAIBBERNNEHASD

- ERARFRENESETEMMEES:

- BiW5  REIERRFEELERE
B HEBAELETNEE

- RERATAREZATFEBRLEBANAL
HITBRER E A -

56 Annual Report 2008
—FF )N E B

For the year ended 31st December, 2008
HE—ZTN\F+=-A=+—H

For available-for-sale investments in equity
securities that do not have a quoted market price
in an active market and whose fair value cannot
be reliably measured and derivatives that are
linked to and must be settled by delivery of such
unquoted equity instruments, they are measured
at cost less any identified impairment losses at
each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition.

At each balance sheet date, financial assets other than
at fair value through profit or loss are reviewed to
determine whether there is any objective evidence of
impairment.

Objective evidence of impairment of individual financial
assets includes observable data that comes to the
attention of the Group about one or more of the
following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below
its cost.
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Loss events in respect of a group of financial assets
include observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows
from the group of financial assets. Such observable
data includes but not limited to adverse changes in the
payment status of debtors in the Group and, natural or
local economic conditions that correlate with defaults
on the assets in the Group.

If any such evidence exists, the impairment loss is
measured and recognised as follows:

If there is objective evidence that an impairment
loss on loans and receivables or held-to-maturity
investments carried at amortised cost has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition). The amount of the loss is recognised
in profit or loss of the period in which the
impairment occurs.

If, in subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed to the
extent that it does not result in a carrying
amount of the financial asset exceeding what
the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised at the date
the impairment is reversed. The amount of the
reversal is recognised in profit or loss of the
period in which the reversal occurs.
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When a decline in the fair value of an available-
for-sale financial asset has been recognised
directly in equity and there is objective evidence
that the asset is impaired, an amount is removed
from equity and recognised in profit or loss as
impairment loss. That amount is measured as the
difference between the asset’s acquisition cost
(net of any principal repayment and amortisation)
and current fair value, less any impairment loss on
that asset previously recognised in profit or loss.

Reversals in respect of investment in equity
instruments classified as available-for-sale are
not recognised in the income statement. The
subsequent increase in fair value is recognised
directly in equity. Impairment losses in respect
of debt securities are reversed if the subsequent
increase in fair value can be objectively related to
an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised. Reversal of impairment losses in such
circumstances are recognised in profit or loss.

The amount of impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the carrying amount
of the financial asset and the present value
of estimated future cash flows discounted at
the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Such impairment losses are not
reversed in subsequent periods.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.10 Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(c)

Financial assets carried at cost (continued)

Financial assets other than financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss and trade receivables
that are stated at amortised cost, impairment
losses are written off against the corresponding
assets directly. Where the recovery of trade
receivables is considered doubtful but not remote,
the impairment losses for doubtful receivables
are recorded using an allowance account. When
the Group is satisfied that recovery of trade
receivables is remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against trade
receivables directly and any amounts held in the
allowance account in respect of that receivable
are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account
are reversed against the allowance account.
Other changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off directly are recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period
in respect of available for sale equity securities
and unquoted equity securities carried at cost are
not reversed in a subsequent period.
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Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise
those obligations to, or claims from, tax authorities
relating to the current or prior reporting period,
that are unpaid at the balance sheet date. They are
calculated according to the tax rates and tax laws
applicable to the tax periods to which they relate,
based on the taxable profit for the year. All changes
to current tax assets or liabilities are recognised as a
component of tax expense in the income statement.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method
on temporary differences at the balance sheet date
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the financial statements and their respective tax
bases. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, tax losses available to be carried forward
as well as other unused tax credits, to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, unused
tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither taxable nor accounting profit or
loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group
is able to control the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period the
liability is settled or the asset realised, provided they
are enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date.
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Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are
recognised in the income statement, or in equity if they
relate to items that are charged or credited directly to
equity.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and demand deposits, and short term
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, and are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

For the purpose of the balance sheets, cash and
bank balances comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, which are not restricted as to
use.

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is
determined using the nominal value of shares that have
been issued.

Any transaction costs associated with the issuing of
shares are deducted from equity (net of any related
income tax benefits) to the extent they are incremental
costs directly attributable to the equity transaction.

Where any group company purchases the Company’s
equity share capital (treasury shares), the consideration
paid, including any directly attributable incremental
costs (net of income taxes), is deducted from equity
attributable to the Company’s equity holders until the
shares are cancelled or reissued. Where such shares
are subsequently reissued, any consideration received
(net of any directly attributable incremental transaction
costs and the related income tax effects) is included in
equity attributable to the Company’s equity holders.
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An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
time in return for a payment or a series of payments.
Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a
lease.

Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
being held under finance leases. Leases which do
not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the Group are classified as
operating leases, with the following exceptions:

- property held under operating leases that
would otherwise meet the definition of
an investment property is classified as
an investment property on a property-
by-property basis and, if classified as
investment property, is accounted for as if
held under a finance lease (see Note 3.8);
and

- land held for own use under an operating
lease, the fair value of which cannot be
measured separately from the fair value of
a building situated thereon, at the inception
of the lease, is accounted for as being held
under a finance lease, unless the building is
also clearly held under an operating lease.
For these purposes, the inception of the
lease is the time that the lease was first
entered into by the Group, or taken over
from the previous lessee.
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Where the Group has the use of assets held
under operating leases, payments made under
the leases are charged to the income statement
on a straight line basis over the lease terms
except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased assets. Lease incentives
received are recognised in the income statement
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments made. Contingent rental are charged to
the income statement in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

Retirement benefits to employees are provided through
a defined contribution plan.

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all of its employees
and those employees who are eligible to participate
in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based
on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the income statement as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of
the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in
an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme.
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Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the balance sheet
date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as sick
leave and maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.

The Group’s financial liabilities include other payables,
accrued expenses and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All interest related charges are recognised
as an expense in finance costs in the income
statement.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability,
and the difference in the respective carrying amount is
recognised in the income statement.
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Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss includes financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition
as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading
if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the
near term. Derivatives, including derivatives which
have been separated from their host contracts are also
classified as held for trading unless they are designated
as effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on
liabilities held for trading are recognsied in profit or
loss.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be
designated as a financial liability at fair value through
profit or loss, except where the embedded derivative
does not significantly modify the cash flows or it is
clear that separation of the embedded derivative is
prohibited.

Financial liabilities may be designated at initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss if the
following criteria are met:

- the designation eliminates or significantly reduces
the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise
arise from measuring the liabilities or recognising
gains or losses on them on a different basis; or

- the liabilities are part of a group of financial
liabilities which are managed and their
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with a documented risk management
strategy; or

- the financial liability contains an embedded
derivative that would need to be separately
recorded.
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Other financial liabilities are recognised initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer (or guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payment when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised as
deferred income within trade and other payables.
Where consideration is received or receivable for
the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is
recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an immediate
expense is recognised in profit or loss on initial
recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in profit or loss
over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions
are recognised if and when it becomes probable that
the holder of the guarantee will call upon the Group
under the guarantee and the amount of that claim on
the Group is expected to exceed the current carrying
amount i.e. the amount initially recognised less
accumulated amortisation, where appropriate.
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Assets and disposal groups are classified as held
for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than
through continuing use. This condition is regarded as
met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset
(or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its
present condition. Assets (and disposal groups), other
than financial assets, classified as held for sale are
measured at the lower of the assets’ (disposed groups’)
last revalued amount and fair value less costs to sell.

A discontinued operation is a component of the entity
that either has been disposed of, or is classified as held
for sale, and:

- represents a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations;

- is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of
a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations; or

- is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to
resale.

The results from discontinued operations, including
prior year components of profit or loss, are presented
in a single amount, on the face of the income
statement, which comprises:

- the post-tax result of the discontinued operations;
and

- the post-tax gain or loss resulting from the
measurement and disposal of assets constituting
the discontinued operation.
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A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

directly, or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, the party:

- controls, is controlled by, or is under
common control with, the Group;

- has an interest in the Group that gives it
significant influence over the Group;

- has joint control over the Group;

the party is an associate;

the party is a joint-controlled entity;

the party is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or its parent;

the party is a close member of the family of any
individual referred to in (i) or (iv);

the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by or for
which significant voting power in such entity
resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual
referred to in (iv) or (v); or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of the Group, or of any
entity that is a related party of the Group.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.20 Segment reporting

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial
reporting the Group has determined that business
segments be presented as the primary reporting format
and geographical segments as the secondary reporting
format.

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and
liabilities include items directly attributable to a
segment as well as those that can be allocated on a
reasonable basis to that segment.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred
during the period to acquire segment assets (both
tangible and intangible) that are expected to be used
for more than one period.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are

based on historical experiences and other factors, including

expectations of future events that are believed to be

reasonable under the circumstances.

4.1

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year are discussed below:

Annual Report 2008
~ % 2 )4 #H

69



70

AEBEREMELAFEZZEEEREUR
EREMENERT IS REMAHN 2RIT
B - ERZZBERZBERT REEK
ERTREEA—BASEQTFEMT 2EHE
W REBERIEHEHER - EBXREZ
BEXRREFR B

(i) ERTRME KRR (HHHT
REEXEMEN)MEZERT S
TER TURABUARMZEEZR

(i) RMWREBRMGZBLUDFIRNERS
ETHEARRBNRRZEBRITLR
52 HHIAREEMR R 2 EF B &

(i) RBEARFBEREZ AT SE AT (AR
RAEHEREMENGRRER) & (HE
ATRE) SN SFUB RS (a0 7048 R B Ktk
MZBOYMERTHHEES) Mt EZ
RBRRESRERN > REABZAXRAR
REFERERBELKHTEEBRZ
BTG -

ARFEEBEEREALBEBEKINE
REBERIBRE © Wit DRBHBARZE
EFERKERE -ERENEERAEHT
EEEBR -

Annual Report 2008
—FF )N EE B

For the year ended 31st December, 2008
HE—ZTN\F+=-A=+—H

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an
active market for similar lease and other contracts.
In the absence of such information, the Group
determines the amount within a range of reasonable
fair value estimates. In making its judgement, the
Group considers information from a variety of sources
including:

(i)  current prices in an active market for properties
of different nature, condition or location (or
subject to different lease or other contracts),
adjusted to reflect those differences;

(ii)  recent prices of similar properties in less active
markets, with adjustments to reflect any changes
in economic conditions since the date of the
transactions that occurred at those prices; and

(iii) discounted cash flow projections based on
reliable estimates of future cash flows, derived
from the terms of any existing lease and other
contracts, and (where possible) from external
evidence such as current market rents for similar
properties in the same location and condition,
and using discount rates that reflect current
market assessments of the uncertainty in the
amount and timing of the cash flows.

The Company’s management determine the need to
make allowance for impairment of amounts due from
subsidiaries. This estimate is based on the subsidiaries’
net asset values and operating results. Management
reassess the allowance at the balance sheet date.
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For available-for-sale financial assets, a significant or
prolonged decline in fair value below cost is considered
to be objective evidence of impairment. Judgement is
required when determining whether a decline in fair
value has been significant or prolonged. In making this
judgement, the historical data on market volatility as
well as the price of the specific investment are taken
into account. The Group also takes into account other
factors, such as industry and sector performance and
financial information regarding the issuer/investee.

Significant judgement is required in determining
the amount of deferred taxes. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the deferred
taxes in the period in which such determination is
made.

The best evidence of fair value is the published price
guotations in an active market. In the absence of
such information, the fair value is determined by an
independent professional valuer. Such valuation is
subject to limitations of the valuation models adopted
and the uncertainty in estimates used by management
in the assumptions. Should the estimates including
share prices, deposit rates, spot rates, risk-free rates,
volatility and the relevant parameters of the valuation
model be changed, there would be material changes in
the fair value of certain financial instruments without
quoted prices.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.1

4.2

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(continued)

Determination of active market

HKAS 39 defines that an active market as one in which
quoted prices are readily and regularly available from
an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing
service or regulatory agency, and those prices represent
actual and regularly occurring market transactions on
an arm’s length basis. The management has to assess
whether the market for the financial instruments is
active or not in order to determine the fair value of the
financial instruments.

Critical judgements in applying the entity’s
accounting policies

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements which have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the financial statement:

Classification of held-to-maturity investment

The Group follows the HKAS 39 guidance on
classifying non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments and fixed maturity as held
to maturity. This classification requires significant
judgment. In making this judgment, the Group
evaluates its intention and ability to hold such
investments to maturity.

If the Group fails to keep these investments to maturity
other than for specific circumstances defined in HKAS
39, it will be required to reclassify the whole class
as available-for-sale financial assets. The investments
would therefore be measured at fair value not
amortised cost.
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4. BAEEErhE R HE (&) 4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

42 EARERSTHEFZEZEZHE (B 4.2 Critical judgements in applying the entity’s
accounting policies (continued)

*_E Unlisted equity instruments

M ERMISZYEMISREZRATARE HKAS 39 precludes the Group from measuring
ZAFEXTAIEE - BB SFAHEAFE39 equity instruments at fair value, if the fair value of
RN AREBZ AT EFERANTE - £ investment in equity instruments that do not have a
LB A E R NREERAETHER quoted market price in an active market is not reliably
measureable. In making this judgement, the Group

considers the following information:
- GEBEATEMGFEEANCZEHMEHZ —  the variability in the range of reasonable fair
TE+HEE % value estimates is significant for that instrument;

or
-  GZEEARTRMGE 2T RES E - the probabilities of the various estimates within
TS RIREEFTAFEER - the range cannot be reasonably assessed and
used in estimating fair value.

A H Recognition of revenue/other income
EREEEEABRTELHENZA R Revenue/other income is recognised when the Group’s
$%@IHE%&)\/ﬁ@MZ]\ﬂI«XT%M% management determined that it is probable that the
B WA E AU A BN HERR o Jitﬁ@ RE economic benefits will flow to the Group and revenue/
BEEHE - NI R —BRH & o) other income can be measured reliably. This recognition
M—Is‘%ﬁﬁu‘l'gﬁt KEBCEEAE A%J’E requires significant judgment. In assessing whether the
WE AT GERURRME outcome of a transaction can be measured reliably, the

Group’s management has considered and satisfied with
the following conditions:

—  ZRWA S EHAU A 2 BB R] LAR] S AT - the amount of revenue/other income can be
2K measure reliably; and

— § RS2 &R = 0] g AR - it is probable that the economic benefits

Clgn  WERA(E 2 T BEIE o associated with the transaction will flow to

the Group, e.g. the probability to receive the
consideration.
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Discontinued operations

Consolidated

FREREEK BRIEEER e
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENE e —EENF —TTLF —EENE —TTLF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FHET FET FET
Dividend income
R S A
— listed investments
- LWRE 9,703 369 - - 9,703 369
- unlisted investments
- FLTRE - 30,546 - - - 30,546
Interest income from bank
deposits
RITHERZMEHA 6,525 12,020 - 86 6,525 12,106
Interest income from available-
for-sale financial assets
AN ERTEEE 2 M SHA 300 287 - - 300 287
Interest income from held-to-maturity
investments
HAEZIHRE 2 FISBA 18 - - - 18 -
Interest income from financial
assets at fair value through
profit or loss
BRTEVEREEREEE 2
FBEEZFIBKA - 29 - - - 29
Interest income on accrued
dividend income
JEHR B 2 R B A - 1,215 - - - 1,215
Rental Income
I ON - - - 80,285 - 80,285
16,546 44,466 - 80,371 16,546 124,837
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Continuing operations

RREREEK
2008 2007
—EENE —TTLF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Receipts on interests in
Grand China Shares (Note)
S 3 i 22 AR 1 B R MR (B EE) 60,000 -
Arrangement fee income
iiE=3- LN 4,418 _
Sundry income
LN 236 497
Fair value (loss)/gain on financial
assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss
BATFEIRREESRER
ZUMBEERBEZ
NTE(ER) W (427,325) 50,292

(Impairment)/reversal of impairment

of available-for-sale

financial assets
At E B EE 2 () /

FE £ [ 5 (6,294)
(Loss)/gain on disposal/redemption

of available-for-sale

financial assets

HE /R EMBEE

Z(BR) /M (793)
Exchange (loss)/gain
ER (B18) /M (654)
(370,412)
WM&

MAEBMBEE T NFEFR_ZT+tF+_A=+—H
FE7E2FMBEREMFLR  RoSTNFERE@ES
EMEERBR AR ([FEME]D) FT B ([FEMRZE
Wl Bt (EPeRE) AEERELEHASERE
MR EMmMEBRAG(RBABEMEEBRAR) ([FE
Mz ) #34.2% & AN #Ew X (B £190,000,000/ 7T &
FRAEEB AR 27T AR E97,850,000 % FAX EE A R #&
1T EMZERG ([FEMZERG ) ©

5,000

30,947

402

87,138

Discontinued operations Consolidated
BRIEREXG )
2008 2007 2008 2007
ZEENF —TTLF ZEEN\F —ETRAF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TFET FET TET
- - 60,000 -
- - 4,418 -
- 3,924 236 4,421
- - (427,325) 50,292
- - (6,294) 5,000
- - (793) 30,947
- - (654) 402
- 3,924 (370,412) 91,062
Note:

As detailed in the Group's annual financial statements for each of
the years ended 31st December, 2006 and 2007, the Group entered
into an agreement with Grand China Air Company Limited (“Grand
China”) (the “Grand China Agreement”) in 2006 and pursuant to
which, among other things, the Group agreed to dispose of the
34.2% equity interest in CR Airways Limited (now known as Hong
Kong Airlines Limited) (the “CR Airways”) held by the Group at the
consideration of HK$190 million in return for the 97,850,000 shares
of Grand China of RMB1 each at RMB2 each (the “Grand China
Shares”).
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Note: (continued)

In connection with the execution of the Grand China Agreement,
the Group agreed to (i) convert a partial principal amount of
approximately HK$62,182,000 of the CR Airways’ Class A convertible
debentures into 62,181,818 ordinary shares of HK$1 each of CR
Airways (the “Converted Shares”), which represented 34.2% of
the equity holdings in CR Airways, and to dispose of the Converted
Shares to Grand China in return for 97,850,000 shares of RMB1
each of Grand China; (ii) waive its remaining investments in CR
Airways’ Class A, Class C and Class D convertible debentures in
the aggregate amount of approximately HK$111,152,000 (the
“Remaining Debentures”); (iii) waive all its rights in relation to the
entire principal amount and accrued interest of promissory note of
approximately HK$16,667,000 (the “Promissory Note”) due from Mr
Yip Kwong (“Mr Yip"), shareholder of CR Airways; and (iv) waive the
option granted by a company wholly owned by Mr Yip to purchase
its interests in CR Airways (the “Option Shares”).

In June 2006, the Group completed the transfer of the Converted
Shares to Grand China and waived the Remaining Debentures,
Promissory Note and Option Shares (the transferred Converted
Shares and waived assets collectively referred to as the “CR Airways
Financial Assets”). However, in the same year, the Group was
informed by Grand China that Grand China encountered difficulty in
registration of the Grand China Shares. The Group also experienced
difficulties in negotiating with Grand China.

In view of the title uncertainty and the lack of cooperation from
Grand China, the Group did not recognise the Grand China Shares
and made a decision to derecognise the CR Airways Financial
Assets during the year ended 31st December, 2006. As a result
of the derecognition of the CR Airways Financial Assets and the
failure to recognise the Grand China Shares, the carrying value
of the CR Airways Financial Assets in the aggregate amount of
HK$190,190,000 was charged to the income statement for the year
ended 31st December, 2006.

On 15th April, 2008, a third party independent of the Group (the
“Buyer”) entered into an agreement with a subsidiary of the Group,
according to which the Buyer agreed to pay for the Group’s interests
in the Grand China Shares under the Grand China Agreement at a
total consideration of HK$110 million which was originally repayable
in full during the year. The Group only received HK$60 million non-
refundable amount in cash from the Buyer during the year and that
the amount is recognised as income in the consolidated income
statement for the year ended 31st December, 2008. The remaining
balance of HK$50 million has been re-scheduled to repay on 16th
April, 2009 and will be then recognised as income.
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Continuing operations

Financial
instruments investments
HEREXEK
SRIARE
2008 2007
—EENF e
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TFET
Revenue
WA 16,546 44,466
Segment result
DEEE (376,370) 94,895
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary and
a jointly controlled entity
HE—FMNBAR K—M
HEZEEEE QA2 - 16,206
Finance costs
B A AR - (8,754)
Share of results of a
jointly controlled entity
HME—HAREEEEDTEE - 1,750
(Loss)/profit before income tax
Fris Bl (B148) aFl (376,370) 104,097
Income tax expense
PrgHif X - (1,210)
(Loss)/profit for the year
AEE (B8B), it (376,370) 102,887

Segment information is presented by way of the Group’s
business segments.

The Group’s operating businesses are structured and
managed separately according to the nature of their
operations and the services they provide. Each of the
Group’s business segments represents a strategic business
unit that offers services which are subject to risks and
returns that are different from those of the other business
segments.

No geographical analysis is presented as the Group's
revenue, operating results and assets in geographical
segments other than Hong Kong are less than 10% of the
aggregate amount of all segments.

Discontinued operations

Property investment Consolidated

CRIEEEK
NERE ®RE
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENF —ETHE —EENE —TTLF
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
- 80,371 16,546 124,837
- 64,364 (376,370) 159,259
- 36,490 - 52,696
- (34,798) - (43,552)
- = - 1,750
- 66,056 (376,370) 170,153
- (4,927) - (6,137)
- 61,129 (376,370) 164,016
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Discontinued operations

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

investments Property investment Consolidated
RREREEK BRIELEER
SRMIAKRE MERE e
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENE —TTLF —EENF —TTLF —EENF —ZTLF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FHET FET FET
Segment assets
SEEE 621,818 1,018,564 - - 621,818 1,018,564
Total assets
BELE 621,818 1,018,564 - - 621,818 1,018,564
Segment liabilities
NBERE 22,436 25,583 - - 22,436 25,583
Unallocated
AOEC 1,210 1,210 - - 1,210 1,210
Total liabilities
BafE 23,646 26,793 - - 23,646 26,793
Other information
HAh &R
Capital expenditure
BERRX - - - 7,331 - 7,331
(Impairment)/reversal of impairment
of available-for-sale financial assets
AR ENBEEE (Fab)/
FE &t 0] £ (6,294) 5,000 - - (6,294) 5,000
Fair value (loss)/gain on financial assets
and liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss
BRATEIEREEREREZ
BBEERBBZATE
(E5#8) Wz (427,325) 50,292 - - (427,325) 50,292
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8. B 8. FINANCE COSTS
Continuing operations Discontinued operations Consolidated
REEEEY ERIEEERK )
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
—BENE 2T E ZEENF el S —BENE —ETRAF
HK$°000 HK3$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET TFET FET FET
Interest on bank borrowings wholly
repayable within five years
ARAFARHEERL
RITEERN S - 8,095 - 34,798 - 42,893
Interest on other borrowings
HifEEMNE - 659 - - - 659
- 8,754 - 34,798 - 43,552
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9. FrE®AI(EE), RmF 9. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX
Continuing operations Discontinued operations Consolidated
BERERY BRIEEEYR )
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
“EEINE 2T EE ZEINE ZZTE “EENE ZZEE
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
FEx TET FEr FET FE FET

(Loss)/profit before income tax is

arrived at after charging/(crediting):
FrERiAl () /2FENR /Gt A)

THIRE
Auditors’ remuneration
-Gl e

- charge for the year

-KEE 345 350 - 59 345 409

- under-provision for prior year

- BEEEABTR - 50 - 1 - 51
Employee benefit expense (including

Directors' remuneration (Note 16))

(Note 15)
EERFAX (BEESME (H16))

(PzE15) 3,116 3,580 - 770 3,116 4,350

Management fee (Note 32)
EREA (fE32) 11,640 13,343 - - 11,640 13,343
Performance fee (Note 32)
BHER (fi1i32) - 12,208 - - - 12,208
Outgoings in respect of investment

properties
REME 738 - - - 7,973 - 7,973
Rental income from investment

properties less direct outgoings of Nil

(2007: HK$7,973,000)
BRENEZHSHMA

HEEXHRE

(ZFT+4F :7,973,00087) - - - (72312) - (72,312)
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10.

FREHRMAx

BEMEBTIARE R 2 fh 5 BRBOSFIR X

16.5% (ZZTT+4F : 17.5%) st E&E -

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2007: 17.5%) on the estimated assessable profits
for the year.

Continuing operations Discontinued operations Consolidated
BEREXK BRIEREER Fe)
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
—EEN\E ZTTLF —EENF ZTTLF —EENE ZTTLF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
Current tax
AFEEME - 1,210 - 3,516 - 4,726
Deferred tax (Note 30)
EIERE (FEE30) - = - 1,411 - 1,411
Total income tax expense
FriEBiA &5t - 1,210 - 4,927 - 6,137
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10. FREBIR X (M)

EHRAXBIRERBREXFEZMEHA (B
18) B HRIAT

10.

S 255 e A% B wE

For the year ended 31st December, 2008
BE_TT\F+-_A=+—H

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

Reconciliation between income tax expense and (loss)/profit
before income tax at applicable tax rates is as follows:

Continuing operations Discontinued operations Consolidated
BEREXK BRIREER e
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENE ZTTLF —EENF e s —EENE ZTTLF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FAET FAET FHET
(Loss)/profit before income tax
S BA (B518) /%A (376,370) 104,097 - 66,056 (376,370) 170,153
Tax calculated at the applicable
rate of 16.5% (2007' 17.5%)
REARE16.5% (ZTTLF
17.5%) stE2HA (62,101) 18,217 - 11,560 (62,101) 29,777
Tax effect of non-deductible
expenses
PAHIRBE S 2 BT & 19,573 2,940 - 207 19,573 3,147
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue
BRANBAZ BT E (18,534) (19,961) - (6,812) (18,534) (26,773)
Tax effect of unused tax losses
not recognised
RIERZ R ERB B ER
2B E 61,062 14 - = 61,062 14
Utilisation of previously
unrecognised tax losses
B SE AR IR 2 BB R - - - (28) - (28)
Income tax expense
PSR - 1,210 - 4,927 - 6,137
1. ERLREER 11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

REZTELFAAZ+—H EFFEHALERN
EEIFE61.22%M AN 2 —H B A 7R B %
BERAG(RE] - ER—NANAEFL AR
WERBZRND -%ZRXRINR_TZT+F+ A%
1% - AR R UERFTS IR £372,000,000/8 7T ©
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On 21st June, 2007, the Board resolved to dispose of a
subsidiary, Honnex Development Limited (“Honnex"), which
the Group held 61.22% equity interests. It initially acquired
the shares of Honnex in July 1997. Upon the completion of
the transaction on 31st December, 2007, the Group received
cash proceeds of HK$372 million.
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11.

ERIEREER (F)

E%tﬁ%%%Z%i AECEASEFEHE
EY W HIEIERNE Y ERBE [ERIEKELER

Z$¢E@%FJ RIVERFIEHE 2 EEHRBE

EREEBRLE % g %536,490,00078 JT °

FIARA B

REARERERADKILEY
52 EEREARSR

A
ENTEBILRET

11.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued)

Revenue and expenses, gains and losses relating to the
discontinued operations have been eliminated from the
Group’s continuing results and are shown as a single line
item on the face of the income statement as “net result
for the year from discontinued operations”. Assets and
liabilities originally classified as held for sale had already
been sold at the balance sheet date resulting in a gain of
HK$36,490,000.

An analysis of the results and cash flows of the discontinued
operations included in the consolidated income statement

W and the consolidated cash flows statement is as follows with
comparatives re-presented:
2008 2007
—EEN\F —ZTTLF

Notes HK$'000 HK$°000

HiaE FET FET
Revenue
WA 5 - 80,371
Other net income
Y 58 6 - 3,924
Fair value loss on investment properties
BREME 2 N HERERE - (86)
Expenses
L3 - (54,643)
Profit before income tax
PSR A - 29,566
Income tax expense
FRS BRI X 10 - (4,927)
Profit for the year from discontinued operations
ERIEREEB ZAFE R - 24,639
Gain on disposal of assets held for sale for discontinued operations
HEBR I FEEEBRHIELEEE G 33.1 - 36,490
Net result for the year from discontinued operations
BRI EER 2 NFEFEE 14 - 61,129
Operating cash flows
BERERE - 59,319
Investing cash flows
REREME - (7,131)
Financing cash flows
MERDRE - (51,716)
Total cash flows
BEERE - 472
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KA RERFRBEABGARAFEREG B A
376,370,000 (ZEF L F : 5571%‘“45 204,000
#7T)  B548317,895,0008 T (Z T T £ 4F : & A
416,652,000/ 70) EMA R 2 M TR ANERE

AEECRENRBEHE_ZTT\FR_FFTL
F+ZRA=+—BIEFEZRE -

RARFEER BRSO EEITAFRRESE (T4
FRAREFEET])  RERTTNFRA=-+=
ARIIBRREM BT GRFERRITERE —HR
MR ATIRREBEER03IIBILITHE  RNET
B—FRNEY - AMBREBHITZHFBEDIA
BfsE27 o

BREX(BE) BADNREAARERSFEE
AFE(EE18376,370,0008 T (ZZZ L F : &F
145,204,000/ 7T) M FAE BT INEFH L BR
1,869,172,265/% (=T =+ : 1,825,308,975/%)

o

u?ro

HRITEANZREZEEEREEXE  QUE
2IBE_TENFt_A=T"HLFEZE
BEEEE AN AREYEABELEEER
A BENBE_FTELF+ _A=1+—H
HFE2BREERTN -
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008
HE—ZTN\F+=-A=+—H

Of the consolidated loss for the year attributable to equity
holders of the Company of HK$376,370,000 (2007: profit of
HK$145,204,000), a loss of HK$317,895,000 (2007: profit
of HK$416,652,000) has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.

The Group had not declared any dividends during the years
ended 31st December, 2008 and 2007.

During the year, the Board has approved an issue of bonus
warrants (“Bonus Warrant Issue”) on the basis of one
warrant for every five shares held by the shareholders whose
names appear on the Register of Members on 23rd May,
2008 at a subscription price of HK$0.33 per share with one-
year term from its issuance. Details of Bonus Warrant Issue is
included in Note 27.

The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share is based
on the loss attributable to equity holders of the Company
of HK$376,370,000 (2007: earnings of HK$145,204,000)
and on the weighted average of 1,869,172,265 (2007:
1,825,308,975) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Diluted loss per share for the year ended 31st December,
2008 was not presented as the impact of the exercise of the
bonus warrant, was anti-dilutive. Diluted earnings per share
for the year ended 31st December, 2007 was not presented
as there were no dilutive potential ordinary shares.



YU MING INVESTMENTS LIMITED
ARG RAT]

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BE 5 i 2% Bk

For the year ended 31st December, 2008
BE_TT\F+-_A=1+—H

14. S& (F8) BF (&) 14. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)
SEKREERRORIEEEERSRER (& The basic (loss)/earnings per share for continuing and
B) BFFEHOT discontinued operations is calculated as follows:
2008 2007
—s2/F bt
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FHET

Consolidated (loss)/profit for the year attributable to the equity holders
of the Company for the purpose of basic (loss)/earnings per share

REERAARHFHEARGEERER(BR) BRI z&s (B18B),af (376,370) 145,204

Net result for the year from discontinued operations (Note 11)

ERIMEEE 2 NFEFEE (MHaE11) - 61,129

Less: Profit for the year attributable to minority interests from discontinued operations

W BRIEREEB L BIRRER NG 2 FEH T - (9,554)
- 51,575

(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to the equity holders of the Company for
the purpose of basic (loss)/earnings per share from continuing operations

ARRESFAEABGREFELEEB ZFE

FREN(EBE) BFz (BE),EF (376,370) 93,629
HK cents HK cents
B JEN

Basic (loss)/earnings per share attributable to equity holders of the Company
for the continuing and discontinued operations

ARRREFBEABEFECEXEBRERIECEXBIRER(BE) BT (20.14) 7.96

Basic (loss)/earnings per share attributable to equity holders of the Company
for the continuing operations

ARREREAEARGHEESLESREREAN(BER) /BT (20.14) 5.13

Basic earnings per share attributable to equity holders of the Company
for the discontinued operations

ANFIEwERA ARG DRI EEBERERRF N/A REH 2.83
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15. EERFBXZ (BREESHL) 15. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (including Directors’
emoluments)

Continuing operations Discontinued operations Consolidated
RFEREER ERIREER wE
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENF —ETAF —EEN\F ZTTLF —EENF —TTLF
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
Basic salaries
EXfe 2,977 1,772 - 618 2,977 2,390
Discretionary bonuses
BYIBTEAL 44 1,741 - 133 44 1,874
Contributions to defined
contribution plans
TR GBI R 95 67 - 19 95 86
3,116 3,580 - 770 3,116 4,350
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ENRENESZMET

The emoluments paid or payable to the Directors were
as follows:

Other
Fees emoluments Total
we HitB & &t
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FHET
Year ended 31st December, 2008
BHE_TZN\F+_A=1+—HL=FE
Executive Directors
WITEF
Lee Wa Lun, Warren (resigned as Managing Director and appointed
as Chairman on 17th March, 2009)
FER (RZEENF=ATLtAFEEFEEEREZEAER) 20 2,590 2,610
Lo King Yau, Edwin
Rt 1 = 1
Wong Tai Chun, Mark* (appointed on 5th December, 2008)
FAY* (R -TEN\F+-_FRBREHE) - - -
Lee Seng HU| (appointed as Chairman on 23rd May, 2008 and resigned
as Chairman and Executive Director on 5th December, 2008)
THRIBR-_ZETE\FRA-_T=-HEZEAERK
REZZEZENFT A ABBHEARAERERNITES) 66 - 66
Non-Executive Directors
EMITES
Arthur George Dew
WERIE 6 - 6
Lee Yip Wah, Peter
TR 20 - 20
Wong Tai Chun, Mark (ceased to act as Alternate Director to
Arthur George Dew on 5th December, 2008)
FTREMR_ZZN\F+_ARBRIEETANEEAZEETES) — = —
Fung Wing Cheung, Tony (retired as Chairman and
Non-Executive Director on 23rd May, 2008)
B (RZZEENFRAZT= Es&&#ﬁﬁ&#%ﬂﬁé%) 20 - 20
Fung Yiu Fai, Peter (resigned on 23rd May, 2008)
BRE (R -—EEN\ERA—+=ABE) 20 - 20
Chan Kin (resigned on 18th January, 2008)
Rz (M= N\EFE— A+ /\BEHE) - - -
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BYIEMITES
So Shu Fai, Ambrose
EiaE 20 - 20
Albert Ho
fATHfR AR 70 - 70
Lam Tak Yee* (appointed on 23rd May, 2008)
mEE (RZZEENFAA - T=BEZE) - - -
Chow Yu Chu, Alexander (resigned on 23rd May, 2008)
BAFER-ZBN\FHA - +=BEE) 120 - 120
363 2,590 2,953
d EMEREAEERFTRAFE RS E8E A * Subject to shareholders’ approval in the forthcoming

BT TAEEERBERRLOIELKRE
EWETFF20,0008 0 MHE_ZTZTN\F
+TZA=+—BLEFEL,5008 T °

# EMGERREBERFBFAS LM AEZ
AR T MEEXLIEAERRBE_ZTTN
FH+_ A=+t HALFERREEREH
43,000/ 7T °

annual general meeting, Mr. Wong Tai Chun, Mark
will entitle to receive a director’s fee of HK$20,000
per annum on a pro-rata basis, i.e. approximately of
HK$1,500 for the year ended 31st December, 2008.

# Subject to shareholders’ approval in the forthcoming
annual general meeting, Ms. Lam Tak Yee will entitle to
receive a director’s fee of approximately HK$43,000 for
the year ended 31st December, 2008.
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16. EEFMRSREBEAEME (&) 16. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (continued)

161 EEMES —HITESRIFHTES (F) 16.1 Directors’ emoluments — Executive Directors and

Non-Executive Directors (continued)
EfEEMNESZMemT The emoluments paid or payable to the Directors were

as follows:
Other

Fees emoluments Total
we HEh e &a&t
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT FET

Year ended 31st December, 2007
BE_ZZ+F+_-_A=1+—HLHFE
Executive Directors
HWITE
Lee Wa Lun, Warren
THEG 1,158 1,771 2,929
Lee Seng Hui (re-designated from Non-Executive Director
on 30th November, 2007)
ERB (R EELE+— A=+ B mERTEERE) 70 = 70
Lo ng Yau, Edwin (appointed on 30th November, 2007)
?E(E’\_Egt +—A=1+BEZE) - - -

Non-Executive Directors
FEHITEE
Fung Wing Cheung, Tony (re-designated from
Executive Director on 30th November, 2007)
Bk (R_EELF+—-A=+H EE%%TT§$E&1£) 20 - 20
Fung Yiu Fai, Peter (re-designated from Executive Director
on 1st June, 2007)
ISR E (EA_EﬁtE/\ﬂ HEMITEFAT) 20 = 20
Arthur George Dew (appointed on 30th November, 2007)
REE(MR_ZEZLF+—A=+HERE) = = =
Lee Yip Wah, Peter

20 - 20
Wong Tai Chun, Mark (appointed on 30th November, 2007
as Alternate Director to Arthur George Dew)
FRH(RZBZLF+ A= +EI§%§E7%ZME/£Z**E§$) = = =
Chan Kin (appointed on 21st June, 2007 and resigned
on 18th January, 2008)
B%&(EA_;TEJCE/\H THERER
RZZZENFE— A+ N\HEE) = = =
Yeh V-Nee (appointed on 1st March, 2007 and
resigned on 21st June, 2007)
ZhE R-TTLE-A-BREAR
RZBEZLFRXAZ+—HEE) = = =
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BIUENITES
So Shu Fai, Ambrose
3yt 20 - 20
Chow Yu Chu, Alexander
AFE& 120 - 120
Albert Ho
fal R AR 70 - 70
1,498 1,771 3,269
RAEERNTEI Y THBETEERESRZ N There was no arrangement under which a Director waived or
EEMBE - agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.
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16. EEFMRSREEAENE ()

162 AUESHMA L

AEEAEEAUGESHFMALTEREORE
E2(CZTLF W) HMESRBREL
BAOMA - B~ (ZFF L5 =) &
BARFENFHMAT :

16.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (continued)

16.2 Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group for the year included four (2007:
two) Directors whose emoluments are reflected in the
analysis presented above. The emoluments payable to
the remaining one (2007: three) individual(s) during the
year are as follows:

Continuing operations Discontinued operations Consolidated
BEREXK BRIEREER e
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENE ZETAF —EEN\F ZTTLF —EEN\EF —TTLF
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET FETT FET FET FET
Basic salaries
EXRF & 114 264 - 602 114 866
Discretionary bonuses
BB IEAT 44 22 - 133 44 155
Contributions to defined
contribution plans
TR RET B R 5 15 - 19 5 34
163 301 - 754 163 1,055

BT R (ZTEZ2LF: =ZF) AL ZEEN
T [Z % 1,000,0008 7T | 2B & ARIR -

REBEE_ZZNF+-_A=+—HILFE
AN AREYEANESTIHR T2 (ZFFTL
FriZB)REFALINME  ERIAK
RINAR KB 2 REY S REBAE -

The emoluments of the remaining one (2007: three)
individual(s) fell within the emolument band of “Nil —
HK$1,000,000".

During the year ended 31st December, 2008, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the Directors
or the remaining one (2007: three) highest paid
individual(s) as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
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17. RMBARKRE FEW (X)MB AT HE 17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNTS DUE
FROM/(TO) SUBSIDIARIES

&N 7 COMPANY
2008 2007
—EENE —ETF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Unlisted shares, at cost
FEEMRG - KB 1,503 1,503
Less: Impairment loss recognised
B BERFEREE (103) (103)
1,400 1,400
Amounts due from subsidiaries
JE LS BT 8 A IR IE 1,290,996 1,178,053
Less: Impairment loss recognised
B BERFEREE (716,386) (397,015)
Portion due within one year included under current assets
HIVERBY & EE 2 —F N EIEER 1D 574,610 781,038
Amounts due to subsidiaries, due within one year included
under current liabilities
HEREN B E 2 —FAREIE 2 KB A RFIA (7,424) (247,656)
Y (R)MBARRBRERR 28 REAR The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured,
ERBEEZE Al BERESEARATHEE/ interest free and repayable on demand. Accordingly, the
(BfE) - amounts are classified as current assets/(liabilities).
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17. RBRRARE EW (XR) M E 2R KE

(%)

AnE (FE)

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNTS DUE
FROM/(TO) SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

COMPANY (continued)

U TAITENBARR-ZEENFt+_A=1+— Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31st December,
HZz15 2008 are as follows:
Place/Country of Percentage of
incorporation and Particulars of issued capital held Principal activities and
Name kind of legal entity issued share capital by the Company place of operations
ML ERARRL
AR ER BEXREEREER BRITRARE BERTREABMHL TEEBRERLE
Directly Indirectly
=k %
Asia Vision Holdings Limited Hong Kong, 2 ordinary shares of 100% = Investment holding,
limited liability company HK$0.01 each Hong Kong
SMEIRERERAR B 2REBAT REZK
BEREELR BREE0.01ET B
Capital Sharp Investment Limited Hong Kong, 2 ordinary shares of 100% = Investment holding,
limited liability company HK$1 each Hong Kong
ERREBFRAA B 2BRE BT RERK
BREERAA BREEVET 0
Contana Investment Limited Hong Kong, 2 ordinary shares of 100% = Investment holding,
limited liability company HK$1 each Hong Kong
RHAREEB AT B 2REBAT REER -
BREERAA BREEVET 0
CMS Investments Limited Hong Kong, 1 ordinary share of 100% = Investment holding,
limited liability company HK$0.01 each Hong Kong
B TRE B - REZK
BEREEAR BREE0.01ET EE
The Hong Kong Equity Guarantee Hong Kong, 2 ordinary shares of 100% = Investment holding,
Corporation Limited limited liability company HK$1 each Hong Kong
B 2REBAT REZK
BREEAA BREEVET 0
Long Rainbow Limited Hong Kong, 2 ordinary shares of 100% = Investment holding,

AHBEERAA]

limited liability company
B
BREERAA

HK$1 each
2REER
SREEET

Hong Kong
REER -
EE
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Name

NEEE

Long Scene Limited

HEBRDAE

Long Set Investments Limited

HAREAERAT

Long Resources Limited

ERARDAE

Longson Limited

HERERAT

Mix Limited

Odelon Limited

B AR A

Place/Country of
incorporation and
kind of legal entity
ML
BEXREEREER

Hong Kong,
limited liability company

Bk

Hong Kong,
limited liability company

Bk

Hong Kong,
limited liability company

Bk

Hong Kong,
limited liability company

Bk

Hong Kong,
limited liability company

Bk

Hong Kong,
limited liability company

Bk

EFZERA ERIBZARFRMBRRAHAE

B AFEXEREERE

YERFEECER

B -BEFERA JNEHEMHBRARFERE

BEPBNITE -
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Particulars of
issued share capital

ERITRAHE

2 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each

2REB
BREEIET

2 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each

2REBA
BREEIET

2 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each

2REB
BREEIET

2 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each

2REB
BREEIAET

1,400,000 ordinary
shares of HK$1 each

1,400,000 & &% -
BREAIET

2 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each

2REBA
BREEIET

For the year ended 31st December, 2008

Percentage of
issued capital held
by the Company
ERARRL
BERTREABMHL
Directly Indirectly
=k %

100% =

100% =

100% =

100% =

100% =

100% =

HE-ZTN\F+-A=+—H

Principal activities and
place of operations

TEXBRERLH

Investment holding,
Hong Kong
REZK
B

Investment holding,
Hong Kong
RERK
B

Investment holding,
Hong Kong
RERK
B

Investment holding,
Hong Kong
REZK
EE

Investment holding,
Hong Kong
REZK
EE

Investment holding,
Hong Kong
REZK
EE

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the
results for the year or formed a substantial portion of the
net assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of

excessive length.
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18. MEEE N LS 18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
&t GROUP
2008 2007
—EBN\F i
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Share of net assets
DHEEFE - =
Goodwill
RS 35,964 35,964
35,964 35,964
Loans to associates
REEE A RIRECER - 25,636
35,964 61,600
Less: Impairment loss
B FERhES IR (35,964) (61,600)

AR ERTEER  2FERILE

o o}
=

i T
5
el

RBERRZEERABRER_-_ZSERF+=
BA=+—BItEEKRE— F'aﬁHﬁ‘ﬁ*’*“TFfrF‘iZPﬁ
£35,964,000/8 5t (ZZ Z £ : 35,964,000/%

L) BERAE_FTLFR_TTN\F+_A

The loans to associates are unsecured, interest free and no

fixed terms of repayment.

Included in the cost of investments in associates was
goodwill of HK$35,964,000 (2007: HK$35,964,000) arising
on acquisition of an associate during the year ended 31st
December, 2005. There was no movement of goodwill

= t—RIEFETEZE HREEEMGMRAOT during the years ended 31st December, 2007 and 2008, and
its carrying amount is summarised below:
2008 2007
—EEN\F —TTLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
At 1st January and 31st December
R—A—HBERT=ZA=+—H
Gross amount
#E 35,964 35,964
Accumulated impairment
E e (35,964) (35,964)

Carrying amount

FREE
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18. RNEt&E RN R (&) 18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
NEH(E) GROUP (continued)
RZEENE+_B=1+—H U FIRBEBEZ As at 31st December, 2008, the following list contains
BMENT BEERAX LB AEZTEENAE the associates of the Group which in the opinion of the
B EEZBEREEALE BEERE  Hafil Directors, principally affect the results for the year or the
HiEt S AN aBERIREHR AN ERTTE - net assets of the Group. To give details of other associates
would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of
excessive length:
Group’s
Particulars of Country of equity
Name issued shares held incorporation Principal activities interest
BEERITRG rEEZ
=8 2 FF1E = B 32 B R FTEEK BAfER
Oriental Cashmere Limited 2,000 ordinary shares British Virgin Islands Manufacturing and trading 25%
of US$1 each of cashmere products
2,000/ ¥ @ A% - RERZES FREREENRED
FREEIET
BEREERARER DA EEMEN B ER The summarised financial information in respect of the
WHFWAT - interests in associates attributable to the Group is set out
below:
2008 2007
—EEBN\F —TTLF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Total assets
BERE 34,479 40,654
Total liabilities
BERE (68,031) (93,018)
Revenue
WA 73,996 50,299
Loss for the year
REZER (3,666) (2,401)
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19. AAIRHENBEE 19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS
rEE GROUP
2008 2007
—EENE —ETF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Non-current
FETRED
Listed equity and debt securities (Note 19.1)
EkRARERES (MEE19.1) 53,751 39,104
Unlisted equity and debt securities (Note 19.2)
EETRAREBES (H7119.2) 22,005 15,599
75,756 54,703
Current
E
Unlisted debt securities (Note 19.2)
FEMEBES (FizE19.2) - 1
Total
= 75,756 54,704

AHHERBEENATIIEEEE

Available-for-sale financial assets are denominated in the

following currencies:

2008 2007
—EENE —ETLF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FAET FET
HK dollar
&I 47,723 38,494
Renminbi
AR 6,028 =
US dollar
Ew 22,005 15,617
UK pound
ES - 593
75,756 54,704

Annual Report 2008 95
~ % 2 )4 #H




YU MING INVESTMENTS LIMITED
BEBEAHRAF

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 255 ¥ 3% Mf wE

For the year ended 31st December, 2008
BE_TT\F+-_A=+—H

19. AIHHENKESE (&) 19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS
(continued)

REE (E) GROUP (continued)
191 ETBRARSERERES 19.1 Listed equity and debt securities
2008 2007
—EEN\F —TTLF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Listed equity and debt securities
FHBRAE S REBHES
— Listed in Hong Kong
-&‘EL™M 28,375 38,494
— Listed outside Hong Kong
- BB T 25,376 610
53,751 39,104
Market value of listed equity and debt securities
LA RERES 2T HEE 53,751 39,104
REBFZATFEDZEEZRMISNEER Fair values for these securities have been determined
ZHEEREBE ° by reference to their quoted bid prices at the balance

sheet date in an active market.

I ERBEERERZ Y RERRINERR 2 These financial assets are subject to financial risk
B 7% LB o exposure in term of price and currency risks.
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HE=

TT\F+=-A=+—H

RZBBENF+ZA=+—BRLETRAR
BRESFERREFBET :

FEREBFMA - HRG R R AT ER

(D AER © 00271) » F4EE B EH B
ANERBERERME  TREWEEE &
BRI RBFHFEE -

R-_EENE+-_A=+—8 A&£EH
652,876,000 AR (Z T £ F -
52,370,0000%) - k48 B 317 Ak £4.66%
(ZZETLF:461%) X REEBAAR
#/19,000,0008 L (ZEELF N A
19,000,000/ 7T) ° & W AR W ELAR B © 1B
BEAAR-_ZZNFNA=+HZHHR
G HBREREELOREEREERMNA
213,000,000 7T * R E KR ZF 218.747%8
e RZTBEENFANA=1TH  FAZKLE
EAZIGAFEEY A2,456,000,000/8 7T © A
—EENFEF+_A=1+—8  AEERHAE
Z B MELA15,000,0008 T (T +
F : 47/36,000,000/8 ) M AR A+ KI&E
ch

Particulars of the major investment in listed equity and
debt securities at 31st December, 2008 is as follows:

Dan Form was incorporated in Hong Kong and the
shares of which are listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 00271). Dan Form,
through its subsidiaries, invests in and develops
properties and also provides estate management,
financing services, and trades securities.

As at 31st December, 2008, the Group held
52,876,000 shares (2007: 52,370,000 shares) in Dan
Form, representing 4.66% (2007: 4.61%) interest
in the issued share capital of Dan Form and carrying
book cost was approximately HK$19 million (2007:
approximately HK$19 million). No dividend was
received during the year. Based on the interim report
of Dan Form at 30th June, 2008, the unaudited
consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of
Dan Form was HK$213 million with basic earnings per
share of HK18.74 cents. As at 30th June, 2008, the
unaudited consolidated net assets of Dan Form were
approximately HK$2,456 million. As at 31st December,
2008, the market value of the Group’s investment in
Dan Form was approximately HK$15 million (2007:
approximately HK$36 million) and Dan Form is one of
the top ten investments.

Annual Report 2008
~F F N FE FE W

97



98

YU MING INVESTMENTS LIMITED
B 8 A PR A ]

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19. AR HEMBEE ()

REE (&)

191 EmRAFE SR ELES (F)

FHRBRERLOA ZATRRES

RZZEZNF+—AZE_ZTTNF+_AH
M AEERBEHIERERERAE ([
HAREE) 2 —BE2EWB AR ([EITAD
1T 2 N % #A%E 546,000,000 TR -
—MENANAREZEZE A BRBKRES -
BITATE—_SE——FXBMNB%EIHNAE
A AT BE R BB Bl EUR2E R A3.618 2 Fra K3 1n
ABMRESRREBEE  BITABSRER
5 (E28.37%ERIES - AEEAIR - —N
EFRA-+HAMBERItAREERY
AR (E26.7848 1T fF AR HE -

it SRR B S T A AL, H B A BB 22 P AR
EHERG RS : 00017) « #FtEFR R —RIKE
ERAR ZAR - BREMBAR - TER
EMERERER AGHTIR  REEMH-
ERBEARLYE BARE BELE GBS
REBKERER KB BEEK-
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19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS
(continued)

GROUP (continued)
19.1 Listed equity and debt securities (continued)

Convertible Bonds of New World Development
Company Limited

During the period from November 2008 to December
2008, the Group subscribed for the zero coupon
convertible bond with an aggregate principal amount
of HK$46 million issued by a wholly-owned subsidiary
(the "lIssuer”) of New World Development Company
Limited (“New World Development”), with maturity
on 4th June, 2014. The Issuer may at any time after
4th June, 2012 and prior to maturity redeem all and
some only of the convertible bonds with a gross yield
of 3.60% per annum and upon maturity, the Issuer will
redeem the bonds with the redemption premium at
28.37%. The Group may exercise conversion rights at
any time up to 25th May, 2014 at a conversion price
of HK$26.784 for one ordinary share of New World
Development.

New World Development was incorporated in
Hong Kong and its shares are listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 00017).
New World Development is an investment holding
company. It, through its subsidiaries, is principally
engaged in property investment and development,
contracting, provision of services, infrastructure
operations, telecommunication services, department
store operations, hotel and restaurant operations and
telecommunications, media, technology businesses.
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HE=

TT\F+=-A=+—H

RZZTENF+_A=1+—8 x&£EHE
18 A46,000,000/%8 7T 2 1 t 7 2 R ] i
BEH ([t RATMKRES]) REE@mHKR
#9/525,000,0008 T (Z T LF - ) - 1B
Bttt AR —_ZENF+=_A=+—HZ
FHEERNE  HBRERBABGREEZ
47 A 5 18 /3992,000,0005 Tt © 5 I K &K 2
BERNEIBAEI28B L - RZEZEN\F+=
A=+—H HttABER I RAEEZEETF
& #)/470,399,000,0008 L c R=ZZZEN
F+_A=1+—8 RIFERATBRERESR
EvEHFEORATBKRAESRSOD ZTES

BI#) 425,000,000 L (ZEZ+F : 8) &

700,000 L (ZE T F + &) - it 7 A
BREHFBTAREEZ— -

REEFBERB RN LT o[ #RER T
EOES BEMENTEFOERIE - A
RS & 5 A1 42102.27% 2 128.37 % & B & i#%
RZE——FNAZE_ZT—NFNAFH -

AmRESD RMEAKEN - EHFBH R
AR SERSD  c ARBEEHESHN DB
RAHHENEEE R AT R AR D D8
RUTEMBTHE -

As at 31st December, 2008, the Group held the
convertible bonds of New World Development
("New World Convertible Bonds”) with nominal
value of HK$46 million and carrying book cost of
approximately HK$25 million (2007: Nil). Based on
the interim results announcement of New World
Development at 31st December, 2008, the unaudited
consolidated loss attributable to equity holders of
New World Development was HK$992 million with
basic loss per share of HK$0.28. As at 31st December,
2008, the unaudited consolidated equity attributable
to equity holders of New World Development
were approximately HK$70,399 million. As at 31st
December, 2008, the market value of the debt element
and derivative element of the Group’s investment in
New World Convertible Bonds were approximately
HK$25 million (2007: Nil) and HK$0.7 million
respectively (2007: Nil). New World Convertible Bonds
is one the top ten investments.

The Group holds convertible redeemable bonds listed
in Hong Kong and Singapore with fixed interest range
from 0% to 1% per annum. The convertible bonds are
redeemable at 102.27%-128.37% and will mature
from June 2012 to June 2014.

The convertible bonds are separated into two
components: the debt element and the conversion
options element. The Group has classified the debt
element as available-for-sale financial assets and the
conversion options element as derivative financial
instruments.
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19. IR LEMBEE (H)

REE (F])

19.1 EmRAFE SR EE RS (8)

BRI RRES (5

BB ESGHERMER 2 TARBRET

(1)

BEHFHBRIERA BIREAFERERK
BEEREEEBEREZAFEZSHT2
BEERBRAGER BEEABRESE
HoR_FEZNF+—_A=+—8 &
HEHoy 2 NFEL A37,787,0005 7T ¢
W BIEME Rz W R 2 KRB
SHERBANEECZREMmME -
N2 BEEERAIRIEFETAK
FIpEHEEEE R N\F+=
A=+—8 BFHFHN2EERENT
12.09% %= 14.58% ° EH A FETHIE
B EEGEMEEFEGRA R (E
EHE]DETE -
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19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS
(continued)

GROUP (continued)

19.1 Listed equity and debt securities (continued)

Debt Securities — Convertible Bonds (continued)

The methods and assumptions applied for the valuation
of the convertible bonds are as follows:

(1)

Valuation of debt element

The debt element is recognised at fair value
at date of initial recognition and subsequent
measurement with fair value change at each
reporting date recognised directly in equity
until the convertible bond is sold. As at 31st
December, 2008, the fair value of the debt
element is approximately HK$37,787,000 which
was calculated based on the present value of
contractually determined stream of future cash
flows discounted at the required yield, which
was determined with reference to bond issuers
of similar credit rating and remaining time to
maturity. The effective interest rates of the debt
element at 31st December, 2008 range from
12.09% to 14.58%. The fair values of the debt
element have been determined by a firm of
independent professional valuers, Greater China
Appraisal Limited (“GCA").
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19. THEEMBEE (])

REE (&)
191 EmRAREREHEZ (8)
B SE - RRES (B
() PTET AL IEE
ITETAmDEERRRAFERER

kR ®REEBRA ZAFEZBT

ERA-—EAMEEERAHITETAY
METHE BAZRAZHEENT :

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS
(continued)

GROUP (continued)
19.1 Listed equity and debt securities (continued)
Debt Securities — Convertible Bonds (continued)
(i) Valuation of derivative element
The derivative element is recognised at fair
value at initial recognition and subsequent
measurement with fair value change at each
reporting date recognised in income statement.
Binomial Option Pricing Model is used for
valuation of derivative element. The inputs into

the model are as follows:

Convertible bonds mature in

AIERES Z2H B
2012 2013 2014

=R—-F =2—= —=—MEF
Stock price (HK$)
RZEEH (BT 2.36 2.08 7.86
Expected volatility
TEERR B 1 55.87% 36.57% 49.28%
Risk free rate
4 [, b = 0.92% 1.12% 1.19%
Time to maturity (years)
B HRE R (4F) 3.45 4.42 5.43
Expected dividend yield
T8 AR AR B M am 2.54% 18.36% 5.47%

TETAMOZAFERBLEXGEEME
EFEET -

The fair values of the derivative element have
been determined by a firm of independent
professional valuers, GCA.
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19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS
(continued)

GROUP (continued)

19.2 Unlisted equity and debt securities

2008 2007
—BBNE —EBLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Unlisted equity and debt securities, at cost

FELETRARERES @ BEK 15,584 15,584

Unlisted equity and debt securities, at fair value
FELETRARERES - BATE 6,421 16
22,005 15,600

AR E B B D BR 2 3F | T AR AR R (R 75
HHE - RRNERMSYERERAEZ QYT
ERFHERNIEER UEEERR/ER
FETREAENE - AKEHIARNATERLR
KEHBREFNRE -

RZEZENFEFTZA=+—HRIELETRA
REBEFZIERNREFENOT

FREDHNKEES ((HEREEL])

MBEES I ERENEEREAREER
AMAER MBEESTERENR ETRAK
WD  BAERRR  HMBRARKES
TAXENMEE MAETSEREDRE R
FIRFREARKMBE(THE]) - RZFFN
Ft-A=1+—H #HBEESHTARE
Z—o

R-IZBENFE+-_A=+—0 AEEHFEF
i EH St 000,000 E TR (ZEE+
£ 1 1,000,000% 70) ° F A A £ Y ERAE 0] i
B -RZZENF+_A=+—"H RIMEE
HEWE 2 EARRE#£4/51,700,000E 7T ©
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The unlisted equity and debt securities stated at cost
less impairment losses are the securities with no
quoted market prices in active markets and the range
of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that
the Directors are of the opinion that their fair value
cannot be measured reliably. The Group plans to hold
these investments for the foreseeable future.

Particulars of the major investments in unlisted equity
and debt securities at 31st December, 2008 is as
follows:

Sun Hung Kai Asian Opportunities Fund (“SHK
Fund”)

The SHK Fund is structured as a Cayman lIslands
exempted limited partnership. SHK Fund primarily
invests in listed or unlisted shares, equity loan notes,
other equity or debt instruments or physical assets,
covering markets including Hong Kong, Macau and
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). As at
31st December, 2008, SHK Fund is one of the top ten
investments.

As at 31st December, 2008, the Group held US$2
million interest (2007: US$1 million) in SHK Fund.
No dividend was received during the year. As at 31st
December, 2008, the capital account balance of the
investment in SHK Fund was approximately US$1.7
million.
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19. A HERBEE (&) 19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

REE (&)
192 k EmRAREHEZ (H)

Springs China Opportunities Feeder
Fund - A# &R %l ([ Springs China Fund])

Springs China Fund& — RS B MK
N ERRPEABAIZREGR QT - Springs
China Fundx= Z#%EREH L HR KA EX
PE E AR RBR% - BT RATE ©

R-ZBENE+-_A=+—8 AE£EEFE
10,000/%Springs China Fundf s (ZZEZ+
1 10,000/% & 1) K BRI AK 48 41,000,000
ET(ZZTZT L4 :1,000,000E7T) ° FRX
BEKRTARKRE R_ETNF+=A
=+—8  A&BRMSprings China Fundi% &
AR EZE EFEAHIS00,000E T (=ZF
T L4 : #/41,300,000%7T) °

20. REEZEHRE

(continued)
GROUP (continued)
19.2 Unlisted equity and debt securities (continued)

Springs China Opportunities Feeder Fund, Class A
Unrestricted (“Springs China Fund”)

The Springs China Fund is an exempted open-ended
investment company with limited liability incorporated
in the Cayman Islands. Springs China Fund primarily
invests in Hong Kong listed H-shares and the PRC listed
A-shares and B-shares, covering different industries.

As at 31st December, 2008, the Group held 10,000
shares (2007: 10,000 shares) in Springs China Fund
and carrying book cost was US$1 million (2007: US$1
million). No dividend was received during the year. As
at 31st December, 2008, the unaudited net asset value
of the Group’s investment in Springs China Fund was
approximately US$0.8 million (2007: approximately
US$1.3 million).

20. HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS

2008 2007
—BBNE —EBLF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Guaranteed notes — listed debt securities
BRERERE - EmERHS 7,648 =

EIS B S BRI BB SETEFR AFFS5.25
EMR-_ZE—AFtA-THEBPZERE A&
ESLFREERTE - BESF AR
ERHCEEERTYEZELES 2 EAER
7 FBBBZEBaa2 °

RZZBZENF+_A=+—0 AEREEZA
FEIARBEEEAEERTR - AFEZEBSE
NREBRZBEMETE °

The debt securities represent notes denominated in US dollar
with fixed interest rate of 5.25% per annum and mature
on 20th July, 2015. The Group receives related interest
payments semi-annually. The debt securities are neither past
due nor impaired and are issued by corporate entities with
credit rating ranging from BBB to Baa2.

As at 31st December, 2008, the fair values of the
guaranteed notes are not materially different from their
carrying amounts. Fair values are determined by reference to
published price quotation.
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Trade receivables
15 PR IR
Other receivables
A IR
Prepayment

N RIA

2 5 W E AR L E). Bridge Corp. (—KiZH
TEBIRI MR R RELFRBAE IR ETAF])
(T). Bridge ) FrEs17 2 3R #EE (). BridgesR & &
FEDMEAZ BUGRIE - HER BRI BIARE
SHAL AR BB B (1A ) FI K o

RZZEZENF+—A+=AKR=ZZEZENFE+—A
+AB: ARF—HE2EHRBAR([EA]) BB
YRARARREBEALZE=ZAUTER]D 55
AY—HEEHBRE - EHERHE (H&]) X
SN BB N\EFE+-_A=+—B (=B =
Ko RIBEZZEWZE - B 5 %MK {E9,375,000% T
([HR{B ) B E45,000%E (1), BridgemRIAERE (45
ERBEE]D  ZREUTIAHFAZA

(a) M FERK H B 44,000,000% 7T
(by MEKBER—BATR  SBEAEEAINKE
H =D E K 146,000,000% 7T ;

(0 MEKBER_-_BATAH BFAELEANKE
K= LB & 18,000,000% 7T : &

Annual Report 2008
—FF )N E B

For the year ended 31st December, 2008
HE—ZTN\F+=-A=+—H

2008 2007
—2TNF “ETLF
HK$000 HK$000
FRT FABT
58,305 =
19,440 1,037
185 =
77,930 1,037

Trade receivable represents the amount receivable arising
from the disposal of warrants (“J. Bridge Warrants”) issued
by J. Bridge Corp., a company incorporated under the Law
of Japan and listed on the second section of Tokyo Stock
Exchange (”J. Bridge”). It is stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less impairment losses, if any.

On 13th November, 2008 and 19th November, 2008, a sale
and purchase agreement and a supplemental agreement
(the "Agreements”) had been entered into respectively
between a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (the
“Vendor”) and a third party (the “Purchaser”) independent
of the Company and its connected persons. The transaction
was completed on 31st December, 2008 (the “Completion
Date”). According to the Agreements, the Purchaser had
bought 45,000 units of J. Bridge Warrants (the “Sales
Warrants”) at a consideration of US$9,375,000 (the
“Consideration”), which was to be satisfied in the following
manner:

(a) as to US$4 million payable upon the Completion Date;

(b) in aggregate with all previous payments, at least US$6
million shall have been paid on the first anniversary day
of the Completion Date;

(c) in aggregate with all previous payments, at least US$8
million shall have been paid on the second anniversary
day of the Completion Date; and
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(d) ‘%ﬁﬂ%ﬁzﬁ%iﬂﬁzm%%mﬁﬁ
TOIN AR REZHBRE

WMEFR ERAREREAN AR AESH
TR HHR A MR 2 SOB R 3B 2 S R 2 8%
YLt % -

REKBH EBIREERREZIUNEFT AR
AA VEZRBREBFAERBI Z2EEZRK

HRBEARKRITEHERREZE ZEH([TE
XD UFEEEEIANRE - HRENL%ZZE
4,000,000 TEHRHEFRRABHATES °

BRTEHERREES
Ao

32 R ER

WMEFHEXEAMGRESE  BEARE  £ETEE
ERAERESMEE 2R ERRERIEEZ
ERT  BABEEIKELEEI M ZRER
REEBHER REAMESBELEEDBAK
E1H&E - RAE S BRTE X - AFEEHT
CERRBRREEBUINAREERREE 2 &
ATFES - WMEFREHZRERIFEHEHE
AEEYHREESTE L BPERN A HERRE
BHKZEEXH REEFEITERZEF - R
—ZETENE+-A=+—H ' J.Bridgel&H 2B
A16B B RHERRER 21T E RB45HE - 8
ERIEE 2 EE—MBE).Bridgef& 7 2 T {8 MK
o HL HERBREZ 2EBENEAEDE W
).Bridgef& {3 2 T EE R HE RIREE ZITERE -

(d) as to the remaining balance of the Consideration after
early payment adjustment as set out below payable on
or before the third anniversary day of the Completion
Date.

Should the Purchaser pay the Consideration before the
above payment schedule, the Consideration will be adjusted
for payment received earlier than scheduled at a rate of 8%
per annum over the amount so paid.

At Completion Date the Vendor had executed transfer
forms in respect of the Sales Warrants in favour of the
Purchaser and held the duly executed transfer form together
with relative certificates representing the Sales Warrants
("Escrow Documents”) in escrow pending full payment of
the Consideration. A cheque of US$4 million, representing
42% of the Consideration, was given to the Vendor by the
Purchaser on the same date.

Transfer of custody of the Sales Warrants will take place
upon full payment of the Consideration by the Purchaser.

If the Purchaser is in default of any of the payment sums,
the Purchaser agreed that, without prejudice to any claims
and remedies the Vendor may have against the Purchaser,
the Vendor shall be entitled to forfeit for its absolute use any
payments of the Consideration already made and terminate
the Agreements by notice in writing to that effect to the
Purchaser and release the Escrow Documents to the Vendor
for cancellation of the executed transfer form and for return
of the relative certificates representing the Sales Warrants
to the Vendor. If the Purchaser defaults on the amount
due under the Agreements, the Group's recourse on the
outstanding amount is limited to the Escrow Documents
comprising the Sale Warrants, and legal actions against
the Purchaser. As at 31st December, 2008, the market
price of the share of J. Bridge was JPY16 and the exercise
price of the Sales Warrants was JPY 45. The value of the
Sale Warrants normally fluctuates with that of the market
price of the shares of J. Bridge. Therefore, value of the Sale
Warrants may be nominal if the market price of the shares
of J. Bridge is below that of the exercise price of the Sale
Warrants.
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENT (continued)

GROUP (continued)

At Completion Date, the fair value of the Sales Warrant
was approximately HK$8,170,000. Fair value of the Sales
Warrant has been determined by a firm of professional
valuers, GCA, by using Binomial Option Pricing Model.
The significant inputs into the model were share price of
JPY16, strike price of JPY45, time to maturity of 3.50 years,
volatility of 85.04%, risk-free rate 0.52% and dilutive factor
of 57.54%. The amortised cost of the trade receivable has
been determined by GCA, having taken into consideration of
the effective interest rates, credit rating and default risk of
the Purchaser and the prepayment option.

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables was as follows:

2008 2007
—EEN\F ZETAF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Within one year
—FR 58,305 -

REBBREIEER TR E RRE 2 E 5 B UGIA
ZRREDHTWT

The ageing analysis of the Group's trade receivables that are
neither individually nor collectively considered to be impaired
are as follows:

2008 2007
—EEBN\F ZETAF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

Neither past due nor impaired
REHARE 58,305 -
ZSREBGRIBEARBHASIRE  ZERP L& Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
BB 4940 8% o related to customer for whom there was no recent history of
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22. RAFEIRREERREEZUBEE 22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS
AEHE GROUP
2008 2007
—EEN\F —TTLF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Equity securities held for trading
REEEE 2 RAZ S
Listed in Hong Kong (Note 22.1)
FELW (FF22.1) 228,565 129,831
Listed outside Hong Kong (Note 22.2)
BB T (5£22.2) 56,336 103,886
Market value of listed securities
FHEHzHE 284,901 233,717
Unlisted structured financial products (Note 22.3)
FErmEBtemER (Mit22.3) 14,168 =
Conversion options embedded in convertible bonds (Note 19.1)
HRAFRRRES 2 PTHAEARE (P97E19.1) 3,483 -
Other derivative financial instruments
HEMpTESmT A
Unlisted warrants (Note 22.4)
IE FRMRIER (7522.4) 2,724 42,597
Equity forward contracts (Note 22.5)
REERBAEL (5£22.5) - 10,321
305,276 286,635
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22 MAFEBEIENREEREEEB CHEEE 22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
(&) PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)
AEE (&) GROUP (continued)
BAFEFNENEEBRERE ZMEEENL N Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
HHEETE denominated in the following currencies:
2008 2007
—EEBN\F —TTLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
HK dollar
BT 229,350 140,152
UsS dollar
X 29,033 -
Malaysian ringgit
R oA 28,375 64,243
Australian dollar
BIT 4,372 5,647
Japanese yen
H 4,867 49,514
New Taiwan dollar
Ak 6,581 27,079
Renminbi
ARE 2,698 -
305,276 286,635
LMW BEENEARIEEE - The above financial assets are classified as held for trading.
B HZATFENLEREREER 2B Fair values for the listed securities have been determined
BEE - by reference to their quoted bid prices at the balance sheet
date.
A F{EE18398,915,0008 L (ZTZT+F : &n Fair value loss of HK$398,915,000 (2007: gain of
39,971,000 70) E RS B BRTER © HK$39,971,000) has been recognised in the consolidated

income statement.
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RIEENF+ A=+ —HZEAREL
AAEEREEXRER TARREZFHFBOT

BN E B ML - M) HOBE P
R (R RSE - 00388) - BRAER K
REBBZBMIARMER S URKE
R EE AT -

R-BENE+-_A=1+—8 A&£BEEEH
590,000 B XTI (ZEZT+F : &) -
MABXE BITRAL0.05% (ZEZT+
FoE)EEMEEREBERKA% A75,00,000
BIL(ZEELF  E) - FARMZRE
£2,483,0008 L c RBAERXFIRZZEZEN
FH+ZA=ZTHZFHR EBREFTEAR
1l £ 1% 4R & 3% # 55,129,000,000% T
BEREABNAB4TSET - R _BT )\ F
TZA=1TH BRAZEEZGRAEFE
E 49 /57,295,000,000/ 7T c R — T N\ F
+ZA=1+—8 REBEXRFMZRETMENE
43,000,000 L (=TT £F : )

o E R R B R T AR ST, B B £ OB BX AT E AR
£ (B 5% : 00857) » AMA—KP
BREMRAREER - XA A ERmAM
AARZSBHEAERT  BRURKE R
HEEMBEERBMRAR

Particulars of the major investments as at 31st
December, 2008, which are also the top ten
investments in terms of carrying value of the respective
investments, are as follows:

HKEx was incorporated in Hong Kong and its shares
are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 00388). HKEx owns and operates the
stock exchange and futures exchange in Hong Kong
and their related clearing houses.

As at 31st December, 2008, the Group held 590,000
shares (2007: Nil) in HKEx, representing approximately
0.05% (2007: Nil) interest in the issued share capital
of HKEx and the carrying book cost was approximately
HK$75 million (2007: Nil). Dividends of HK$2,483,000
were received during the year. Based on the annual
report of HKEx at 31st December, 2008, the audited
consolidated profit attributable to equity holders
of HKEx was HK$5,129 million with basic earnings
per share of HK$4.78. As at 31st December, 2008,
the audited consolidated net assets of HKEx were
approximately HK$7,295 million. As at 31st December,
2008, the market value of the Group's investment in
HKEx was approximately HK$43 million (2007: Nil).

PetroChina was incorporated in PRC and its shares are
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 00857). PetroChina is a producer of crude oil
and natural gas in China. It is engaged in a range of
petroleum and natural gas related activities, including
the exploration, development, production and sale of
crude oil and natural gas.
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R_ZEENF+=-_A=+—H" ZKEI%%
E5,849,000kF AR H (ZEZELF:
587,000f%) * N AMEEITIRA0.01%
(ZETLF:001%) EZREERBEA K
#4%61,000,0008 T (ZZEZTLF: 40 A
9,000,000/ 7T) ° F MULE 2 f% B A&827,000
BT BBRFAER -_ZEENAE+-_A=1+—
AZFERERE  HRRERHE ABGLEE
iR A m A A AR ¥114,431,000,0007T ¢
EREARBFNAEARK063T - R_ZTZTN
F+-_A=+—HB HAHBHZEEZEEF
BEXNABANRT90,838,000,0007T A=
ENF+-_A=+—8 RPABZEES
{49 £40,000,0008 L (ZZTEZEF N B
8,000,000/ 7T) °

BARBERRASETMA - B REER
FrERET (BRMHMRSE : 01104) Eﬁi:é?/ﬁ
FTERE: (VELALBES (VT EERK
HERES  Rii) LTELAEERKRE -

R-EBEENE+_A=+—8 A£B&EHE
54,000,000 T KERBKH (Z T L F
15,000,0000%) ' {E 2 KR &ERE BEITIRA
1.14% % (ZET+HF 1 0.32%) RERMEK
N #) /59,000,000 L (ZEZTEF A
18,000,000/ JT) ° F A I K U ELAR B - iR
BoAERR-_ZETZNEAZ+HZF
HisRE  ERESAEABRBHEREERLEA
Y% A £259,000,0008 7T * FREKREF A
5478 - R—ZZTEZENFEARNA=+H &K
BRZAREBECZEBRERBEAZEREF
& E#/55,330,000,0008 7L c R ZZEEN
FE+-_A=Z=+—"HB RuKRKERZEEM
£ 49 /418,000,000 L (ZTEZTLF N5
22,000,000/ 7T) ©
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As at 31st December, 2008, the Group held 5,849,000
shares (2007: 587,000 shares) in PetroChina,
representing less than 0.01% (2007: 0.01%) interest
in the issued share capital of PetroChina and the
carrying book cost was approximately HK$61 million
(2007: approximately HK$9 million). Dividends of
HK$827,000 were received during the year. Based on
summary of the 2008 annual report of PetroChina
at 31st December, 2008, the audited consolidated
profit attributable to equity holders of PetroChina was
RMB114,431 million with basic earnings per share of
RMBO0.63. As at 31st December, 2008, the audited
consolidated equity attributable to equity holders of
PetroChina were approximately RMB790,838 million.
As at 31st December, 2008, the market value of the
Group's investment in PetroChina was approximately
HK$40 million (2007: approximately HK$8 million).

APAC Resources was incorporated in Bermuda and
its shares are listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 01104). APAC Resources is
principally engaged in : (i) trading in base metals; (ii)
trading in fabric products and other merchandises; and
(iii) trading and investment of listed securities.

As at 31st December, 2008, the Group held
54,000,000 shares (2007: 15,000,000 shares) in APAC
Resources, representing 1.14% (2007: 0.32%) interest
in the issued share capital of APAC Resources and
carrying book cost was approximately HK$59 million
(2007: approximately HK$18 million). No dividend
was received during the year. Based on the interim
report of APAC Resources at 30th June, 2008, the
unaudited consolidated profit attributable to equity
holders of APAC Resources was HK$259 million with
basic earnings per share of HK5.47 cents. At at 30th
June, 2008, the unaudited consolidated net assets
attributable to equity holders of APAC Resources were
approximately HK$5,330 million. As at 31st December,
2008, the market value of the Group's investment
in APAC Resources was approximately HK$18 million
(2007: approximately HK$22 million).
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I%ﬁE”Z‘IE%Ea%%ﬁi&}\ﬁﬁ%&%%
TR BRI R A B IR 7S 2 SRAITIR TS )2
WEWPI%ETT%%%‘?EE%:A(FfﬂﬁbAJ)
e 2 HADPRTS - A R EUBIME B R 8
m 8 5l 77 B B AR AL 2 AR BR TS -

R_EENF+_A=+—8 x£EH
"ﬁ_5769000Hx(_ T+ 4 : 4,000,000
) TERalRh TR I/ERTE &7
Hﬁﬁo.m%(_??tE TR0.01% ) #
m M HBRE K AN 4 534,000,000 T (=
T T4 4 A27,000,00008 T) - F£ R
U Bz I& £.601,00078 7T ° 1R 1% T 9 4R 17
R_ZEEZNF+_A=+—"BZFEEE
NECEBREREABGEEZES RN
A AR #110,841,000,0007T R EKRE
MEARMOIBTL - R NF+A
=t+—H IARTZIEERGEETFEE
#45 AN R #602,675,000,000t - R - T E
NE+_A=+H RIBHRTZH/ESD
B#) /24,000,000 (ZEEF N A
22,000,000/ 7T) °

ICBC was incorporated in PRC and its shares are listed
on the main board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
01398). The principal activities of the ICBC comprise
the provision of banking services including Renminbi
("RMB") and foreign currency deposits, loans, payment
and settlement services, and other services as approved
by the China Banking Regulatory Commission (the
“CBRC") of the PRC, and the provision of related
services by its overseas establishments as approved by
the respective local regulators.

As at 31st December, 2008, the Group held 5,769,000
shares (2007: 4,000,000 shares) in ICBC, representing
less than 0.01% (2007: less than 0.01%) interest in the
issued share capital of ICBC and the carrying book cost
was approximately HK$34 million (2007: approximately
HK$27 million). Dividends of HK$601,000 were
received during the year. Based on the result
announcement of ICBC at 31st December, 2008, the
audited consolidated profit attributable to equity
holders of ICBC was RMB110,841 million with basic
earnings per share of RMB0.33. As at 31st December,
2008, the audited consolidated equity attributable
to equity holders of ICBC were approximately
RMB602,675 million. As at 31st December, 2008, the
market value of the Group's investment in ICBC was
approximately HK$24 million (2007: approximately
HK$22 million).
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FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

GROUP (continued)
22.1 Equity securities listed in Hong Kong (continued)

Ping An Insurance (Group) Company of China, Ltd.
("Ping An")

Ping An was incorporated in the PRC and its shares are
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 02318). Ping An is a China-based company. It is
engaged in providing a range of financial products and
services with a focus on life and property and casualty
insurance products.

As at 31st December, 2008, the Group held 647,000
shares (2007: Nil) in Ping An, representing less than
0.01% (2007: Nil) interest in the issued share capital
of Ping An and carrying book cost approximately
HK$36 million (2007: Nil). Dividends of HK$211,000
were received during the year. Based on the third
quarterly report of Ping An at 30th September, 2008,
the unaudited consolidated profit attributable to equity
holders of Ping An was RMB1,610 million with basic
earnings per share of RMB0.22. As at 30th September,
2008, the unaudited consolidated equity attributable
to equity holders of Ping An were approximately
RMB81,572 million. As at 31st December, 2008, the
market value of the Group's investment in Ping An was
approximately HK$24 million (2007: Nil).
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Dutaland Berhad is an established public company
listed on the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. Its
group of companies is involved mainly in oil palm
plantations, property development and property
investments.

As at 31st December, 2008, the Group held
22,412,800 shares (2007: 22,148,200 shares) in
Dutaland, representing 3.97% (2007: 3.92%)
interest in the issued share capital of Dutaland and
carrying book cost of was approximately HK$60
million (2007: approximately HK$60 million). No
dividend was received during the year. Based on the
unaudited financial statements of Dutaland for the six
months ended 31st December, 2008, the unaudited
consolidated loss attributable to equity holders of
DutaLland was MYR17 million with basic loss per
share of MYR2.94 sen. As at 31st December, 2008,
the unaudited consolidated net assets attributable to
equity holders of DutaLand were approximately MYR
781 million. As at 31st December, 2008, the market
value of the Group's investment in DutalLand was
approximately HK$22 million (2007: approximately
HK$55 million).

Citigroup Inc. is a global diversified financial services
holding company whose businesses provide a broad
range of financial services to customer and corporate
customers. On 16th January, 2009, Citigroup Inc.
announced a realignment, for management and
reporting purposes, into two businesses: Citigroup,
primarily comprised of its global institutional bank
and international regional consumer bank; and Citi
Holdings, primarily comprised of its brokerage and
asset management business, local consumer finance
business, and a special asset pool. It operates in five
business segments: global cards, consumer banking,
institutional clients group, global wealth management,
and corporate/other.
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FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

GROUP (continued)

22.2

22.3

Equity securities listed outside Hong Kong
(continued)

Citigroup Inc. (continued)

As at 31st December, 2008, the Group held 280,000
shares (2007: Nil) in Citigroup Inc., representing less
than 0.01% (2007: Nil) interest in the issued share
capital of Citigroup Inc. and carrying book cost was
approximately HK$63 million (2007: Nil). Dividends
of HK$1,735,000 were received during the vyear.
Based on the annual report of Citigroup Inc. at 31st
December, 2008, the audited consolidated loss from
continuing operations attributable to equity holders of
Citigroup Inc. was US$32,443 million with basic loss
per share of US$6.42. As at 31st December, 2008,
the audited consolidated net assets of Citigroup Inc.
were approximately US$141,630 million. As at 31st
December, 2008, the market value of the Group's
investment in Citigroup Inc. was approximately HK$15
million (2007: Nil).

Unlisted structured financial products

Fair values for the structured financial products have
been determined by a firm of professional valuers,
GCA, by using the Binomial Option Pricing Model. The
significant inputs into the model were as follows:

MSCI Hang Seng A50 China
Taiwan Index Index Tracker
A50+
EER & EIEE BAEEH EHES
Spot level/stock price
BEKFE,PREBIR 173.37 14,387.50 8.36
Expected volatility
TR HR Eh 1 45.25% 61.17% 85.10%
Risk free rate
R 1.07% 0.07% 0.05%
Time to maturity (years)
F) AR ) (£F) 0.35 0.48 0.36
Expected dividend yield
TE AR B R K 0% 0% 2.21%
Knock-in barrier
BUNELH 225.16 13,672.80 9.36
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22.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

GROUP (continued)

22.3 Unlisted structured financial products (continued)

The above financial instruments are classified as held
for trading.

These financial assets are subject to financial risk
exposure in term of price risk.

22.4 Unlisted warrants

As at 31st December, 2008 , the major terms of the

ZEEERAT : warrants are as follows:

Notional amount Number of options Maturity Underlying stock
EREE BREHE E#H HERZR
JP¥'000

a=!

75,000 15,000 2nd July, 2012 J. Bridge

FIETMRBEBZAFEACKEBHEER
BRI EETEER —_BEAPEETEER
Er -WAZEBEANCEZHEREREI6H
B(ZZZ+4F:408E) - BHB45HE
BIHRMBS3SF (ZEZTLF 1 45F) K@
85.04% (ZZTZ L F :78.05%) * EE K
E0.52% (ZEZTLF:08%) M EER T
57.54% (ZZZT+F : 57.54%) °

—T——-%+HA-H

Fair values for the unlisted warrants have been
determined by a firm of professional valuers, GCA,
by using the Binomial Option Pricing Model. The
significant inputs into the model were share price of
JP¥16 (2007: JP¥40), strike price of JP¥45, time to
maturity of 3.5 years (2007: 4.5 years), volatility of
85.04% (2007: 78.05%), risk-free rate 0.52% (2007:
0.8%) and dilutive factor of 57.54% (2007: 57.54%).
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Notional principal

amount outstanding Maturity

EEARTREAEHE FEA

HK$'000 F7& 7T

A 57,827 6th November, 2008

—E2N\F+—AAA

B 16,542 5th November, 2008

—E2\F+—ARA

C 57,915 7th November, 2008

—TT)\Ft—A+H

D 19,823 7th November, 2008

—TE)\Ft—A+H

E 21,845 7th November, 2008

—TE)\Ft—A+H

F 16,628 7th November, 2008

—TE)\Ft—A+H

G 10,980 7th November, 2008

—TE)\Ft—A+H

H 40,030 3rd December, 2008

—2E\F+-A=H

REANGR  AEEBAERTERE—F2
EZHEBRKBEANIHBERD - ZFAH
TRERYERA o 1 AN KB 2 BE K
NBBERARE REAKE -ZFAH0Z
TREAREHBRERLEE - BANREH
HE —BERERNERKRESIZELSE
ZAMBILAKIE - A HIAERBERD ZE
BREENEHER AEEARBERZ
BEZAKMDEE -
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008
HE—ZTN\F+=-A=+—H

As at 31st December, 2007, the major terms of the
equity forward contracts were as follows:

Underlying stock
EEN I ES

Hong Kong Stock Exchange
7B R

PetroChina

o B A

Hong Kong Stock Exchange
7R

PetroChina

o B 7

China Shenhua

Hh B A

China Merchants

T B R

Bank of China

R EERTT

Ping An Insurance

FRR®

Under the terms of the contracts, the Group was
obligated to acquire the underlying shares of each
contract at a forward price for a year long. The
contracts required no initial cost. Pre-determined
number of shares was accumulated to be acquired
by the Group on a daily basis and they were settled
on monthly basis. The key terms of these contracts
incorporated knock-out and gearing properties. A
knock-out price was set for each contract, once the
daily share price of the underlying shares triggers
the knock-out price, the contract was closed out
immediately. However, if the daily share price of the
underlying share fell below the forward price, the
Group had to acquire double of the pre-determined
daily number of shares.
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BHE—ZTN\F+=-A=+—H
22 BATEIEREEERREECHMEEE

(%&)

REE (&)

225 REEHEN (&)

ERANZAFERREFEZRMBEMS
THAEERFERARR  BRANIES

PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

GROUP (continued)

22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

22.5 Equity forward contracts (continued)

Fair values for the forward contracts were determined
by a firm of professional valuers, GCA, by using the

AEBEOAT : Binomial Option Pricing Model. The significant inputs
into the model were as follows:

Fair value

Share Forward Time to Risk-free Dividend as at 31st

price price maturity  Volatility rate yield December, 2007

—ETLHF

+=-—A=+—H

R E EHE ZHHR RiE ERRE REWKEE RZRAFE

HK$ HK$ Year HK$°000

BT BT F FET

A 221.20 196.61 0.85 46.85% 2.55% 2.70% 4,909
B 13.90 14.67 0.85 42.87% 2.55% 3.21% (1,006)
C 221.20 211.07 0.85 46.85% 2.55% 2.70% 2,120
D 13.90 14.25 0.85 42.87% 2.55% 3.21% (558)
E 46.60 38.59 0.85 51.69% 2.55% 1.28% 1,588
F 31.50 30.76 0.85 38.50% 2.55% 0.49% 612
G 3.78 4.00 0.85 34.50% 2.55% 1.06% (621)
H 83.70 73.03 0.93 50.19% 2.55% 1.00% 3,277
10,321

ZEWBEAETRERTA LM BRR

o

These financial assets were subject to financial risk exposure
in term of price risk.
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RZTTN\F+=-A=+—H " 320,049,000
AL (ZBT L 24,014,000 7)) B2 —
SRIME  (FERBERREAAH (MiE2e) 2K
o

For the year ended 31st December, 2008
HE—ZTN\F+=-A=+—H

As at 31st December, 2008, the deposits of HK$20,049,000
(2007: HK$24,014,000) were paid to a financial institution
to secure settlement for the equity forward contracts (Note
26).

Group Company
AEE PN
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENF ZETLF —EENE —TTLF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET FET
Cash and bank balances
R MIRITHEH 60,334 175,464 1,803 746
Short-term time deposits
%2 BRI BT AR 74,825 476,710 74,825 445,168
Cash and cash equivalents
RekReEEY 135,159 652,174 76,628 445,914

BITFER IR S B R 171F 2R R % F B | R B
BAS - REHEHEFERZHME—BAE=EAT
L BIAKEZHNRBESFTEME  WIRE A
I BT R EFIR0.10% to 4.95% (—EF
+4F : 2.25%F4.75%) BEF S - B E BRFEK
FHRE EERANHTHEINATFERL
BREETEERER -

AEERARFRZRES KRS EEBYRENES
BB 2R E D F AE54,568,0008 T (ZEE+
& : 31,447,000/ 70) % 4,326,0008 T (T T+
FE) REER AEERARRLES AN
B o
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Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposits rates. Short-term time deposits are made
for varying periods of between one day and three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
Group, and earn interest at the respective short-term time
deposits rates of 0.10% to 4.95% (2007: 2.25% to 4.75%)
per annum. The Directors considered that the fair value of
the short-term bank deposits is not materially different from
its carrying amount because of its short-maturity period.

Included in cash and cash equivalents of the Group and the
Company is HK$54,568,000 (2007: HK$31,447,000) and
HK$4,326,000 (2007: Nil) of bank balances denominated
in USD respectively. The Group and the Company did not
have significant exposure to foreign currency risk at 31st
December, 2008.
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25. HttER R R ETER 25. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED EXPENSES
Group Company
rEH b N
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF —EENE —TTLF
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
Other payables and accrued expenses
Hh R N pE B 4,347 21,683 4,347 21,683
RZBEZNF+_A=+—"8 KAEBZHME As at 31st December, 2008, included in other payables
wENEAEROE)R —BBEEQAT ZRES and accrued expenses of the Group were i) amount
2,973,000/ 7T (ZEE+4F : 18,864,000/ 7T) due to a related company amounted to HK$2,973,000
HENERBEBALEYNE ZKIE2,073,000/ 7T (2007: HK$18,864,000) of which HK$2,073,000 (2007:
ZEELF 118,262,000/ 70) ¢ Mii)R — AR HK$18,262,000) represented the unsettled management fee
ZHIE293,0008 T (ZEE+F  E) A S EE and performance fee charged to the Group; and ii) amount
EREAR([BMEER|) RNAEBZEEME) due to a shareholder amounted to HK$293,000 (2007: Nil)
which represents the Directors’ emoluments paid by Allied
Group Limited (“AGL") on behalf of the Group.
FERELETARNRIRZBEARI ZHARESE - Mr. Lee Wa Lun, Warren is the common director of the
RZBEENTIZFBAEEE A RAERNEXK Company and that related company. The amount due to the
REEE - related company is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.
26. EAFEIEREFEEEEEEEZHKEERS 26. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

PROFIT OR LOSS

rE GROUP
2008 2007
—EENE —TTLF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Derivative financial instruments
PTESRIA
Listed put options — USD
ETREEE — Xt - 3,900
Equity forward contracts
BREEH AL 18,089 -
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008
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26. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

GROUP (continued)

As at 31st December, 2008, the major terms of the equity
forward contracts are as follows:

ZEZRGHWT :

Notional principal

amount outstanding Maturity Underlying stock

EEAVREAEH 8B HERER

HK$'000 T 7T

A 927 23rd February, 2009 PetroChina
—ETNF-RA=+=H A

B 1,958 14th April, 2009 Industrial and Commercial

Bank of China

—ZETNFMNA+IHAE TRERTT

@ 1,886 30th April, 2009 PetroChina
—ZETNFMNA=+H A

D 1,808 30th April, 2009 Bank of Communications
—EZNFMNA=TH RIMERAT

E 3,128 4th May, 2009 Industrial and Commerecial

Bank of China

—EZNFHAMA TrReT

F 5,331 6th May, 2009 HSBC Holdings Plc
—ETNFRAKRA EL R

G 2,300 18th May, 2009 PetroChina
—ZETNAEFERATNB A

H 1,945 27th May, 2009 Bank of China
—TTNFRA=+tH HREIERTT

3,121 29th May, 2009 China Life Insurance

—ETNAFRAZTNR hEAE

J 3,978 3rd June, 2009 Ping An
ZEZNFRAZH Fzz

K 2,293 3rd June, 2009 New World Development
—ETNFRA=H it RERE

L 2,148 12th June, 2009 New World Development
—ETNEFERATZH Bt RERE

M 6,509 2nd September, 2009 Bank of Communications
—EZNFNAZH RIMERAT

Annual Report 2008
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008
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RBENEGS  AEEEEKERE—F2EY
BREBESAOZHABRD - ZFAHNTERLY
WA - BHARERBZEERNBEZRBER
B RERARE ZEANZIEIZRAILEER
BRMLEE EANRBELSE —BEREKRNE
BR(ESI & HI5E AR LKL - A
AR D 2B REERRERER AEEAE
WiEEEzZHESARMEE -

Under the terms of the contracts, the Group is obligated
to acquire the underlying shares of each contract at a
forward price for a year long. The contracts require no
initial cost. Predetermined number of shares is accumulated
to be acquired by the Group on a daily basis and they are
settled on monthly basis. The key terms of these contracts
incorporate knockout and gearing properties. A knock-
out price is set for each contract, once the daily share

price of the underlying shares trigger the knock-out price,
the contract is closed out immediately. However, if the
daily share price of the underlying share fall below the
forward price, the Group has to acquire double of the pre-
determined daily number of shares.

Fair values for the forward contracts have been determined
by a firm of professional valuers, GCA, by using the Binomial
Option Pricing Model. The significant inputs into the model
were as follows:

EHAN A TERZEENESZEGEMA 1A
XEERENEEARR EXNEERAZREN
T

Fair value

Share Forward Time to Risk-free Dividend as at 31st
price price maturity Volatility rate yield December, 2008
—BBNE

t=A=+-8

BR{E EHE B HA HA PR B iE 9 [ By 3R [Nl EES ZATE

HKS$ HKS$ Year HK$°000
B BT F FET

A 6.79 9.21 0.15 59.75% 0.02% 4.83% (345)
B 4.08 4.92 0.28 83.76% 0.05% 3.70% (584)
C 6.79 9.44 0.33 92.52% 0.09% 4.83% (966)
D 5.59 9.08 0.33 93.14% 0.09% 5.08% (1,194)
E 4.08 4.99 0.34 85.71% 0.09% 3.70% (957)
F 73.70 123.49 0.35 70.22% 0.09% 9.78% (3,518)
G 6.79 9.21 0.38 87.80% 0.10% 4.83% (1,029)
H 2.12 3.33 0.40 82.20% 0.11% 5.36% (1,278)
| 23.55 24.16 0.41 79.67% 0.11% 2.03% (640)
J 37.50 53.27 0.42 98.22% 0.11% 2.12% (1,855)
K 7.86 15.65 0.42 87.20% 0.11% 5.47% (1,660)
L 7.86 14.86 0.45 85.27% 0.11% 5.47% (1,603)
M 559 6.98 0.67 68.94% 0.14% 5.08% (2,460)
(18,089)

NF(EE 28,410,000 L (Z T + F ¢
10,321,000 70) EREr S B BRER ©

Fair value loss of HK$28,410,000 (2007: gain of
HK$10,321,000) has been recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

R-EENFE+_A=+—RH LA BEAELE The above financial instruments are classified as held

BIEFEEE ZENKEESEERIBE MK for trading as at 31st December, 2008. These financial

JE] o instruments are subject to financial risk exposure in term of
price risk.
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~F F N FE W 121



EBE _TZN\F+_A=+—H0 RARSEH
Hi - RSP R RS iﬁﬁé%’]ﬁ"l—x$ﬁf'ﬁﬂx$ EHLZ
BHAREHERSREZEHENMEENELR -
fWARFRREEME TETRH%%$ CEaRing]
BRAZEMEBGEBEA  R-_ZFTNLF—H
EAREABMLHABRZAZWTENE
WEZERFEEERRRAFEARTERSLHE
N EBARARANEZR IR 288 &EHZeE
B 2 i8R 4> 499,000,000/ 7T © 1B 5 5 45 TEEH
BRUETEEAHZEMBERZZBRAEE
BRIHMBABAZKRELER - &?ﬁ%§ﬂ1
HHP AT —EARRZFRAE %Z“$ﬁ
HHLNEHE A ZKBAZRSERAEST
AEBELERE  TTRIER/RREA Zﬁw

R-BEELF+_A=+—H RBoHEZEE
7ql

T

Notional amount Number of options
BEHE B EZA

US$'000

FET

7,360 2,500

7,360 2,500
RZZT+FE+_A=+—HB RaBEZQF

BEN2ERENEEAZBIEEEE -

R-TEZELF+_A=+—H LM% aEs
BARFER ZESeRIATHERRRTE
Z BT o
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008
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Subsequent to 31st December, 2008, as at the date of this
report, the daily share prices of all the underlying equity
securities under the outstanding equity forward contracts
are below the forward prices set at the respective equity
forward contracts. Had all the underlying equity securities
under these outstanding equity forward contracts been
acquired on the forward price condition at the balance sheet
date, their theoretical net settlement value would decrease
by about HK$9 million based on the daily closing prices at
trade date between 1st January, 2009 and the date of this
report in which the lowest daily aggregate market value of
these underlying equity securities under the outstanding
equity forward contract is recorded. The theoretical net
settlement value is the difference between the daily closing
prices and the forward prices of those contracts multiplied
by the maximum number of shares that has to be acquired
up to the maturity dates of the contracts. These pro forma
information is for illustrative purposes only and is not
necessarily an indication of the fair value change in these
equity securities and results of operation of the Group that
actually would have been achieved had the acquisition of
these equity securities been completed at the balance sheet
date, nor is it intended to be a projection of future result.

As at 31st December, 2007, the major terms of the put
options are as follows:

Maturity Underlying stock
FH R HERE

19th January, 2008 Citigroup Inc.
—ZEENF—-At+hAB fEHER

19th January, 2008 Citigroup Inc.
—ZEZN\F-A+NE TfEHER

Fair values for the put options have been determined by
reference to their quoted prices at 31st December, 2007.

The above financial instruments are classified as held for
trading 31st December, 2007. These financial instruments
are subject to financial risk exposure in term of price risk.
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Authorised:
TERE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each
GREE.1E T EiEAR
At 1st January
—HA—AH
Increase
2 1

At 31st December
R+=A=+—8

Issued and fully paid:
BEITRER
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each
BRREE0 BT E @R
At 1st January
m—HA—H
Exercise of warrants
TR HE B
Issued
1T
Repurchased and cancelled

(o] B8 K2 0T 3K

At 31st December

R+=—A=+—H
FH _TTELELA-_THNBEZERRER,
BSMMO%H FREE BT ZA RN A TR

IARHBE &R0, 66/%71@5?6 °

FER_TTLFET—A-—BZEIRER  RBRE
RZZEZLFNR T BRI EGEHRE R -
ARABAMHGINARBEEFR0.48B T (BLEAH
76,800,000 JT) F’J$ THIJIKHxﬁASM Asia
Recovery (Master) Fund & ASM Hudson River
Fund[el #£160,000,000/R B IR E B0 1B T2 AR
AT B -

I RS () Bt dl, A AR A B BT AE I
B HE AR D < EEAE R L - REBEEBRRIEAIE
4A9HEN, HEFFHERMEEINEZE 2£%16,000,000
BILE HRE AR E B AP ANE D 4 - BBt
A& A9 B 1+ 34 18 60,877,0005% 7T 2 F1 Bk @ B8 % 5% £
DA ARB &R -

2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
Number Number
of shares HK$'000 of shares HK$°000
B2 E FET RirEE FHEIT
2,100,000,000 210,000 2,100,000,000 210,000
900,000,000 90,000 - -
3,000,000,000 300,000 2,100,000,000 210,000
1,869,171,989 186,917 1,691,171,989 169,117
528 - - -
- - 338,000,000 33,800
- - (160,000,000) (16,000)
1,869,172,517 186,917 1,869,171,989 186,917

By an ordinary resolution dated 24th July, 2007,
338,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company of HK$0.1
each were allotted at a subscription price of HK$0.66 each.

By a special resolution dated 2nd November, 2007,
160,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company of HK$0.1
each were repurchased from ASM Asia Recovery (Master)
Fund and ASM Hudson River Fund, former substantial
shareholders of the Company at a subscription price of
HK$0.48 (totalling HK$76.8 million) each in an off-market
manner pursuant to conditional repurchase agreement dated
16th September, 2007.

The repurchased shares were cancelled and accordingly
the issued share capital of the Company was reduced by
the nominal value of these shares. Pursuant to section
49H of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, an amount
equivalent to the par value of the shares cancelled of HK$16
million was transferred from retained earnings to the capital
redemption reserve. The premium paid on the repurchase
of the shares of HK$60,877,000 (inclusive of expenses
of repurchase and cancellation of shares) was charged to

retained earnings. Annual Report 2008
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ARABBRR(BRRDR_ZEENFARA=_+=H
BBANSRERARRKROERE —HRREZEETR
RERZ - NER  TMRBEEAATEAERAZE
300,000,000/ T * % A3,000,000,0000% & i &
B0. 17 T2 &t -

RREBFEATRE-_ETNFAA=-TNH
E_ZTNAFRA-_tN\B(BEEE®RA) 2
T B R R E%0.338 T (A FHAE) 2B VRE
EUNREeRE—RBERKRMD - TR - 5280 AR
BEFEZRER03IBIL 2 RIBEE KR AS28K Y
AEk-Al RZTENF+ZA=+—HHAE
373,833,86910 AR IEE R EITIE - BEITHE M K
1718 2 SRR AE 5 1% 5] B35 17373,833,869 8 BE /MR
15 RIBE S £4123,365,000/8 7T °

AEBEZRBEFERERAEEEABEFE 2
BIERANMBHRREICAEFIVAZGEAERE
BRZEG -

B REREANERMEZERBDAIZEBSQA
&5 S5 48B1 X FAHIKE IR ©

R B 2 A BA DI ROR R - A BB A B
n R EEE BORNDBRERE AR
PRI 2 B ES o

REEGRBEIHEEVBEEZ ATEED -
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An issue of warrants on the basis of one warrant for every
five shares held was approved by the shareholders of the
Company (“Shareholders”) on 23rd May, 2008. On the
same date, the authorised share capital of the Company was
also approved to increase to HK$300 million divided into
3,000,000,000 shares at par value of HK$0.1 each.

The warrant holders are entitled to subscribe in cash for
one fully paid share at an initial subscription price of
HK$0.33 per share, subject to adjustment, at any time from
29th May, 2008 to 28th May, 2009 (both days inclusive).
During the year, 528 warrants were converted into 528
ordinary shares at a subscription price of HK$0.33 per share.
Accordingly 373,833,869 warrants were outstanding at 31st
December, 2008. Exercise in full of the outstanding warrants
would result in the issue of 373,833,869 additional shares
with an aggregate subscription value of approximately
HK$123,365,000.

The amount of the Group's reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 36 to
37 of the financial statements.

The application of the share premium account and the
capital redemption reserve is governed by sections 48B and
49H respectively of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC,
a portion of the profits of a PRC entity controlled by the
Group's associate has been transferred to reserve funds
which are restricted to use.

Investment revaluation reserve represents changes in fair
value of available-for-sale financial assets.
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28. f#fE (&)

28. RESERVES (continued)

AT COMPANY
Retained
Capital earnings/
Share redemption (accumulated
premium reserve losses) Total
EREE REBA,
BB EE &1 (REER) wE
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FAET FET FEIT FEIT
At 1st January, 2007
—TTLF-—A—RH&E 311,582 4,032 (80,457) 235,157
Profit for the year
N A - - 416,652 416,652
Total recognised income and
expense for the year
REEEHEAMARFMX L - - 416,652 416,652
Proceeds from shares issued
BEITIRG Z TS 5KIA 189,280 - - 189,280
Shares issuance expenses
MR1D B TR X (8,116) - = (8,116)
Repurchase of shares
A&7 o 5 - 16,000 (76,877) (60,877)
At 31st December, 2007 and
1st January, 2008
—EE+F+-_A=+—HEK
T N\F-A—RH#EE 492,746 20,032 259,318 772,096
Loss for the year
REEBE - - (317,895) (317,895)
Total recognised income and expense
for the year
REEEBAMARML 25 - - (317,895) (317,895)
Proceeds from shares issued*
BT 2 FriS sRIE" - - - -
At 31st December, 2008
—EE\F+-_A=+—BH&#EE 492,746 20,032 (58,577) 454,201

29.

fORAEER  TERRAZRBREEMEZBA R
B A0 i B 3 Bl /53 T K121 7T °

BREEFE

BREEFEDNREARRBREFTEAREEE
7#18598,172,0008 7L (ZZZF 4 : 991,771,000
BT R _EENF+_A=+—HzZEETLE
f%1,869,172,517 (= ZZ 4 : 1,869,171,9894%)

During the year, HK$53 and HK$121 were received for share
capital and share premium respectively as a result of exercise of

the Company’s warrants.

29. NET ASSET VALUE PER SHARE

The calculation of net asset value per share is based on
the net assets attributable to the equity holders of the
Company of HK$598,172,000 (2007: HK$991,771,000) and
1,869,172,517 (2007: 1,869,171,989) ordinary shares in
issue as at 31st December, 2008.
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FEIEFE B TR A+ B %£16.5% _77t¢
17.5%) IRIEBEERAMEEREZHTE

AEENZELERR (BE) BBEEHNT -

Accelerated tax

For the year ended 31st December, 2008
HE—ZTN\F+=-A=+—H

Deferred taxation is calculated on temporary differences
under the liability method using a principal taxation rate of
16.5% (2007: 17.5%).

The movement in deferred tax (assets)/liabilities during the
year is as follows:

depreciation
MEHBFTE
2008 2007
“EE\F C"TTLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET T
At 1st January
R—R—AH - 5,133
Charged/(credited) to income statement
REBEENR,/ GEA) - 2,101
Arising from disposal of a subsidiary
ERENBARELE - (7,234)
At 31st December
R+=A=1+-H - =

Fair value gain Tax losses Total
DYEEM HBEE Eh

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
ZERNF _"TTLE ZBENFf _ITTLFE ZEBEN\F _TTLF
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET FET THET TET AT

- 64,580 - (1,213) - 68,500

- = - (690) - 1,411
- (64,580) - 1,903 - (69,911)

R_ZZEENF+=_A=+—8" Wil*ﬁﬂi@)ﬁﬁﬁ
T8 E5183£370,075,000/ T (Z T T L4 : 79,000
Bor)  ATAEREAZEBEZA EZEEME%
Fiom F B AR 8H o FR A 80K T8DRI 2R 305 I 20
E W ERZERBEBRRRELEHBEE - m
BHRITHRE AN  ZERBEEBEBTSER - BRZ
ANMEEAABRELEHBAE -

R-FZFNF+-_A=1+—8  ARBEEEAR
HREERABERABR(ZTTLF &) -
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As at 31st December, 2008, the Group has unused tax
losses of HK$370,075,000 (2007: HK$79,000) available to
offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies
which incurred these losses. Deferred tax assets are
not recognised in respect of these tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit stream. These tax losses
do not expire under current tax legislation. There were no
material unrecognised deferred tax liabilities.

The Company had no material unrecognised deferred tax
assets and liabilities as at 31st December, 2008 (2007: Nil).
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31.

32.

BBERER

MN_BZNE+_A=+—H ARF)HHHEK
BERER UWHE—H2ENBARERESE
B 3820,000,0005 7T (—EZ+ : 20,000,0003
TL) ZERBE ©

BEREALZRS

BRUEHRREMBOAREEN  NREERAE
FEABETTIEAFEALRS :

31.

32.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS

As at 31st December, 2008, the Company has executed a
guarantee to a financial institution to secure the borrowing
facilities available to a wholly-owned subsidiary in the
amount not exceeding US$20 million (2007: US$20 million).

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Saved as those disclosed elsewhere in these financial
statements, the Group had the following significant related
party transactions during the year:

(a) (@
2008 2007
ZEEN\F —ET+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Yu Ming Investment Management Limited ( “YMIM™ )
BHREEEERAR([RHEREER])
Management fee
BEE 11,640 13,343
Performance fee
BH & - 12,208
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(a)

REAAREBHRETEAR AR (EFF
KELRE BREBELENTEREETIEH
REEEB2BEERARNGZERE)R— Lt
FZARARUIREBRRN—NANAEFE=ZA
A AEZEERE([RITREEEW
) BREEEEREHR—NANAEFE=ZA
T tHRA EFABDESEREASE
ZHEERTIE - SHIEEESEGRIER
EERER 2BEAEREERB—BZE
EFEZ20375%  URESER (E) ' &
HHENSURFERER 2EEZ 2B
AIEREmH (RSB AR REAEER
ZEEBZEBATHEEFENE ZBHE
B 220% - Mt EREEEERAMEESER
B AR ZHERR BT S RERS A
HAEABERFATHEEFEAREERH
Al 325 ) o

E-_ZT_F=-ANB  BYRRIE—H
mrmE (R ERATEERH R
A BEETEALF=A=1+—H -#HR
HET BEEBRAERTE ERABET
MARHARA  MAKBERSRTERE
BHREEEFTEDNESER - B - %
ERCEREHRABESFET _A=1—
BIEREZZGEHRAGZEREN CRFTRE B
FAD - HIRBEBETOBRARANZ R
SHEBEE AR BRAKESAYH
RABEFEONKBEEBEE220% Mt &
REEERBEARKRSEMAR  ARE2HZ
REAE—HARZEEEERRAR TS RER
A EABTREATFHEEFERE
ERBAERN  RZZEZ+F+_A=+—
B 2#REEBETEKERSER -
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Under the investment management agreement
("Existing Investment Management Agreement”)
approved by Shareholders on 27th March, 1997 and
dated 5th March, 1997 between the Company and
YMIM, of which Mr. Fung Wing Cheung, Tony, Mr. Fung
Yiu Fai, Peter and Mr. Lee Wa Lun, Warren were the
directors of YMIM and the Directors of the Company,
YMIM agreed to assist the Board with the day-to-day
management of the Group for a period of five years
commencing on 27th March, 1997. YMIM was entitled
to a management fee equal to 0.375% of the net asset
value on each quarter date and an incentive fee equal
to 20% of such amount (if any) by which the audited
consolidated profit before tax for each financial year
completed (before adjusting for the incentive fee)
exceeds such amount as is equal to 6% of average
monthly net asset value of the Group for each such
financial year. For the calculation of management fee
and incentive fee, the associated companies of the
Group were not equity accounted for the purpose of
calculating such quarterly and average monthly net asset
value and consolidated profit before tax.

On 4th March, 2002, a supplemental agreement
("Supplemental Agreement”) was approved by
independent Shareholders to extend the expiry date
of the Existing Investment Management Agreement
to 31st March, 2007. Under the Supplemental
Agreement, the management fee remained unchanged.
Pursuant to the Supplemental Agreement, YMIM
would not be entitled to the incentive fee if the Group
reported an accumulated loss during the term of the
Supplemental Agreement at the time of the incentive
fee computation. Therefore, the incentive fee was
equivalent to 20% of the amount by which the audited
consolidated profit before tax for each year ending
31st December (before adjusting for the incentive fee),
and after offsetting the accumulated losses during the
term of the Supplemental Agreement, if any, exceeded
6% of the average monthly net asset value of the
Group for such financial year. For the calculation of
management fee and incentive fee, the associated
companies and a jointly controlled entity of the Group
would not be equity accounted for the purpose of
calculating such quarterly and average monthly net
asset value and consolidated profit before tax. For the
year ended 31st December, 2007, no incentive fee was
charged by YMIM.



For the year ended 31st December, 2008
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(a)

(&)

BE_ZZ+FRA=THILE  KAARH
BHREEEEMII MR EEE G (5
REEERE]) 2K NARHKKETERN
TERAF=A=+—HAR-ZEZLEFXA
“+t AR T HmE (TR 8mEl)
NEERZERHREEERATRAFRER
2 ARMRBEABSEANEKE B_TFL
FUA—BE_FZLF/N\ATEAE - K
FZLZGRERBRETRWHLBRBEN
HEADER RS BRI FER T Y
BAXN TFTREBREEE

—EELERNAZ+ R FREETEN S
HAARESHLEETETY R+
FNAZHEERRRRRIME - BIEFFIRE
EREWHE RURETEREHPEETSER
BAEBE HFEEREE  BRHAAINZ
ZELF+A—B RNBEAREETE R
HEARNTREIEZB (UREERE)E
—ETNFFT A=+ —H - 2BKEER
AIZHEEERAEBARRRIREREAZL
AEEFEISYZFEEB (N2EEFENRN
EBERAZE—B2ZUGBARARREREA
PIREEBEEFEZFHEGERREZTHR
RS RASEREBETZA=+T—BLSE
FrHBARAIRERBEAZKEZGEE
EFEBHUTHBEZ20%2EHNER ()
AEERBHRREEEZTERNER 2%
PHRFEFHEANEBARRREREAZ
BRZEGEEFE (MR ERHEANE XS
REEBA)  NAEERTIEEEEMEE
MEBZAIBBARRREREAZLERE]

EFE(MAREEHMANEINELNER) -

(continued)

Subsequent to the interim period ended 30th June,
2007, while the Company was negotiating a new
investment management agreement (“New Investment
Agreement”) with YMIM, the Company entered
into interim period agreements (“Interim Period
Agreements”) with YMIM on 31st March, 2007 and
22nd June, 2007 relating to the appointment of
YMIM as the Company’s investment manager for
an interim period commencing on the expiry of the
Supplemental Agreement, effectively from 1st April,
2007 to 4th August, 2007. The terms of the Interim
Period Agreements are substantially the same as those
contained in the Existing Investment Management
Agreement and Supplemental Agreement, except that
the incentive fee shall no longer be payable to YMIM
during the interim period.

On 22nd June, 2007, the New Investment
Management Agreement was entered into by the
Company and YMIM, which was approved by the
Shareholders of the Company on 3rd August, 2007.
Under the New Investment Management Agreement,
YMIM agreed to assist the Board with the day-to-
day management of the Group from (i) earlier of 1st
October, 2007; or (ii) the date immediately following
the day on which the New Investment Management
Agreement was approved by the Shareholders to 31st
December, 2009. YMIM entitles to a management fee
equal to 1.5% per annum of the consolidated net asset
value of the Group attributable to the equity holders
of the Company, calculated and payable in arrears on a
quarterly basis by reference to the arithmetical average
of the consolidated net asset value of the Group
attributable to the equity holders of the Company
on the last day of each calendar month during each
quarter; and a performance fee equal to 20% of the
amount by which the audited consolidated net asset
value of the Group attributable to the equity holders
of the Company of each year ending 31st December,
exceeds (i) if a performance fee has been paid during
the management period, the audited consolidated
net asset value of the Group attributable to the
equity holders of the Company as at the end of the
latest financial year in which YMIM was entitled to a
performance fee; or (ii) if no performance fee has been
paid during the management period, the consolidated
net asset value of the Group attributable to the equity
holders of the Company on effective date of the New
Investment Management Agreement.
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(a)

(b)

(@]

(d)

(e)

€-))

—ZEZLFENAZTNA  BREEE ﬁﬁﬁz
BARREERRZBASE BE2EN
BAR -R_EENF+=-_A=1+—8" ()w
AEEFF26.98% (—ZTZT L4 :26.98%)
RAT D ER  (VERELE (RN
F+-_ARBBEAESR)  LEhIEERK
DEEEBARRARRBAEEBMIEBES
(i)FKERE (RZZEENFRERAES) K
TEGELEAANFEBRIEETEZHEE
EEo

PEoh s AREBEASRRREEBE I HAETE
M WIRBETEE R EHESBIREERE
ZHAERBERAL240% - BE_ZTZT )\
F+_A=+ " HZEHERRKREER
fl & 2 & %8 A700,000 70 (Z T F £ 4F
707,000 7C) - AL EHAHBHRIEEETE
BAZETEME  UHRMERKKREE
BRZZFTLF 7B E KA A398,000%8 T ©
AEEVEZHERSHEREEEEARER
¥ o HEWMEBAALZAIEREERZ [1TTH
REMGEERE] -

AEBEREHBREEEYNERER
200,000/ 70 (ZZFZ 4 : 990,000/8 7T) °

HE-_ZENF+_A=1+—BHILEER"
NEE 2z A E DA EMarking Limited 1 £2
WHERER (ZZ T+ : 480,000 7T) °
4 Bl #2 % 4 AMarking Limited 2 J& 5 °

—EE+FLA=H ARQAR—KHERQA
BARNAEZRFTKEEER_ZEZTN\FR
TAREERBERBEER-_ZSTNFEHT
REEHEB BRARLEKHEEH
FEHERE22% K AR REARE
372,000,000 e — T F A NH - B
YRRIERTBERS - RFER_TZLF
+TZA=+—A%K RETEE2HKZ -
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(continued)

On 24th August, 2007, YMIM became an indirectly
wholly-owned subsidiary of AGL, a substantial
shareholder of the Company. As at 31st December,
2008, (i) AGL held 26.98% (2007: 26.98%) interests
in the share of the Company; (ii) Mr. Lee Seng Hui
(resigned as a Director on 5th December, 2008), Mr.
Lo King Yau, Edwin and Mr. Arthur George Dew were
common directors of the Company and AGL; and (iii)
Mr. Fung Wing Cheung, Tony (retired as a Director
during 2008) and Mr. Lee Wa Lun, Warren were the
common directors of the Company and YMIM.

The Group occupies office space of YMIM and
reimburses to YMIM 40% of its office and equipment
expenses in accordance with the Investment
Management Agreement. Such expenses reimbursed
to YMIM during the year ended 31st December, 2008
amounted to HK$700,000 (2007: HK$707,000).
The Group utilised certain staff employed by YMIM
and reimbursed staff costs of HK$398,000 to YMIM
for the year ended 31st December, 2007. No such
reimbursement was charged by YMIM during the year.
Such reimbursed costs are included in “Administrative
and other operating expenses” on the face of the
consolidated income statement.

The Group has been charged advisory fee of
HK$200,000 (2007: HK$990,000) by YMIM.

During the year ended 31st December, 2008, nil
consultancy fee (2007: HK$480,000) was charged by
Marking Limited, a former minority shareholder of the
Group. Mr. Yu Kwok Chuen, Eddie is a shareholder of
Marking Limited.

On 3rd July, 2007, a subsidiary of the Company
entered into a conditional sale and purchase
agreement with a company (“Purchaser”) owned by
Mr. Fung Wing Cheung, Tony (retired as a Director
during 2008) and Mr. Fung Yiu Fai, Peter (resigned as
a Director during 2008), who are the Directors of the
Company, to sell 61.22% equity interests of Honnex
at a consideration of HK$372 million in cash. On 9th
August, 2007, independent Shareholders approved
this transaction. The transaction completed on 31st
December, 2007 and the consideration was fully
received.
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)

(9)

(h)

HE_TETZNE+_A=+—HIEER "
AAREZERRBEEE KB R RSB
ERERBEARARRAITLZBHFR S
W ER A & & F31,789,0008 T (—Z T4 :
916,000/ 7T) °

BE-ZETLFEFLA-+HBEZBROHEESH
o OBERERBAER AT (BARARER
—EREEZERE-—FBEBR QA (%
B Z2MB AR AR ER KD RS R
7 N W ER it & 5 497,800,000/8 7T © tEBIRE
1%0.667% STt 338,000,000 A A Bl %15 F
BUREEZRBE -

RZFEZTLtF+—A+<8 A2AH—
MB AR MBAEEE (KRR EERRE
2 —) B — @I & A B — ¥7% & B A60,000
3). BridgefTE TR RKERE  EEAR
299,999,000 H 7T (#721,000,0007 7T ) °

During the year ended 31st December, 2008,
commission expenses of HK$1,789,000 (2007:
HK$916,000) were charged by Sun Hung Kai
Investments Services Limited, a subsidiary of AGL, a
substantial shareholder of the Company, for securities
transactions entered into.

Under the placing agreement dated 25th July, 2007,
Sun Hung Kai Investment Services Limited, a subsidiary
of Sun Hung Kai & Co Limited ("SHK"), a former
substantial shareholder of the Company, provided
placing services to the Company and received a
placing fee of approximately HK$7.8 million for placing
338,000,000 shares of the Company to independent
investors at a price of HK$0.66 per share.

On 16th November, 2007, a subsidiary of the Company
purchased from SHK, a subsidiary of AGL which is
a substantial shareholder of the Company, 60,000
warrants issued by J. Bridge at a consideration of
JPY299,999,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$21
million).
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33. MERERERMT 33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
STATEMENT
BIHEMNBLARAER—CRIEEEEK 33.1 Disposal of a subsidiary, Honnex - Discontinued
operation
2007
—TTLF
HK$'000
FET
Net assets disposed of:
HEZEEFE
Investment properties
REME 1,347,245
Trade receivables
18 2 PRI 1,093
Other receivables and deposits paid
BEATE M R RS 657
Cash and cash equivalents
RekBRLSED 3,438
Other payables, accrued expenses and deposits received
BEWEMRENR - B RiRE (22,702)
Taxation payable
ANEIEN (29,209)
Bank borrowings
RITEE (697,000)
Deferred tax liabilities
BEFIRA S (69,911)
Loan from minority interest
LHREEREK (32,145)
Minority interests
L H RS (166,328)
335,138
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (Note 11)
HE—MHRBAR W (HEE11) 36,490
Net consideration
REFER 371,628
Satisfied by cash
NBR& XA
Consideration
HKE 372,000
Direct cost of disposal
HEHERR (372)
Net consideration
HE=E 371,628
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33. HMERERERKF (E) 33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
STATEMENT (continued)

BIHE—EMBEATERERE — SR LEKREEK 33.1 Disposal of a subsidiary, Honnex — Discontinued
(%) operation (continued)
HE—HNBAR R RASEEMFNR An analysis of net inflow of cash and cash equivalents
ADPTAT : in respect of the disposal of a subsidiary is as follows:

2007
—ET+F
HK$'000
FET

Net consideration

REFHE 371,628
Cash and bank balances disposed
HEZRE KRS EEMER (3,438)

Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in
respect of the disposal of a subsidiary
HE—RMBAR R RRSFEWFRA 368,190
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008
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33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW

STATEMENT (continued)

33.2 Disposal of a subsidiary, IEC Investments Limited,
and a jointly controlled entity, AsiaWorld-Expo
Management Limited

2007
ZTTLF
HK$'000
FET
Net assets disposed of:
HEZEBERE :
Interests in a jointly controlled entity
REBZEESE R ERS 2,613
Available-for-sale financial assets
AHHENBEE 352,941
Other receivables and deposits paid
ENEMERR LIRS 65,421
Loan to minority interest
WO RERER 25,600
Cash and cash equivalents
REeEkBRLEEY 20,912
Other payables, accrued expenses and deposits received
EUWHE MR - AR X R IRE (3,638)
Bank borrowings
RITEE (167,301)
Loan from minority interest
DB R B (88,064)
Minority interests
DER R S (44,870)
163,614
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary and a jointly controlled entity
HE—RMHER R R —EERZESE AR Z WS 16,206
Net consideration
REFER 179,820
Satisfied by cash
RS XA
Consideration
HRE 180,000
Direct cost of disposal
BEEHEKAR (180)
Net consideration
HEFE 179,820
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33. FERERERM T (H) 33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
STATEMENT (continued)

33.2 HE — R M B A FIEC Investments Limited 33.2 Disposal of a subsidiary, IEC Investments Limited,
F-—EAREESEQAATNERBEEES and a jointly controlled entity, AsiaWorld-Expo
BERADAE (&) Management Limited (continued)
HE—FHBAR R —HERZEESEE QR An analysis of net inflow of cash and cash equivalents
R RBReFEWFRADNAT in respect of the disposal of a subsidiary and a jointly

controlled entity is as follows:
2007
—TTLF
HK$'000
FET

Net consideration

REFR 179,820

Cash and bank balances disposed

HEZRE LR EEMER (20,912)

Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in

respect of the disposal of a subsidiary and a jointly controlled entity
HE—MERARRARZEESEARNZAS KRS FEYWFRA 158,908
34. BMEEENREE 34. RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

AEBERELLERRERDTBRBEER 2SR
THESSEYBEAR FHEREEER - M
RigkETEMERRRERR AEEZEH
HEZEAF RERAREEI(F LEBRE
BEREBRTECRR BOBRARE ZHE
HRSRE  RAMBREMAEZURERA
[l

AEBEHNETZHFHERRBIT - NEB 5 HET
RZMBEERABHREHNHE34.7

341 S L e

REBRBALDZHABTLHET - EEEXRE
BERXREAKREZRE MZEREXR
ABE -  SRATMAER Ha® Ex-
AR NBITEHE ©

The Group is exposed to market risks through its use of
financial instruments and specifically to currency risk,
interest rate risk and certain other price risks, which result
from both its operating and investing activities. The Group’s
risk management is coordinated at its headquarters, in close
co-operation with the Board and focuses on actively securing
the Group’s short to medium term cash flows by minimising
the exposure to financial markets. Long term financial
investments are managed to generate lasting returns.

The most significant financial risks to which the Group is
exposed are described below. A summary of the Group’s
financial assets and liabilities by category is shown in Note
34.7.

34.1 Foreign currency risk

Most of the Group’s transactions are carried out
in HKD. Exposures to currency exchange rates is
mainly arise from the Group’s investments, which are
primarily denominated in Japanese Yen, Malaysian
Ringgit, New Taiwan Dollars, US Dollars, Renminbi and
Australian Dollars.
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34. BREEBEE N RBE (&) 34. RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(continued)

34.1 JhEEE B (4E) 34.1 Foreign currency risk (continued)
PONESHEZMBAERRRRBERRE Foreign currency denominated financial assets and
BABTWAT liabilities, translated into HKD at the closing rate, are as

follows:
2008
ZEENF
HK$’000
FET
JP¥ MYR NTS uss$ AUS$S RMB
BRAE
HE MEH Fili=gd ETT BT ARYE
Financial assets
M EE 4,867 28,375 6,581 87,338 4,372 2,698
Financial liabilities
WBEE - - - - - -
Short-term exposure
52 HA [ bz 4,867 28,375 6,581 87,338 4,372 2,698
Financial assets
M EE - - - 29,653 - 6,028
Financial liabilities
WBEE - - - - - -
Long-term exposure
£ HA [ bz - - - 29,653 - 6,028
2007
T EF
HK$'000
FHET
JP¥ MYR NT$ us$ AU$ Others
BRF g
HE =R FaK Sy BRI Hh
Financial assets
W& E 49,514 64,243 27,079 = 5,647 =
Financial liabilities
MBasE - = = (3,900) = =
Short-term exposure
52 Hi 2 b 49,514 64,243 27,079 (3,900) 5,647 =
Financial assets
W& E - - = 15,617 = 593
Financial liabilities
WBEE - - - - - -

Long-term exposure
£ B & - - - 15,617 = 593
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TRINEAENRGEEBAEBEERNRR 2 The following table indicates the approximate change
EHEAE - BRATDHEERN A 2 IMNE in the Group’s profit after tax (and retained earnings)
ERGIPA RS  AEBEREBREFN (KRB and other components of consolidated equity in
BF)) Rz E=mE MK D 2 BN ES) o response to reasonably possible changes in the foreign

exchange rates, Japanese Yen, Malaysian Ringgit and
New Taiwan Dollars, to which the Group has significant
exposure at the balance sheet date.

2008 2007
—EENF —ETLEF
Increase/ Effect on Increase/ Effect on

(decrease) profit after Effect on (decrease) profit after Effect on

in foreign tax and other in foreign tax and other

exchange retained components exchange retained components

rates earnings of equity rates earnings of equity

HE & HER HHI Eap Fan

HEER HBRRRE Hitb R o SMNERER  E A RIRE H A A 7

#gm/ Rd) Bz ZHE 2N/ ORd) BIZEE 2B

HK$'000 HK3$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000

FHET FHET TET T
JP¥

H 5% 203 - 10% 4,085 -
JP¥

H (5%) (203) - (10%) (4,085) -
MYR

55 R P8 25 M E A 3% 711 - 4% 2,120 -
MYR

BRADHER (3%) (711) - (4%) (2,120) -
NT$

el 5% 275 - 3.5% 782 -
NT$

ek (5%) (275) - (3.5%) (782) -

EEEHREDTEFNRERINEEREFHS The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming

REEREL YEERREREAEET 2 that the change in foreign exchange rates had occurred

BRSXEZHEREZTENRIETAESRT at the balance date and had been applied to each of

BEvE ER mM—YEMmEE (CEZF the Group’s entities’ exposure to currency risk for the

R BIE & o non-derivative financial instruments in existence at that

date, and that all other variables, in particular interest
rates, remain constant.
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Rl e s E R ELINEEREHHEEE T The stated changes represent management’s
—FEAEHARILHBcAEEEHFT assessment of reasonably possible changes in foreign
1E o FRMZINZAONMEREAEERZEE exchange rates over the period until the next annual

LGB ESEER 2 BRATE (A balance sheet date. Results of the analysis as presented

SHEM  BREHEZEELABET) 2
BB RFI RS AT E -

R 2 [ B EL 17 A T B R R (IR A
FIEfE) EBEE -

TRIMEAEREERAEBAEEARR 2
%'J%‘Eé\ﬁ!i—fﬁﬁiib AEBBE DN (RE A

M) 2R EE

in the above table represent an aggregation of the
effects on each of the Group’'s entities’ profit after
tax and equity measured in the respective functional
currencies, with the estimated changes then translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rate ruling at
the balance sheet date for presentation purposes.

The Group is exposed to changes in market interest
rates through its deposits at floating interest rate,
which are subject to variable interest rates.

The following table indicates the approximate change
in the Group's profit after tax (and retained earnings) in
response to reasonably possible changes in the interest
rate, to which the Group has significant exposure at

the balance sheet date.

2008 2007
—BENF —ETLE

Effect on Effect on

Increase/ profit after Increase/ profit after

(decrease) tax and (decrease) tax and

in interest retained in interest retained

rates earnings rates earnings

HH%E &

F = A RRE Y| s M R AR B

#m, G BRz % o, Crid) Bz %

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FHET
Deposits

T 0.5% 873 1% 5,060
Deposits

T (0.5%) (873) (1%) (5,060)
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HE=

TT\F+=-A=+—H

W-BENF+-A=+— B EHERE
K BBRHETET  FIEBB. LA/ TH
0.5% -

E#mﬂmr DT TR A KB B R
BHEL YERARZACHFEZITAR
HTESRMTAZFIREE - FXBE LT/
THROS%IEEEBUHNEEHHEEE T —F
JE*”Eth%ﬁZ/ﬁET%ﬂ'aﬂé %
IMRE TR FHRZELEETT -

AEBEEHINEEEE S RAIHHENBE
EZBRARBEEZREEZPRAR - FRRE
HER B ZIFREE R MEZEREAR
£

AEBEZETREZETELEMMWAETS 5
B RR - AEREM - FETHEER
AZLm&éE%\AE%?E%ﬁﬁﬁl

EHEREASEH RE - REASRR
AEBERERBETED M LIEDBIRE -

THIGEENEE B AEEAEARS Y
ERBERTEABTLE  HaHAEE
BiieatFl (RRBAF) Rz A S RERD
OB -

At 31st December, 2008, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 0.5% in interest rates, with all
other variables held constant.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the balance sheet date and had been
applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for both
derivative and non-derivative financial instruments in
existence at that date. The 0.5% increase/decrease
represents management’s assessment of a reasonably
possible change in interest rates over the period until
the next annual balance sheet date. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2007.

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising
from equity investments classified as trading securities
and available-for-sale financial assets. Other than
unquoted securities held for strategic purposes, all of
these investments are listed.

The Group's listed investments are primarily listed on
the stock exchanges of Hong Kong, Kuala Lumpur,
Tokyo, Taiwan and Australia. Listed investments held in
the available-for-sale portfolio have been chosen based
on their long term growth potential and are monitored
regularly for performance against expectations. The
portfolio is diversified in terms of industry distribution,
in accordance with the limits set by the Group.

The following table indicates the approximate change
in the Group’s profit after tax (and retained earnings)
and other components of the consolidated equity in
response to the reasonably possible changes in the
relevant stock market prices, to which the Group has
significant exposure at the balance sheet date.

Annual Report 2008
R FNEE R

139



HELTmREFMEZAER

Z-
oo
2

BB ALE
KEMES (FRIATA) 2 REEHTA

Increase/

(decrease)

in securities

market

price/index

BEMEEH

g, GRd)

Hong Kong market 10%
BEREMS

Hong Kong market (10%)
BEREMS

Taiwan market 10%
BENS

Taiwan market (10%)
BENS

Japan market 10%
ERNGIE

Japan market (10%)
ERNGIE

Australia market 10%
SEON T 35

Australia market (10%)
SEON T 35

Malaysia market 10%

SR E T 35
Malaysia market (10%)
SR E T 35

US market 10%
EBIT %5

US market (10%)
EBIT %5
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2008

—BENE
Effect on
profit after
tax and
retained
earnings
HH%

it A R R B
BRI &
HK$°000
FAETT
23,883
(23,883)
1,048
(1,048)

214
(214)

437
(437)

2,838
(2,838)

1,486

(1,486)

For the year ended 31st December, 2008
HE—_ZTTN\F+=-A=+—H

In response to the reasonably possible change in
the market price of the listed securities, the Group’s
investment in listed securities excluding derivatives has
the following exposures:

2007

—ETF

Increase/ Effect on
Effect on (decrease) profit after Effect on
other in securities tax and other
components market retained components
of equity price earnings of equity
HER HEiz HiEn
Hihpl o BHEME B REE H K5
2Ee #MS(RY) BRNZEE vy
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FHET FHET
1,596 10% 10,711 3,849
(1,596) (10%) (10,711) (3,849)
- 10% 2,234 -
- (10%) (2,234) -
- 10% 570 -
- (10%) (570) -
- 10% 465 -
- (10%) (465) -
- 10% 5,300 -
- (10%) (5,300) -
- 10% 322 -
- (10%) (322) -



For the year ended 31st December, 2008
BHE_TT/\F+=-A=t+—H

F &) BridgefX i T B < R T2 A B &
BRIE L™

Increase/
(decrease)

in
underlying
share’s price

HEARE
2, (Rd)

10%
(10%)

HEEEROTEZ SRS

REZEREHZREGUATRR

Increase/
(decrease)

in underlying
shares’ prices

HERE
#gm, R

10%
(10%)

E RN S
RIREFEZREEATRAR

2008
—EENE
Effect on
profit after
tax and
retained
earnings
(Note)
(HteE)
HHR®
R RARE
BRzweE
HK$°000
FET

2,062
(2,062)

AREH

2008
—EENEF
Effect on
profit after
tax and
retained
earnings
(Note)
(HEE)
HH %
AR R E

BRz®
HK$°000
FET

4,121
(4,359)

In response to the reasonably possible change in
the market price of the J. Bridge shares, the Group’s
investment in unlisted warrants has the following

exposures:

Effect on Increase/
other (decrease)
components in underlying
of equity share's price

HEan
H L o
A2
HK$°000
TET

TTEE
g, ORd)

10%
(10%)

2007

—ETEF
Effect on
profit after
tax and
retained
earnings
(Note)
(H17%)
ESRIIRE

i M R AR

BNz 228

HK$ OOO
FET

13,820
(13,820)

Effect on
other
components
of equity

e
HipK o
B
HK$°000
FET

In response to the reasonably possible change in the
market price of the underlying shares, the Group’s
investment in equity forward contracts has the
following exposures:

Effect on
other
components
of equity

B
H AR 2
Z%
HK$°000

FET

Increase/
(decrease)

in underlying
shares’ prices

E‘P {
i-m/ >

10%
(10%)

2007

—ZETLF
Effect on
profit after
tax and
retained
earnings
(Note)
(H1at)
&

o M R AR B
B8
HK$'000
FET

16,303
(24,163)

Effect on
other
components
of equity

i
H ko
2R
HK$°000
FET
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B U 5 1T TR IR D (B Sk
ﬁ@nﬁggamm B - WEEAR
(EEFEZBERR - LEBEEREY
AR e s R AR B A E
Y CEPNT GRS EPT TR

AEBLE—FTENF+ _A=t—HLFE
‘’EmHE  AEERREERAEGHZRE

2008
—EENE
Effect on

(Note)
(Bat)
HH %
AR R E

HK$°000
FET

BT R
Increase/ profit after
(decrease) tax and
in underlying retained
shares’ prices earnings
HERE
g/ (RY) BAZRE
30% 10,125
(30%) (13,077)
20%
(20%) (8,718)

a HERARRE £ F+30% M20%E - 30 & %
LEMBBANSWEL - kA MEBERE
EHBEZVE-

Bit - AERREZSMEL ZWBERERRRE
PIERAEFIR TR NF+_A=+—
RESKITER  AAREEHAORR
BEZSODHEARATLRZATFEZE
wE - ZEHEBEREMRBA AT —F
T&B%Eiiiﬂxﬁ AN ifﬁ“iﬂ&ﬁém

HHERBAZERRZLZBERLT » K&
ERSF S ﬁTﬁf”EZ%ikX%%EZ?E?E‘J 2
FIADHTHRE — TR FHER 2 BT o
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008
HE—ZTN\F+=-A=+—H

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming
that the reasonably possible changes in the stock
market price or other relevant risk variables had
occurred at the balance sheet date and had been
applied to the exposure to equity price risk in
existence at that date. The stated changes represent
management’s assessment of reasonably possible
changes in the relevant stock market index or the
relevant risk variables over the period until the next
annual balance sheet date.

In response to the volatile stock market subsequent
to the year end date of 31st December, 2008, the
Group’s investment in equity forward contracts has the
following exposures:

2007

—ETLF

Effect on
Effect on Increase/ profit after Effect on
other (decrease) tax and other
components  in underlying retained components
of equity  shares’ prices earnings of equity

(Note)

(B15t)
R Tz HHEm
Hii i 2 MEEAA f N K AR B H At 5
ZEE En Orhd BNz 28 2B
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FAETT FET TFET
- 30% 33,186* =
- (30%) (98,305) -
- 20% 28,453* -
- (20%) (65,536) =
* When the underlying shares’ prices increased by 30%

and 20%, some of them triggers the knock-out prices
and the contracts will be terminated. This analysis only
shows the effect up to the knock-out prices.

Note: The financial effect resulting from changes in underlying
shares’ prices represented the theoretical change in
fair value of all underlying equity securities under the
outstanding equity forward contracts and the warrant
contract as if all these equity securities were acquired/
exercised as at 31st December, 2008. These pro forma
information is for illustrative purposes only and is not
necessarily an indication of the fair value change in
these equity securities and results of operation of the
Group that actually would have been achieved had the
acquisition of these equity securities been completed
at the balance sheet date, nor is it intended to be a
projection of future result. The analysis is performed on
the same basis for 2007.



For the year ended 31st December, 2008
BHE—ZTN\F+=-A=+—H

AEBZEERRERNEZAEAER
B EEREE  BENHE34.7 -

AEBEREERTPREMR AT A Z
REEBER - BEASSAPNEFA BT - Wi
HERMAEERRZES MEASE &
SERSAEAIIBEETRE KEEAEF
REMZZEFH2RE - ARBZHRE
EREEFZEPRME -

AEBEERERR A LAMBEEMR
EREAHNERERE  HJARIFEELER -

BRETEE2 1IN ER SN - AR BB 75 B E B A K
GRS H A S PR A0SR W 1E SR o

BLAR & I B Al R MR - AN SR T B AR L
FRBZEME-—RXZHFHHEMARR S
HBFTEAHZEAEREERR - RBES
REMEHPBEEZEFEERRER BB
RE ARGHFTHRAREEENRZ
BEREBRT

AEBTEFREEREHERMBABNE
FHEABEBRSRL - WEERERESR
PECFE -AEERAEZHEHRPESSH
R ZBABERBA=ATRNOEHARDY

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is limited to the
carrying amount of financial assets recognised at the
balance sheet date, as summarised in Note 34.7.

The Group continuously monitors defaults of customers
and other counterparties, identifies either individually
or by group, and incorporates this information into its
credit risk controls. Where available at reasonable cost,
external credit ratings and/or reports on customers
and other counterparties are obtained and used.
The Group’s policy is to deal only with creditworthy
counterparties.

The Group’s management considers that all the above
financial assets that are not impaired for each of the
reporting dates under review are of good credit quality.

Saved as disclosed in Note 21, none of the Group's
financial assets are secured by collateral or other credit
enhancements.

In respect of trade and other receivables, the Group is
not exposed to any significant credit risk exposure to
any single counterparty or any group of counterparties
having similar characteristics. The credit risk for
liquid funds and other short-term financial assets is
considered negligible, since the counterparties are
reputable banks with high quality credit ratings.

The Group manages its liquidity needs by carefully
monitoring scheduled debt servicing payments for
long-term financial liabilities as well as cash-outflows
due in day-to-day business. Liquidity needs are
monitored on a day-to-day basis. Long-term liquidity
needs for 360-day lookout period are identified
monthly.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008
BE-_TT)/\F+=-A=+—H

34. ElREEEMNREBE (&) 34. RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(continued)

M5 REBESRER (&) 34.5 Liquidity risk (continued)
REBHRBAETNREUNETEZRNRRES The Group maintains cash and marketable securities
ST RZRBESH K BMETREER to meet its liquidity requirements for up to 30-
EHEEEMERLERAMBEE 268 12K days periods. Funding for long-term liquidity needs
ERNREAHESTE - is additionally secured by an adequate amount of

committed credit facilities and the ability to sell long-
term financial assets.

R-BEENEFEFR_EELE+_A=+— As at 31st December, 2008 and 2007, the Group’s

B AEBEREBEAVIBHENTBEERE financial liabilities have contractual maturities which
R are summarised below:

Current Non-current
mE IETRE

Within 6 to 12 1to5 Later than

6 months months years 5 years

618 A & 6Z12{8 A 1E5% 55 E

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET FHET FET

At 31st December, 2008
R-—BENF+=A=+—H
Other payables
FHAth & A K 4,347 = = =
Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss
BAFEIEREERERER
ZHEaE 57,517 3,627 = =

61,864 3,627 - -

At 31st December, 2007
RZEZTLF+=ZA=+—H
Other payables
HAth JE TR 21,683 = = =
Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss
BAFEIEREERERE
ZHBaE 3,900 = = =

25,583 = = =
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008
BE_TT\F+-_A=1+—H

34. BEEEEBEE N RBE (&) 34. RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(continued)

34.6 AL E 34.6 Fair values
FEARITADESEEEN BT N\E All financial instruments are carried at amounts not
—EELE+-_A=+—A AT EEA materially different from their fair values as at 31st
HOA e December, 2008 and 2007.
7 RERIF RS ERaERE 34.7 Summary of financial assets and liabilities by
category
2008 2007
ZEENF ZTTEF
HK$000 HK$°000
FET FET
Non-current assets
FEREEE
Available-for-sale financial assets
A ERKEE 75,756 54,703
Held-to-maturity investments
FAEZIERE 7,648 -
83,404 54,703
Current assets
mBEE
Loans and receivables:
B fEWGRIE
— Trade and other receivables
— R N E A FE MR IR 77,745 1,037
— Other restricted deposits paid
—HpERE zEMNRE 20,049 24,014
— Cash and cash equivalents
—RERREEEY 135,159 652,174
Available-for-sale financial assets
AHHEMBEE - 1
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
BAFENEREERREE 2 MK EE 305,276 286,635
538,229 963,861
Current liabilities
mBEE
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost:
IS B B SR ANG 2
— Other payables and accrued expenses
— HAORERT TR AT B 2 4,347 21,683
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
BRATENEREERREIE B AR 18,089 3,900
22,436 25,583
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35. EXEEBRRERF

AEBZEAERBRR
() WRAEEGHENIAFELEELEEE &

(i) REREHBZH@ER -

AEBERREGENLERLEARERE
£ = 7K A8 BT RE A A B = AR R (2 3R & [F]
B REBRESKANEZ RRE LR
JERE BRI A EE ARG -

AEERTEEEEBRERBRLL DI ZBRA
BER -RNEERZERNEBERALTMT

S 25 A% B AR

For the year ended 31st December, 2008
BE-_TT)/\F+=-A=+—H

35. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND
PROCEDURES

The Group’s capital management objectives are:

(i)

(if)

to ensure the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern; and

to provide an adequate return to Shareholders.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between
the higher Shareholder returns that might be possible
with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages
and security afforded by a sound capital position, and
makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions.

The Group sets the amount of equity capital in
proportion to its overall financing structure. The
capital-to-overall financing ratio at balance sheet date
was as follows:

2008 2007
—EEN\F —ETAF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Capital
B
Total equity
Rk T 598,172 991,771
Overall financing
BEmE
Borrowings
faE - -
Capital-to-overall financing ratio
ARG ERERE X 1:0 1:0
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008
BHE—ZTN\F+=-A=+—H

BRRMBHREREMIBDAEERIN R
FZ_A+WHH ARAREMBIZR=_ZFA
FZAZTOESRE —KRHOEE—KH#E
RGO ZEE ZREESRERRKH0.10%5
JC 0 #171,869,172, 517 AR 1D - LMEE L
181,500,000/ 7t (FNBRF 18 ) © BT A 75 AR
Bz BBEABRSRRER NI DR —
MRBIEE -BRBEHRA— R ETERET L 2RE
e 2 AEEFARSN - TEFRHUEZE M - 2
SEOR-EZAE=A-+WAZ —AERKE
AREREEBBR HKRFBEERZZEZNF=A
—+XNBFIEZBREFRTIL -

Save as those disclosed elsewhere in the financial
statements, on 14th February, 2009, the Group announced
its proposals to raise approximately not less than HK$181.5
million, after expenses, by way of rights issue of not less
than 1,869,172,517 new ordinary shares at a subscription
price of HK$0.10 per share on the basis of one new
ordinary share for every one existing ordinary share held
on 24 March 2009. Successful applicants of the new
shares will receive one warrant for every five new shares
taken up. The new shares other than those subject to a
subscription undertaking with a substantial shareholder
were fully underwritten. The proposal was authorised by the
Shareholders at an extraordinary general meeting on 24th
March, 2009. Details of the rights issue were disclosed in the
prospectus of the Company dated 26th March, 2009.
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

4R o B M

Year ended 31st December,

BE+-A=+—BHLFE

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
—ZTERPF —TTRF ZETRF —EELF —EENF
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET FET
Results:
ES S
Profit/(loss) attributable
to equity holders
of the Company
RRATRERE A
FEMEE R, (E518) 39,378 144,662 (155,693) 145,204 (376,370)
As at 31st December,
W+=A=+—H
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
—ZTTF —ZTTRF —ETRF —ETLF —EENE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FEr FET FET FAET
Assets and liabilities:
EERAEE:
Current assets
MENE E 190,231 54,829 297,895 963,861 538,414
Total assets
BEEMRE 809,103 1,806,721 2,103,553 1,018,564 621,818
Current liabilities
mEAE 47,578 49,189 87,400 26,793 23,646
Total liabilities
BEEE 47,578 753,984 1,178,836 26,793 23,646
Equity
T 761,525 1,052,737 924,717 991,771 598,172
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